
CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 1

ROBERT J . LOVERO 

MAYOR 

The Mayor and City Council welcome you. 

AGENDA 

BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 
March 13,2018 

8:00PM 

Please note: comments are permitted only during O pen Forum and only fo r items not already on the agenda. 
\X'hcn called upon by the Mayor, kindly state your name and address fo r the record. Thank you fo r your participation. 

A. Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silence 
B. Open Forum 
C. Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular City Council and Committee of the Whole meetings held on 2/27/2018 
D. Bid Openings 
E. Berwyn Development Corp .. Berwyn TownshiplHealth District 

1. Consideration for Loan Approval: The Berwyn Bottega 
2. Request to Hold Route 66 Car Show and Close Ogden Avenue 

F. Reports from the Mayor 
1. Appointment of Treasurer Cynthia Gutierrez to Fire Pension Board and Police Pension Board 
2. Economic Incentive Agreement for Tony's Finer Foods - Fresh Market 

G. Reports from the Clerk 
H. Zoning Boards of Appeals 
I. Reports from the Aldermen, Committees and Board 

1. Ramirez: Damage to Public Property by a City Snow Plow 

MARGARET PAUL 

CLERK 

2. Budget, Finance & Revenue Committee: Minutes of Committee Meetings Held On 3/1/18 and 3/6/18 
J. Reports from the Staff 

1. Police Chief: Department Operations Study RFP Update 
2. Recreation Director: Resolution for Annual Baseball Parade on April 28, 2018 
3. Fire Chief: Request for Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement for Automatic Mutual Aid Fire Protection 
4. Finance Director: Notice of Public Hearing for 2018 Budget 
5. Public Works Director: Resolution for Road Improvements to Riverside Drive in the Amount of $620,000.00 
6. Public Works Director: Resolution for Sidewalk Improvements to Riverside Dr. in the Amount of $105,000.00 
7. Public Works Director: Approval for Construction and Design Agreement with Novotny Engineering for Riverside Drive 
8. Public Works Director-Approval for Sidewalks Agreement with Novotny Engineering for Riverside Drive 
9. City Administrator: Approval of Waste Management Contract 2019 through 2023 
10. City Administrator: Resolution of Continued Support and Participation in West Cook County Solid Waste Program 

K. Consent Agenda 
1. Payroll 31712018 in the amount of $1 ,206,733.94 
2. Payables: 3/13/2018 in the amount of $1 ,435,488.19 
3. Chicago International Christian Church: Solicit Funds March 17,24, 31 of 2018 
4. St. Mary of Celie: Way of the Cross procession 3/30/2018 
5. Christian Congregation of Jehovah's Witnesses: Community Service April - June, 2018 
6. Building & Local Improvement Permits issued for the month of February, 2018 

Total Items: 23 

-,-,;:;7" ' City Clerk 

In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with disabilities Act, any individual in the need of a reasonable accommodation in order to 

,articipate in or bene fir from attendance at a City of Berwyn public meeting should contact City Clcrk Margaret Paul at (708) 788-2660 as early in 
dvance as possible. 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 2

BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES of the COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

FEBRUARY 27, 2018 

Mayor Lovero called the Committee of the Whole to order at 6:00 p.m. A roll call was 
taken. The following Aldermen answered present: Ramirez, Reardon, Fejt, Santoy, 
and Avila 

1. Avila made the motion, seconded by Lennon, to excuse Alderman Garcia. The motion 
passed on a voice vote. Note: Garcia was present at 6:35 p.m. 

2. Mayor Lovero introduced the agenda topic: Impact Fees. He then recognized 
attorney James Vasselli of the Del Galdo law group who provided an overview of 
Impact Fees that included the constitutionality of imposing the fees. Mayor Lovero 
advised that his staff is doing work to explore the feasibility of Imposing impact fees 
on Trinity Health Care and Loyola Hospital once their purchase of MacNeal Hospital is 
completed. The Mayor recognized City Administrator Brian Pabst who advised the 
Council on his initial research into Community Benefits Agreements. A discussion 
ensued with regard to the tax impact that Berwyn residents will absorb as a result of 
the hospital's status change from For-profit to Non-profit. 

3 . Mayor Lovero Introduced the topic: land 3/4 inch Side Yard Setback Variation -
2825 S. Harvey. City Council referred this to the Committee of the Whole on 
February 13, 2018. The Mayor recognized Alderman Fejt who provided a chronology 
of events and background of the issues regarding the construction of this home. Mayor 
Lovero provided additional information concerning his knowledge of events and 
recognized City Building Director Charles Lazzara. 

Mr. Lazzara provided the Aldermen with a copy of the Building Department's permit 
log for the property and a copy of a handwritten report identified as being from Mr. 
Don Morris dated October 25, 2017. Alderman Lennon provided pictures of the 
property which were passed among the Aldermen. Mr. Lazzara advised that Mr. Morris 
was no longer working for the City of Berwyn. Mr. Lazzara acknowledged that a Stop 
Work Order was placed on further construction by the Building Department. He further 
acknowledged that he allowed the builder to continue construction despite the official 
Stop Work Order. 

Discussion ensued concerning the chronology of events, the Zoning Board report 
submitted with the communication to City Council for consideration on the 2/13/2018 
agenda, actions taken by Mr. Morris and Mr. Lazzara, and the imposition of a fine 
against the builder for the building violation. Then Alderman Garcia recommended a 
fine of $2,500 to be assessed and an expression of encouragement to the builder to 
pay for the relocation of the neighboring fence. This suggestion met with approval by 
the Aldermen. 

4. At the request of the Mayor, Avila made a motion, seconded by Garcia, to go into 
Closed Committee of the Whole for discussion of pending litigation. The motion passed 
by a voice vote. The Council adjourned to go into closed session at 7:18 p.m. 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 3

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MINUTES 
FEBRUARY 27, 2018 

5. The Council returned to the open session at 7:40 p.m. Santoy immediately made the 
motion, seconded by Avila, to adjourn the Committee of the Whole. The motion 
passed by voice vote. 

6. The Committee of the Whole was adjourned at 7:40 p.m. 

Respectfully sUbmi~ 

Paul, City Clerk 

2 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 4

MINUTES 
Regular Berwyn City Council Meeting 

February 27, 2018 

1. The Regular Meeting of the Berwyn City Council was called to order by Mayor Lovero at 8:00 p.m. The 
following Aldermen responded present upon the call ofthe roll: Lennon, Ramirez, Reardon, Fejt, Santoy, 
Ruiz, Avila and Garcia. 

2. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. A moment of silence was given for the families of Robert W. Cenek 
and Pearl M. Mikl, for the safety of the men and women protecting us on the streets of Berwyn, for those 
who are in the Armed Forces, and for all Veterans who have served. 

3. The Open Forum portion of the meeting was announced. The Mayor recognized members of Youth 
Crossroads who gave a presentation to seek funding for their upcoming service trip to Houston to aid 
Houston residents devastated by recent hurricanes. Lennon thanked Susan Mazany from the Greater Chapter 
of the Association of Legal Administration for the recent in-kind donations to the city. Ramirez announced a 
2nd Ward meeting on March 15th at 6:30 at Unity Lutheran Church. Reardon announced a 3,d Ward meeting 
on March 15th at 6:30 pm. Santoy announced future 5th Ward meetings on the third Thursdays of each month 
until October at 6:30 pm at Hett Park. Ruiz announced a 6th Ward meeting on March 15th at 6:30 pm at the 
Italian American Civic Organization. 

4. The Minutes of the regular Berwyn City Council and of the Committee of the Whole meetings held on 
February 13,2018 were submitted. Thereafter, Avila made a motion, seconded by Fejt, to approve the 
minutes as submitted and place same on fIle for audit. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

5. Deferred item from the Zoning, Planning and Development Commission regarding a request for variation 
and ordinance entitled: An Ordinance Approving a Variation to Build a Single-Family Residence that 
Encroaches 1% Inches into the Side Yard Setback on Property Located within the R-1 Single-Family 
Residence Zoning District, at the Address Commonly Known as 2825 S. Harvey Avenue, Berwyn, 
Illinois - Alex Godinez. Thereafter, Fejt made a motion, seconded by Ruiz, to concur, adopt the ordinance, 
issue a $2,500 fine and authorize the corporate authorities to affix their signatures thereto. The motion 
carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 

6. Deferred item from the Zoning, Planning and Development Commission regarding a request for variation 
and ordinance entitled: An Ordinance Approving a Variation to Build a Permitted Two-Family 
Residence on a Twenty-Five Foot Wide Lot within the R-3 Two-Family Residence Zoning District at 
the Address Commonly Known as 1514 S. Grove Avenue, Berwyn, Illinois - Felicita Wojtasik. 
Thereafter, A vila made a motion, seconded by Santoy, to concur, adopt the ordinance and authorize the 
corporate authorities to affix their signatures thereto. The motion carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 

7. Public Works Director Robert Schiller submitted a communication requesting authorization of Emergency 
Expenditure for clearing of 655 alleys. Thereafter, Lennon made a motion, seconded by Avila, to concur and 
approve payment in an amount not to exceed $22,907. The motion carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 

8. Interim Library Director Tammy Sheedy submitted a communication requesting authorization to advertise 
and hire library staff to fill the vacancies of Library Page Collection Management (15 hours); Library 
Assistant I Audio Visual (20 hours) and Library II Collection Management (40 hours). Mayor Lovero stated 
that the 2018 budget had not yet been passed and therefor, the position of Library II Collection Management 
should be deferred. Thereafter, Lennon made a motion, seconded by Reardon, to amend the communication 
on its face to defer approval of the latter position and authorize the advertising of the two positions as 
requested. The motion carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 

9. The consent agenda with items K-l through K-6 were submitted: 
1. Payroll: 2/2112018 $1,149,381.49 
2. Payables: 2127/2018 $710,145.96 

1 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 5

Berwyn City Council Minutes 
February 27, 2018 

3. Commodore Barry Post 256: Participation in the Green Mile Pub 3116/2018 
4. Emerson School: Family Literacy Night 4/24/2018 
5. Collection & Licensing Reports for the month of January, 2018 
6. Handicap Parking Application #1 189 - 3801 S. Wenonah- Override to Approve Space 

Thereafter, Avila made a motion, seconded by Ruiz, to concur and approve the Consent Agenda as 
presented by omnibus vote designation. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

10. Alderman Fejt called a Building & Zoning Committee meeting for March 6th at 5:30 ~m at City Hall. 
Alderman Santoy called a Budget & Finance Committee meeting for March 1st and 6 ,2018 at 6:30 pm at 
City Hall, as previously called. 

I I. There being no further business to come before the Council, Avila made the motion, seconded by Lennon, 
to adjourn at the hour of 8:17p.m. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

Respectfully submitted, 

l!:" . Ci<y e1"'" ~ 

2 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 6

March 7, 2018 

berwyn development 
COR P 0 RAT 0 N Mayor Robert J. Lovero and 

3322 S. Oak Park Avenue 
Second Floor 
Berwyn, IL 60402 
708.788.8100 
Fax: 708.788.0966 
www.berwyn.net 

Members of the Berwyn City Council 
6700 West 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

Re: Consideration for Loan Approval, The Berwyn Bottega 

Dear Mayor and Members of the City Council, 

The Berwyn Development Corporation's Board of Directors and Commercial Loan Commission 
have reviewed and provided a recommendation for a new loan to The Berwyn Bottega which 
wDuld be located at 6714 Cermak Road. Loan proceeds would be for the acquisition of the 
building and renovation of the interior space. The acquisition would create a new business on 
Cermak Road, occupying a longstanding vacant space that is in need of building code upgrades. 

A local resident with two business partners has created this startup. This is a new business 
concept (small special event space rented by the hour) that has been successful in Chicago and 
other densely pDpulated areas. The applicants have actually been approved for a loan for this 
concept at a different location, but unfortunately they were unable to clDse on the property due 
to miscommunication during the final stages of the transaction. The new location on Cermak is 
actually better equipped to accommodate their business' needs such as space and parking. 
Attached is the executive summary from their business plan. 

The request is for $150,000 which would be used for acquiring and renovating the building at 
6714 Cermak Road. They have agreed to terms on a purchase price of $139,000, and a licensed 
cDntractor has estimated a renovatiDn budget of $38,900. The business has the needed equity 
for the remainder and will use additional owner equity for any expenses in excess of $150,000 
and start-up capital. These funds have been verified by the BDC. The Berwyn Development 
Corporation has reviewed the business plan, financial history of the business partners, credit 
rating, and sales contract as part of the loan application review process. The recently appraised 
value of the property stands at $265,000 as is which allows for a great loan to value ratio. 
Additionally, the Loan Commission reviewed the debt service ratio to ensure the ability to repay 
the loan based on the submitted business plan. 

The recommended terms of the application is a five (5) year commercial loan, priced at BDC 
prime rate plus 2; with a floor of 7% APR which is adjusted annually and amortized over a twenty 
(20) year period. The collateral for the loan is the property of 6714 Cermak Road, Berwyn, IL, 
personal guarantees of the three business owners, and security interest on any business assets. 
Based on the performance of the Borrower, this loan would be eligible for IDan renewal(s) up to 
the 20 year amortization. The BDC would have special legal counsel draft the needed loan 
documents for the protection of the City and BDC. 

Respeqfully submitted for your consideratiDn, 

~ . / 
"~M,"d'~T 
Interim Executive Director 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 7

berwyn development 
COf'lPOr.AT I ON 

March 7, 2018 

Priscilla Lopez 
634813'· 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

Aris Avanessian 
452 Norman Ct 
Des Plaines, /L 60016 

Gerordo Diaz 
21570 Redwood Ln, Apt E 
Watertown, NY 13601 

Berwyn Development Corporation Commercial Loan Application Conditional Preliminary 
Commitment Letter 

Dear Priscilla, Aris, and Gerardo: 

We are pleased to offer you the following conditional loan commitment for the acquisition of 
6714 West Cermak Road in order to establish your business for a total loan of ONE HUNDRED 
FIFTY THOUSAND AND 00/100 DOLLARS ($150,000.00). This is subject to and satisfaction of 
the conditions set forth below along with BDC Board of Director's approval and Berwyn City 
Council approval: 

BORROWER 
The Berwyn Bottega 

Priscilla Lopez, Aris Avanessian, and Gerardo Diaz (business owners and personal) 

LOAN AMOUNT 
Total of loan proceeds to not exceed $150,000.00, which is eighty percent (80%) loan to total 
cost ofthe property. 

A) ONE HUNDRED FORIY FIVE THOUSAND AND 00/100 DOLLARS ($145,000.00) as proceeds 
to be used for the acquisition and remodeling of 6714 West Cermak Road. 

B) FIVE THOUSAND AND 00/100 DOLLARS ($5,000.00) as proceeds to pay for funding the 
loan. 

COLLATERAL/SECURITY 
A) A 1" Real Estate Mortgage on property located at 6714 West Cermak Road, Berwyn, IL 

60402. The final legal description of property to be mortgaged must be satisfactory to the 
Berwyn Development Corporation. 

B) 1" lien security interest on the business assets of The Berwyn Bottega. 

3 2 5 0 k P k A 
C) Assignment of rent from the aforementioned property 

32 . a ar venue 

Second Floor 
Berwyn, IL 60402 
708.788.8100 
fax: 708.788.0966 
www.berwyn.net 

D) Personal guaranties of Priscilla Lopez, Aris Avanesslan, and Gerardo Diaz. 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 8

berwyn development 
COR PuR t. - I :J ,I 

ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS 
A) Approval by the Berwyn City Council. 

B) Verification of fully paid tax receipts for the collateralized properties prior to loan closing. 

C) Buildout will be funded through a construction escrow with up to three (3) draws. 

D) Property taxes to be escrowed with monthly BDC payment. 

INTEREST RATE AND TERM 
Five (5) year commercial loan, priced at a fixed rate of 7%, fully amortized over a twenty (20) 
year period. 

GUARANTORS 
Unlimited Unsecured Guarantee of Priscilla Lopez, Aris Avanessian, and Gerardo Diaz. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Borrower shall maintain its present business form and organization, comply with all applicable 
laws, and continue to conduct and operate its business substantially as conducted and 
operated at present. 

TITLE INSURANCE 
Commitment for mortgage title insurance, without exceptions, satisfactory to the Berwyn 
Development Corporation to be furnished. The final mortgage title insurance policy to show 
clear title to be in the Borrower's name and will insure the Berwyn Development Corporation 
in the principal amount of the loan as having a first security interest in the property at 6714 
West Cermak Road, Berwyn, IL 60402. 

COSTS 
It is understood that the mortgagor shall pay all costs pertaining to this loan which may 
include the following: processing fee, mortgage title insurance policy, appraisal, survey, legal, 
recording fees, and any other incidental expenses as may be required by the Berwyn 
Development Corporation or the Berwyn Development Corporation's attorney which are 
estimated at $5,000.00 

HAZARD INSURANCE 
Borrower will also be reqUired to provide Hazard Insurance in an amount equal to the full 
replacement value of the collateral, but in no event less than the amount of the Loan. An 
insurance company satisfactory shall provide the policy to the Berwyn Development 
Corporation. All Risk extended coverage endorsements is required. Borrower will be 
required to provide a letter from an authorized agent statmg that all premiums are paid and 

3322 S.Oak Park Avenue that the policy IS In full force and effect. The Berwyn Development Corporation is to be 

Second Floor properly designated in a Lender's Loss Payable Clause and Standard Mortgage Clause as 
Berwyn, IL 60402 Mortgagee under the policy. In addition, all cancellation clauses shall provide that the 
708.788.81 00 

fax: 708.788.0966 

www.berwyn.net 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 9

berwyn development 
CORPOP.AT O~! 

3322 S. Oak Park Avenue 

Second Floor 

Berwyn, IL 60402 
708.788.8100 

fax; 708.788.0966 

www.berwyn.net 

Berwyn Development Corporation be given thirty (30) days written notice prior to any 
cancellation, termination, or policy expiration. 

COMMITMENT ACCEPTANCE 
Upon your acceptance and proof of conditions outlined above, the Berwyn Development 
Corporation will proceed with processing the application for final and ultimate approval by 
the BDC Board of Directors and Berwyn City Council. Terms and conditions will be set by loan 
documents prepared after final approval. Please acknowledge your acceptance below as 
indicated and return it to our office at 3322 Oak Park Ave. Berwyn, IL 60402. If you have any 
questions about any material contained in this commitment, feel free to contact me at 
(708)788-8100. 

Jousef Mondrag n Accepted by: 
Interim Executive irector By: ____________ _ 

Borrower Date: _____ _ 

Accepted by: 
By: _____________ _ 

Borrower Date: _____ _ 

Accepted by: 
By: ______________ _ 

Borrower Date: _____ _ 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 10

6712-14 W. Cennak: Rd., Berwyn, IL, 60402 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Berwyn Bottega is excited to launch a startup to introduce a unique, versatile 
and creative event space in Berwyn. 

The event space rental industry has shifted in recent years, and the current trend 
lies in shared or peer-to-peer concepts. People lack the space to host events; small 
businesses can't afford prices of hotel conference rooms, artists need an affordable space 
to showcase their work and the average person does not want to overpay for a large 
banquet hall. This is especially true in the highly populated Chicago land area with dense 
rental communities. People demand aVailability, customizable pricing and space 
versatility, The Berwyn Bottega plans on giving them all those things. 

This new concept allows The Berwyn area to diversify its business portfolio and 
strengthen its image as a growing dining, arts and entertainment destination. We envision 
an event space that can be used for any occasion: formal, private gatherings, 
entrepreneurial workspace, creative showcases, etc. This concept has seen great success 
in various other cities including within Chicago's city limits. However nothing like this 
exists in Berwyn and we are confident there will be even greater success in the City of 
Homes. 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 11

ABOUT THE BERWYN BOTTEGA PARTNERSHIP 

The Berwyn Bottega is an event and creative space rental start-up founded in September 
2017 through a mutual partnership between family and friends. 

Priscilla Grace Lopez - A Berwynite young professional turned entrepreneur. Priscilla 
is a natural creative with a keen sense for marketing. Her expertise is primarily in public 
relations and communications but has experience in journalism, digital storytelling, 
market research and business management. Her interests include hospitality and 
empowering young women through her blog, Latinaism.com. As co-owner and event 
coordinator, she is responsible for executing marketing and communication strategy and 
managing day-to-day business. 

Gerardo Diaz - A Chicago Northsider for most of his childhood and lived in the Cicero 
and Berwyn area for most of his adult life undocumented. Despite all the challenges that 
carne along he managed to graduate from the University oflllinois at Chicago and 
maintained a career in engineering. After noticing that his life goals were not coming to a 
realization soon enough, he decided to bet on himself and became the founder and 
co-owner of Los Arnigos Mexican Restaurant in Evans Mills, NY. Having found great 
success in the service industry, he continues to look for more opportunities to bring 
people together because he believes that something that will not get old. He brings 
knowledge of starting from the ground up, and the "failing is not an option" attitude. 

Arls Avanessian - Born and raised in Des Plaines, III., the city of destiny, Aris has had 
an entrepreneurial spirit from a young age that drove him into many ventures since his 
youth. Being a conceptual thinker, he pursued and graduated from the Illinois Institute of 
Technology with an engineering degree. Soon after earned his Professional Engineer (PE) 
license. Aris continues to consult in his practice, in addition, to continuously seeking 
investment opportunities. 

J 
The Berwyn Bottega 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 12

MARKET TRENDS 

THE NEW NARRATIVE IN THE EVENTS INDUSTRY 
• Event spaces as unique as each host are better for events than ballrooms or 

boardrooms. Among its users, are a large number of entrepreneurs, photographers, 
artists, and employees from the nation's largest businesses. 

THE RISE OF A SHARING ECONOMY 
• The rise in consumers raises the demand for spaces. Space is the new tradable 

commodity in today's popular sharing economy, especially in high density living 
areas. 

THE FAST-GROWING MARKETPLACE 
• There's a fast-growing online marketplace for renting meeting spaces and other 

event locations. One of the most successful companies to expand on this idea for 
commercial spaces is Peerspace. The San Francisco-based company is an online 
marketplace listing an array of spaces for companies or individuals that can rent 
by the hour, day, week, or even month. Having found success in the West Coast 
they moved down to the East Coast, and 2016 marked its arrival in the Midwest in 
Chicago. The Peerspace marketplace grew 70% over the third quarter in 20 IS and 
nearly 1000% year over year over the first three quarters of2014. Many hosts 
who list their spaces, including galleries, warehouses and studios are earning over 
$5,000 in payouts per week. And over a third of guests are now regular users of 
the marketplace, as reported on Crowdfundinsider.com's November 2015 article. 

2 
The Berwyn Bottega 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 13

CASE STUDY 
One successful example of a venue dedicated to this shared space business model is 
Hummingbird Studios in Lincoln Park, Chicago. 

I I 
Unique. Bright UncaIn P.rk Converbld 

5....m.nt 

""* t:I _ .. -
Sft-.tho-..oi"!J1MiJ;JhbMlClad9l1lo ..... ~..tt._ 
botgIr. ard -..forabloo kilt W. IjIK1I io ... __ 1IIt II) tw. lor 
....... ." .... SI.'"' ... _~"7""'_IDocI"O 
~"-tM_af,......._ ......... _u 
1IntNn.O.rbrol>_"iolhoo",",~_ ... lorbo.lor 
~DridoI_,I"""""'r~,"""_ld1M~ 

~--po,..,""""'----""'-"""""' ..ec....,. ........ - .... _-brab
",...... __ --.lIMpondi"ll "" """" .............. _ 
...... _<ld,II." .. ~ toll!. -.I dooifs _ poovnd. WIo ..... 
~J .......... _ .... )'O .... _."' ..... -......M .. -

- 51aac: 

."" .. ' 
'-, 

FC::' :::I' ~ ~. 

0080 

• Converted 1,000 sq. t1 store front space will full kitchen offers base hourly rate 
for parties of 50 or less at a time 

• Customizable pricing available based on guests' needs 
• Less than a year in business, but already sees steady growth with consistent 

positive revenue generating up to 15,000 a month 
• Events vary from private parties to workshops 

3 
The Berwyn Bottega 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 14

berwyn development 
I ORPORAT ON 

3322 S. Oak Park Avenue 
Second Floor 
Berwyn, IL 60402 
708.788.8100 
Fax: 708.788.0966 
www.berwyn.net 

March 13, 2018 

The Honorable Robert J. Lovero, Mayor 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 
Berwyn City Hall 
6700 W. 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

Re: Route 66 Car Show 
Request to Hold Show and Close Ogden Avenue 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

On behalf of the Berwyn Preservation of Historic Route 66, a committee of 
the Berwyn Development Corporation, we are pleased to request City 
Council approval to hold the 28th Annual Route 66 Car Show and to close 
Ogden Avenue, between Ridgeland and Oak Park Avenue, on Saturday, 
August 25,2018 from 6:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

Your past support has contributed to making this event a tremendous 
success for the Berwyn community. Anticipating your approval of the 
attached Resolution, we will forward the same to the Illinois Department of 
Transportation for their final approval of the street closing. 

Thank you for your assistance regarding this important project. The Route 
66 Car Show will continue to grow in popularity, providing a great source of 
family fun for area residents and helping all of us promote the good things 
happening in Berwyn. 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 15

• • 

RESOLUTION 

Whereas, the Berwyn Development Corporation 's Route 66 Car Show Committee of 
the City of Berwyn, Illinois desires to hold their 28th Annual Route 66 Car Show on 
Route 34, also known as U.S. Route 66, on August 25, 2018, from 6 a.m. to 
5 p.m. 

Whereas, said event will require the closing of Route 34 completely between 
Ridgeland Avenue and Oak Park Avenue, and 

Whereas, The State of Illinois requires the City of Berwyn to assume all responsibility 
and liability involved in the closing of said highway. 

Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved that the City of Berwyn will assume full responsibility 
for the direction, protection, and regulation of traffic during the time the detour 
is in effect, and all liabilities for damages of any kind occasioned by the closing 
of said State route. 

It is further agreed that efficient, all-weather detours will be maintained, 
conspicuously marked, and judiciously patrolled for the benefit of traffic 
deviated from the State route. 

Adopted by the City Council of Berwyn this ____ d,ay of ____ , 2018 

Mayor ________________________ ___ 

Attest ______________ City Clerk 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 16

berwyn 
CORPORA 

3322 S. Oak Park Avenue 
Second Floor 
Berwyn, IL 60402 
708.7B8.8100 
Fax: 708.788.0966 
www.berwyn.net 

N 
March 13, 2018 

Pace Suburban Bus 
550 W. Algonquin Road 
Arlington Heights, IL 60005 

Attention: Erik Llewellyn 

RE: OGDEN AVENUE STREET CLOSING 

After receiving permission from the City of Berwyn and lOOT, this letter 
serves as notice that Ogden Avenue will be closed to all traffic on 
Saturday, August 25,2018, from 5:00 a.m. to approximately 5:00 p.m. 
due to the annual Route 66 Car Show. 

West and east bound truck detours will be as follows: 

Ridgeland Avenue south to 39th
, west on 39th to Oak Park, 

north to Ogden 

OGDEN WILL BE CLOSED FROM OAK PARK - RIDGELAND. BOTH 
OF THOSE STREETS WILL BE OPEN FOR NORTH-SOUTHBOUND 
TRAFFIC. 

If you need further information, please call me at the Berwyn 
Development Corporation at (708) 788-8100 or email 
sandeb@berwvn.net 

Thank you for your attention to this matter. 

Sincerely, 

Sande Brennan 
Special Events Coordinator 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 17

The City of Berwyn 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

March 13,2018 

Members of City Council 

Re: Appointment to Fire Pension Board & Police Pension Board 

Council Members: 

Robert}. Lovero .F I 
Mayor 

Assistant Finance Director, Benjamin Daish, has resigned from his position on the Fire Pension Board and the 
Police Pension Board effective March 13, 2018 

I am asking City Council to concur with my appointment of Berwyn City Treasurer, Cynthia Gutierrez, as a 
voting member on both Fire Pension and Police Pension Boards. Cynthia Gutierrez will complete Ben Daish's 
tenus as follows: 

Fire Pension Board from 0311312018 to 0510112020 
Police Pension Board from 03113/2018 to 04129/2019 

Thank you for your anticipated cooperation and consent. 

Respectfully, 

Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

6700 West 26" Street Berwvn.lllinoil 60402.0701 Tdephone: (708) 788·2660 Fax: (708) 788.2567 www.berwyn.iLgov 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 18

The City of Berwyn 

March 13,2018 

Members of City Council 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

Re: Tony's Finer Foods-Fresh Market, 7111 W . Cermak Road, Economic Incentive Agreement 

Council Members: 

Please find the attached Economic Incentive Agreement pertaining to the above captioned grocery store which 
will be relocating at 7111 W. Cermak Rd. It has taken a lot of hard work on behalf of the Mayor's Office and 
staff, the Berwyn Development Corporation's Executive Duector, Tony Griffm and staff, the Cermak Plaza 
owners and the owners of Tony's Finer Foods-Fresh Market. I applaud everyone's cooperation in filling the 
vacancy and appreciate the cooperation of tins City Council m understanding the financial implications 
involved in this transaction. 

Therefore, I take great pleasure in presenting the Economic Incentive Agreement and ask Council to approve 
and authorize the execution of this agreement. 

Respectfully, () _ 

C-WJ l1~ 
Robert 1. Lovero 
Mayor 

6700 West 26· Street Berwyn, Ulinou 60402'()701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 F"", (70s) 788·2567 www.berwyn-iLgov 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 19

THE CITY OF BERWYN 
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

ORDINANCE 
NUMBER __ _ 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY TO ENTER INTO A CERTAIN 
AGREEMENT WITH TONY'S FINER FOODS TO PROVIDE ECONOMIC 
INCENTIVES FOR THE REDEVELOPMENT OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 
LOCATED WITHIN THE CITY OF BERWYN, COUNTY OF COOK, STATE OF 
ILLINOIS 

Robert J. Lovero, Mayor 
Margaret Paul, City Clerk 

James "Scott" Lennon 
Jose Ramirez 

Jeanine Reardon 
Robert Fejt 

Cesar A. Santoy 
Alicia Ruiz 

Rafael Avila 
Edgar Garcia 

Aldermen 

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the Mayor aod City Clerk of the City of Berwyo 00 March _, 
1018. 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 20

ORDINANCE No. ___ _ 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY TO ENTER INTO A CERTAIN 
AGREEMENT WITH TONY'S FINER FOODS TO PROVIDE ECONOMIC 
INCENTIVES FOR THE REDEVELOPMENT OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 
LOCATED WITHIN THE CITY OF BERWYN, COUNTY OF COOK, STATE OF 
ILLINOIS 

WHEREAS, the City of Berwyn (the "City") is a home rule unit ofIocal government as is 

provided by Article VII, Section 6(a) of the Constitution of the State oflllinois, adopted in 1970 and, 

as such, may exercise various powers and perfonn numerous functions pertaining to its government 

and affairs in any manner not otherwise prohibited by law; and 

WHEREAS, the City is authorized under provisions of the Illinois Constitution of 1970 to 

contract and otherwise associate with individuals, associations and corporations in any manner not 

prohibited by law and to use public funds for public purposes, and is further authorized by state law 

to enter into sales tax sharing agreements whereby the City will share certain sales tax proceeds with 

a retailer to incentivize the retailer to expand its operations within the City; and 

WHEREAS, Tony's Finer Foods ("Tony's'') proposes to redevelop a vacant portion of a 

shopping center (the "Property"), which is legally described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a 

part hereof; and 

WHEREAS, Tony's specifically intends to develop the vacant shopping center space with a 

new Tony's retaiIIgrocery store (the "Tony's Store'') on the Property, (hereinafter collectively 

referred to as the "Project"); and 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that the development ofretail operations such as those 

proposed by Tony's is a highly competitive endeavor, and that the successful completion of the 

Tony's Store at the Property at this time necessitates the use of a variety of incentives and approvals, 

J 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 21

including, but not limited to, the payment of retailers' occupation tax incentives as permitted by state 

law; and 

WHEREAS, Tony's cannot successfully undertake the Project or any substantially and 

functionally equivalent development of the Property without the ability to obtain retailers' 

occupation tax incentives pursuant to the City's home rule powers; and 

WHEREAS, after due and careful consideration, the City has determined that it is in the best 

interests of the City to enter into an agreement to provide economic incentives to Tony's for the 

Project (the "Agreement''), attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B, pursuant to its 

authority as a home rule unit oflocal government and pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth 

therein; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City Council (collectively, the "Corporate Authorities") 

recognize that, but for the economic assistance to be provided by the City, the redevelopment of the 

Property would not be economically viable; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities have determined that the redevelopment of the 

Property is in the best interests of the City as it will, among other things, aid the City in: (a) creating 

and retainingjob opportunities; (b) furthering the development of adjacent areas; (c) strengtheuing 

the commercial sector of the City; and (d) enhancing the tax base of the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities find that it is necessary for the economic vitality of 

the City that the City execute, enter into and approve an agreement with terms substantially the same 

as the tenns of the Agreement; and 

2 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 22

WHEREAS, the Mayor is authorized to enter into and the City's legal counsel is authorized 

to revise agreements for the City making such insertions, omissions and changes as shall be approved 

by the Mayor and the City's legal counsel; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois, by and through its home rule powers, as follows: 

Section 1. The statements set forth in the preamble to this Ordinance are found to be true 

and correct and are incorporated into this Ordinance as if set forth in full. 

Section 2. The City Council hereby finds and determines that it is necessary and 

advisable and otherwise in the best interests of the City to execute, enter into and approve an 

agreement with terms substantially the same as the terms of the Agreement. 

Section 3. The Agreement is hereby approved with such insertions, omissions and 

changes as shall be approved by the Mayor and the City's legal counsel. 

Section 4. The City's legal counsel is hereby authorized to negotiate and undertake any 

and all actions on the part of the City to effectuate the intent of this Ordinance. 

Section 5. The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute the applicable 

Agreement, with such insertions, omissions and changes as shall be approved by the Mayor and the 

City's legal counsel, and the City Council further authorizes the Mayor or his designee to execute 

any and all additional documentation that may be necessary to carry out the intent of this Ordinance. 

The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and countersign any such documents, as 

required. 

Section 6. All prior actions of the City's officials, employees and agents with respect to 

the subject matter of this Ordinance are hereby expressly ratified. 

3 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 23

Section 7. The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be severable, and 

should any provision of this Ordinance be detennined to be in conflict with any law, statute or 

regulation by a court of competent jurisdiction, said provision shall be excluded and deemed 

inoperative, unenforceable and as though not provided for herein, and all other provisions shall 

remain unaffected, unimpaired, valid and in full force and effect. 

Section 8. All ordinances, re.solutions, rules and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict 

herewith are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby superseded. 

Section 9. This Ordinance shall be immediately in full force and effect after passage, 

approval and pUblication. A full, true and complete copy of this Ordinance shall be published in 

pamphlet form as provided by the illinois Municipal Code, as amended. 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.] 

4 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 24

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Berwyn, Cook County, illinois on this 

__ day of March 2018, pursuant to a roll call vote, as follows: 

YES NO ABSENT 
Lennon 

Ramirez 

Reardon 

Fejt 

Santoy 

Ruiz 

Avila 

Garcia 

(Mayor Lovero) 

TOTAL 

APPROVED this __ day of March 2018. 

ATIEST: 

Margaret Paul 
CITY CLERK 

5 

Robert J. Lovero 
MAYOR 

PRESENT 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 25

EXHIBIT A 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

6 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 26

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

CERMAK PlAZA SHOPPING CENTER 

COOK COUNTY - BERWYN, IUINOIS 

THAT PART OF LOT 1 (EXCEPT TIlOSE PARTS FALLING IN STREET) OF THE CIRCUIT COURT PARilllON OF 

THE WEST PART OF THE NORTIlWEST 1/4 AND TIlE WEST PART OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 3D, 
TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, LYING NORTH OF A 
STRAIGHT LINE RUNNING FROM A POINT IN THE EAST LINE OF SOUTH HARLEM AVENUE, 1590.99 FEET 
NORTH OF ITS INTERSECTION OF WEST 26TH STREET TO A POINT IN THE WEST LINE OF SOUTH HOME 

AVENUE, 971.94 FEET SOUTH OF ITS INTERSECTION WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF WEST CERMAK ROAD. 

(AND ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM ALL TIlAT PORTION CONVEYED TO THE STATE OF ILLINOIS BY 

WARRANTY DEED RECORDED JULY 28, 1964 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 19198042 BOUNDED AND 
DESCRIBED AS FOlLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST 1/4 CORNER OF SAID SECTION 30, THENCE EAST ALONG THE NORTH 

LINE OF SAID SECTION 30 A DISTANCE OF 1374.29 FEET TO THE EXTENDED WEST LINE OF HOME 
AVENUE, AS TIlE SAME IS NOW LOCATED AND ESTABLISHED, THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE WEST LINE OF 
HOME AVENUE AND THE SAME EXTENDED A DISTANCE OF 60 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE WEST IN A 

STRAIGHT LINE PARALLEL TO AND DISTANT 60 FEET SOUTH, MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM SAID 
NORTH LINE OF SECTlON 30, A DISTANCE OF 286.00 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH IN A STRAIGHT 
LINE MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES TO TIlE LAST DESCRIBED COURSE, A DISTANCE OF 5.00 FEET TO A 

POINT; TIlENCE WEST IN A STRAIGHT LINE PARALLEL TO AND DISTANT 65.00 FEET SOUTH, MEASURED 
AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM SAID NORTH LINE OF SEcnON 30, A DISTANCE OF 9n.86 FEET TO A POINT OF 
CURVATURE; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG A CURVED LINE CONCAVE TO THE SOUTHEAST, HAVING 
A RADIUS OF 65.00 FEET AND A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 90 DEGREES, 22 MINUTES, 30 SECONDS, A 
DISTANCE OF 102.S1 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY IN THE EAST LINE OF HARLEM AVENUE AS THE 

SAME IS NOW LOCATED AND ESTABLISHED, DISTANT SO.OO FEET EAST MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES 
FROM THE WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 30; THENCE WEST IN A STRAIGHT LINE, A DISTANCE OF 50.00 
FEET TO A POINT IN THE WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 30; THENCE NORTH ALONG THE WEST LINE OF 
SAID SECTION 30; A DISTANCE OF 130.43 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING (EXCEPTING THAT PART OF 
THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PREMISES PREVIOUSLY DEDICATED OR NOW USED FOR HARLEM AVENUE AND 
CERMAK ROAD), ALLIN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 27

I' • 

ExmBlTB 
AGREEMENT 

7 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 28

. 

I 

ECONOMlC ·~M~REEMENr 

this Econmnic· In~eiUh>e Agteeuaent (" ApeRIent") Is ~ into 'ihi! 3.f!1" day of 
January, 2018, by and ~1Ije ClTY QF BERwm,an llItnoiun!Ulit:ipal Wrporatioo. .(tho 
~ and TONY'S FINEa FOOl)S ~terprioes, IDe. an llIinois com<lJ!l*iOJl. ("TOllY .... ) 
(tbeCity and TOllY's ~ ~ betefeDlld to as Ii -Pu1y" and !'QJleC!ively ~ to as 
"Pard",,,). 

J!E<lITALS 
'W$IlEA$, 1h.o City is a.hotnItrulnillllliclpall.ty ~to Article W, SccI'i!)ll «Ii) of 

~!! JlliIIDis CoIlJlil:Ution of 1910. IIlIl! may .exOJCiBe ~ power and per!onnllllY filtie(j0ll 
pCitainlI\g.1di1ii govetmruillt and IIffaim; and 

'w1ll!Rt!AS. the Cltr bas 1he III;IIbotitr. putIllllUIt to II» raws of the sttIte of Illinou., to 
J>romote the biattll, safety; and wettlIre Cif 1he ·Cityand its residents, W ~ttbe spread of 
blight to ~~ prl~ Qevel!l~ ~ Qli\er to ;;nbllfil:"l ~ lo¢til tliX bllSt. to in~ 
cmplo~ and to'~~ il!w ~tilIIl ~ with <lOvciopCt; @Ii ~ m-1f)C 
~ ofliQhimng ~ ~jeeti~ '1iIId 

WHI!REAS. tile City it ~ WIle!; the~1iioII& of Art. VJl, S=on 10 tif the 
IIliDoil! COIIStitulion of 1910 to CQ~.1I!!4 Q~ assooiatcwith in4!vidqlll1l, associations, 
and co~ in 'lIlY IIl8I1Ilet' !l<>t~ by law; and 

~. the City is au.~ and ... the ~($I of Art. vm of1l>e State ofllJJnois 
ConstitlitiPii to _ publib limcis for public P1Ili'O!Ie,i l!i1d 

WJIEREA$. lhe.CityiudditlCna1ly 8lJfIml:MCl by 65 US 518-1I~(} III .gt'I!Irt ~· ·tiIX 
te~ III!det1lCrtain dn: __ ~s; and 

WHEIUlA.S. Ttmy's is /Il'OJIosing to ~l\lP a ~ portion of a shoI'P~ c:ento;r. The 
~ center is le~y desoribed ill EUiblt 1<, auaehed heJ'eto and made a pert ~ 
(he;eimjfter letl:ned 10 lIS the "PropWly''). 'rony's ~iilWly intends to devCiol' the ~ 
sbc\pplng ~ ;pee with a new Tony's I1:!W /'f):OOtIty stOre. (the "tony's Store'') 'on the 
PtQpeny, ~iln\ft&rC(jUecfiYdy ~ to .... the "Projecf'); ~ 

WHBREAS.1he ~. has ~ed that the dC1/~ Qfretall ~QiIS IIUCh lIS 

those c:outemplmO heJeill is a lIil!!ily omnpctitiVQ ~YO!'. IInI'l thI¢ the ~~ cDil1P1e1ion 
of the TonY's SUmo at Ih¢ 1'ro1JMy at thiI time necessitet(:S tb!l ~e ora wliety 0'1' inc:eD!ives IIJId 
approvals, jnj:ludiJ)g, bUt not ~ to, the paYJllent 'Qf Jatailors' OCCIIpation 1M inccmive$ 
p.ettnittedby 65 ILCS: $18-11-'20; and 

WWllU>AS. Tony's caruwt lIlICCeBSfuIly llIJdcrWce the Projector any subs~y end 
Wr!cti~ eq.ujva!eIIt development at the Pro)ll'!i'!y '\1Ii1hout the ability tQ o~ i$lll'm' 
oCCU,pstiOil.lt1cetItivcs pursuant tQ the City's Home-Rule Powers; and 

1 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 29

WHERBAS, after duo ~ c~fiaI COII8idoratloo, tM city hllll detennirwi that i( if! ilIlhe 
~ interests of the Cjty 10 enter Into Ibis Agreement 10 prov.idoecOilolili~it)l;enlives 10 Ti)JIt'. 
for the Proj~ purslllint to lIS .ulliority as a home rule unit (If J(lcaJ government and putII_t 10 
the lennslind eondlti(lDB hereinafter set f(lrth. 

WHEREAS, the. City, throt!SI! its ~ratc aulhoritief, tmds: 

(a} That the buij4lnp on the Property hllvcaemained; and 

(b) ~ buiJ4ings t)Q the Property iIK;ludlnj, witbout ~on, the site of the 
Tony'. Slo~. PI'Ovide potentW (or -.omic growth In the City; lind 

(c) That the Project is expected to ~ or retain job opportunities wi1hUI the 
City;iIid 

(d)'l'hat the Project will serve to tlirthar'the deYelopmeiltotadjaceat -. aud 

(0) That without 1bis ~t '8Illi the incemiws -provided bmdn. the .l'lqjeet 
WI:IUld IIOt be l'onible; IiDd 

(1) Tony's has submitted d~n to the City PM'iIl8 its aedit w~; 
lind . 

(g) That iho Project Wil1 ~en the comniQtcia! $~ (l{the City; IIIJd 

(b) 'l'hatihoProjeetwiJ1 enhance 1be_base ofihoCity; 8IId 

(i) 'I'h!¢this ASl'eeJlleliti$ m!l4ln the bestintmos! of the City. 

NOW, nffi1U!FORE, In consideralion of the iIIUI1!IIl \lCIVIID8l1ts 8IId promises hc!IeiDatlet 
set forth, tho ~ptimd sufftoiCIIPY of whiCh fW· hereby mutually lIQlaw~dg¢4 iIY the Parties, 
the City omd TonY'$· b_br agteeas follows: 

1. R!s,it!1. The furegoing tecifals are ~ itlcll1'pOJllt«\ iJIto 1bis ~ment as if 
fully set forth hcnIln. The City speciftcU1t ~ the following fuJdinSS of fact: 

A. The TODY'S Store on the Property Ja an lmport&nt~Vllloprttel1t to ~ the overell 
objectives of the City tb.eI:eby implementing and 1ItIngiIig to l.lODlpietioD a siguificant plw!ned 
development. 

B. ~ City has eomplied with .u notice pro<:!ldurea and requirements with respect to 
entering into this Agreomeat. 

C. The City desir$ to have the Property developed In IIcconlaDce with andplltBUa,nt 
to tbis Agreement to cw:e the blight existing thetB!m. to promote the hcllth, safety, and we!faze 
of the City lind its tesidents, to prevent the sprelld of the blighted conditicms and ~ 

2 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 30

l 
I 
r 
1 

10 umournvo l\Ir\hor prlvGIO Inv~8l111ont 8IICI deveillpl1llll\, enhaoce the City'. tax 1x\Ie, to 
incroWle Clilpltl}'mcml opponuolliol la~ City !Uldcnl~ II!id enl\l!l!ce tbe 11ItI!re tax rovenues for 
100. O\ICI'lytnll: 1IIlttnll bodI08 IhaI lev)' lax.eI on Ib.o i'rqpcl't)t, IIId within tho ,1'01. . . . 

D, TolI)". lies ropruoltUlCl to the CIIy 111a1, but fur. finaJiolll c:o"trlbUlion from the 
City provided fur lIerolll,1/iO Pl'IijOllt Is not ~nomk:tilly feulble ISId TonYI would not 
undert.lIe !lie PiOjcol, 

E. The term, of thla A!lNomont Il1'O bll)dJlIlI on TOI»". an411))' related or 8\I-.sor 
entlly havin, 1\I1)/ .fiJwlUlial Interest in !he Pn;)j~. Wh~j'e 1:1.~ warrant, referooq to 
Tony's horeln shall apply 10 Tony'. or any retalef!, agent, I\I~ or· lI8I~ of TOII)" •• 

A. QQc~, Tile PiII\i.,. altOii to ~ such actilili_, ~lu~ the ~OIlQ(i\lll· an4 
delivery of s.1I!lh dOiil\mcms, WllrIllilDnlf. peli\iClIIi and oettIflcationl. ,. woll Q ijm·lIdoption. of 
sucl1 ·oriIIiIallCtiJ and relolutioQll as may be neoestary orlfllll'OPri1lte, t'rcIm tin:w .I!I .•• to alIT)' 
out the tenna. pl'QV\siollJ! and Inlent orlbi. Aaroetaeat and to aid 'lIId a~st eiu1n ()1her in ~in~ 
ouf 8IIdt tcrml.1'I'O¥ilIiDllJ! lI\dintent. 

B. 4Q~I.. The P~ea I~ COIijIorIIIe fIIlly with I*lh ~ in ~IJ the 
Project lI/Id illl~114 lI/Id obtllinii18 from. any or ali appropriate lWv!ll'ilmontal bo4ies (Whelbot 
fedeI'l!1; stat ... l';O\IIIty ~>r lliCi!l) any jUlCestary )IerDIilJ, itiidll~lIWIt8lii1d ~ Rlq~ I)r 
usefulfO, ~ i)nptovemtlitDf' dio Pi.'Opmy .net e~I/'UCli:on of the·· Proj~ in and i!II tho 
Propcny.orfQl' ·~ ptQvisi01t<l(.t\'~ .~U11i ~~. ~~. f!QW!lVct. flUt ~ph 
sblill hOI creat.e ~ addiUonu libliJationa ot Cl)S\I «! oith~ ~ I:I\'to~se ;sp¢~1y 
conlcmlpllted in Ihis ~blneDt. Tony's Shall secure all neti~ coJPM~1C ~VlII9. 

C. City ~a!.. the CIty shal1 1_ all pennita and IIPPmvw. ~ fQr 
Tony'sWIIlerlliklnS ohlle Pro.\ectincludlns. withem limitation, p!eli~ plat, building and 
other pennlttr and eertlfieatea of occupancy. provided that T<lIIY'ssubmi\& all pl!tiliOQll and 
applications for BUch permits ad approvaIB and pays all feu required uruIet the I.4Wi! as detined 
""low, includinJl. but without Ilmi'-1ion. all applicable City orcUnanaes. sfabdards, rules. liD4 
reaulations. To the extcm the City ij pemUtfild by taw. the PlU'lies agl:'ee to e1I~cutl:q11 
documents and other instruments IeIIBOnably l'equirec\ by Tony'. lender lnconnection Wilh fbI' 
fllllDcihg of the Pn:ijeet and construction of the Project, provided the same ctea!C nq $lditll>nal 
material obliptl0lJ8 upon the City. 

3. _Tou,.ObllgdOlll'. 

A. De¥filogmept, Tony's, as a matorial inducement to the City to Incentive Revenue, 
;bDll tm4ertake the project to canstnICt an approximately 6\1,1113 square toot fWiservice grocery 
and jieneral ~d~ lito", on the Property. 

L NQtwithstandlna anytblni to the contrary Inthis SubseeUOD 3oA., TOllY's sbalI 
construct and install the Tony's Store on the l'roperty In ~ 

3 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 31

complilll)qe wi1b tile zoolll& .~ plan!!. 8!'Chiteclllral plaDa end el~atiODS, 
CIIginc;eriQg pl81l$, and plats, as approprbite,8Ubmitted to ~ appt()Vcd by aU 
neceslary Gi~ OOJiIml~iDns, boara., and dl:partmenta. Ton)". fhall lit all 
times operate and mai!llai.11 the Tony'. sI!n building in collfotmance with all 
appliCllbJiD City, state, and ~ hI,Wii, $flItu-. ordilJllfla'S, wdes; rules, and 
ft;gt!iations, tooIlIiiill8, without HmifillioJ'!, aIlapp~~ ZOIilitgordill8!1lle8, 
bliilding codes, environmemal codes, and life liRfefy co&a of the City 
("Laws"). 

Within 30 days of rcceivinJl projeq.t peamlUiq. Tony's ahall conunenoe collSWCtion Which is 
expected to take six (6) months. . 

. B. eon.truWgn Permits· No ~11, PDFoy~ or dev .. l~ of any 
kind shall be peD!littecl OD anx ponion of the Pt~ \I!I,II$ and unIil TOllY'. bas received 
approval from all necessary City commissions., board. and dqlartments, aDd bas been issued 
valid and blndirlll b1iUding pemilis end in eceon\aJIce with Laws. Further, no businoss operation 
or occupancy oCtile Pro~ QI&Y occur prior to the isswuwe ora valid and. binding ~cate of 
QCCIIPBIlCY. 

C. Em 1IIi!!. $xp""".' TOllY'S shaIJ. pay all ataodaJ:d feel! _if 011 a IIIiiWrm 
basis to the City for the Proiect.8$ provided by o~ exeeptfbr building permits IIDIi tap.on 
~ 

c. 8l!"mm ~ mem.' Tony's, prioJ to _pl<;tion of the Projel;t aodsubslantW 
oecupancy of 1hb Property, ShiIll !I& ~ any--.isn-t. of i.1B rights, 'bondI1B or.llbligations 
WIder th.. Agreement 1I!ilhout the Jlrior written oonse.nt of 1hb Ci~. other than transfers or 
a"$ignments to afflUatcd entities 88 ddined by Tooy's. whieh.sball be penn1t!eii witbo\it wtittcn 
\101I$Cqt,lnIt Ilstod herein lIS~a. ~""ythjnghaeln to the c:DnItaIl', Tl)ny'. 
may pcnfQfJU II col\atefal \l8Siglimerlitbr its CQII$trUCtIon and )\mnanen1financing of the Projedt. 

i. IQceptiyo Provided. Upon the issuance by the City of II .:ertiticate of 
oOCupaMy rOt thiD Tony's Store aad the 0CClIltrCDQe of the (ljleIIlng of the 
Tony's S~ to the general JlQblic to~ business (evid.eneed by TOllY'S \181 .. of 
110 1!:ss than Sl.OO of good!! to II custorn~), the City shail reimbutSc Tony's. 
,ubjcct to the provi$lbns of Section 4.0 below, a $JII eqWII to F'lfty Percent 
(S6%) Of tho IilceJ)tive Revenue (as definod belOW), to the extent tlIat such 
revenue was collected from or goqen.ted by lhe Tany'~Store and dis.~ to 
the City from the 81ate. 'The total amount of I1'imb~ei1ls that may ~ 
made pursuant tD this Agreement to Tony'l Bhall not exceed the sum of Fi"" 
Millioll, One HlIGdroId NIn .. ~-Nin.e Thousand, One Hundred 'I'womty. 'two and 
NoIlOO I>c)lIan (SS,l99,l22.00) (the "~lnbur&cmeDt ADlOUI1\"). Upon the 
receipt by Tony'. of the Reimburseme:nt Amount io Incent,ive Revenue 
reiJnbursement pilymentS heteunder, the riglrt of Tony's to ~ceive Incentive 

4 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 32

~ (as cI~ below) PlYinQlllS betcWide,.· ~I imlllediately tI:nninIrtc 
1IDd beoollleOfno tiIrdIcr 1bree or d'fe¢t. 

il.. S~ 'of IDcentiVIi. KInceolivc a-ue" means (l) t!>taI ~ from Iexes, 
'~ ~ IU¥I interest ~h are: peid t!> die Ci~ ftom !he Loc:Id 
~ent t .. l'wId.u _ted by an Ac:t Qilhe, UllDoi. ~ AsseInbiy, 
3,5 ILC:S 12OI;J, lIS mnendeQ,OIl ~ by ~ 'imd ~elbq\. oil the 
Pmpm)' IilJli'Ied to the TonY'S QpCF8!iQli; end (ii) 11\1 ~ from any taxes. 
~Ii~ end ~ ~eb ate pi!id IQ the 'Ci1Y fi'mn the Local Go_ent 
l'i!!lt Fun4 oil JiIIJes by recailers aDd ~ oil the P"'petty limited to the 
To:iiIy'$ ~Oh w.bleb ~ ~tolllP'-"' the current pa~", to die 
CRy &1'!\il1he L«al ~t T8lt F~ as eJIIIlCbid by law orootiDaDce of 
1beCit}' atId or any aovetmnental IiOtbority duting 'the Tenn of IbiS 
~dlt. 

v. l"~ 'J!l!YIIIeilt.r .. IIbligatioM IOldI!r tIaIa ~ent ~ DO( be :il 
~I a.ebt CiI"'obJilll'tioa due and D~ *hili> tbeCi'1 or CIuu"J!e IIJ!1IDat 
te. ~eiImd CFalit or tumg po"en, bat, •• Ubo- payab1!~ 101e1;y oat <If flie 
1lUUilcip!d .... ~ I!cJXeI (oX' real ~Ie w<bl~ if appJieallle) aftIlr 
fo1I1n.CI;!OR of 1Ii,e .~ .. s.t fOrth herein sa geam:ated by the TOliTa 
$tO-"-

If. SaIl!! Tnli!fitnnatioD.i qgnfidm~ 
i. ~ Tony's shall prepare: aDd submit such furm(s) lIS may be reqJIirecI from 

time In lillie by the Illinoi$ Deplllt\tlent of~in orik:r In reI_c all gross 
rcwnue and SIiles 181< int'otmatioa ~ the City. 

n. Q!gfirlenti!!! 1ntlmtiatiM, The City ~ges and ~e$ that the sales _ 
inforJ!i8tioll to '~ ~vided 1»' Tmty's heteulider is ptop:ictary and valuable 
j)\formatIon and 1hat any disclosure or lIIIlIUihorized use theseof will cause 
!rt"eparable lwIII In Tony's, To the extent pennitted by law, the City 8gtee$ to 
bold in confidenc.: all sales:figun:s IiOd olber Wfurmlltion proviile by Tony's 
or obtained 1iom records in ~ with tbia AgreeIXieru. The provisions 
of this ~11 sbeIlllUl'9ive tho temlililtliOllof~ Agteeptem. 

5 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 33

C.ImIl, S\1bject .to the tCllllll of ibis AgreeJMDt. the City hereby lIjII'C'es to pay the 
Incentive ReYe11\18 by quarterly ~yments o~ • lniIl(illll\tll of • twenty tivo-)'e8l" 
\J"riod (fur Silles hIX attriblltable to sales made between the Co~ent Date and 
the ond of the ~ty Pifth Payment Year..,. The ~F1rst Pll}'IIiellt YeiI!" sbl!llile a 
period conunenciJ\1! on the !late iIIe Timy's Slam is ope$! til the _eta! PJJbllc (the 
''Commencenlcnt Date'') III1d ending on the last clay of the !IIIll)e'mOJ:rth in the 
following year. Ba!:h subsequent yearsball be Mfemci to ~ • Payment Yeur and 
shall begm QIl 11\6' litst day 01 tbe month funowing the enll of Qle previous Payment 
Yoar. EAch q"""erly ~I shall be made no !a1\:r than thirty @O) days onony's 
sulnnittilig \lwIir STl to the illinois. ~t of ruw~ and til the City of 
lierwyn:s FiJl8llCC om.~ Topther with each ~yment ma<le the City shall, provide, itII 
s:alculation for dcterrnUllng suoh p!I,)'tJIIlIIt wbleh shall be solely Qa.se6 Oil IlImrmation 
provided to the City fro.1Il Tony'll t.biIt was pie\'iously geQGmtl:<l fii>1ll State ot'lilhloill 
calculations reguding the 8_. 'lblI City wilt reconoile TollY' 8 BTl submittals With 
infonnation rec:eived Will the S. of ill. on a 1ri!mnU!l! blU!lB. If tbme is any 
t\mds due to tony's !ben the City will l!UIke such payment WiIbiII 30 days from 
receipt of Sta'Ie of Winoill report. I{ lillY ovmpaymODt to TOII)"$ tben the City will 
illvoice Ton.y·s of suoh and Tony's will pay the City oflkonvyn witl!ltt 30 days. 

D. eoaditiou 'needeP! to thi ott'. P!l$'ISIlt ()bliptloa. NctwithstaDding 
anything herein to the contnil:Y, the right o{TOIlY's to t'CIQQve its Incentive R.eV1mue 
~ymcmts contempt. above in section 3.A. as wen 119' the ob)iglliitln of the City til 
make1lll.y such Jllljlgenta'" be suiUect til the aatisliu:liO/l. <!ffoUowing conditions as 
deIenuitt!!d 1!Y the City: 

i. Toqy's sIuill o~ tina! approval J.:Oladng to the J'1'Qjellt. Provided however, 
the Ci~ as- that in IIO<101'dance willi LaW it aIWI USllI' allpermifs and 
approvals neceasarr :fur Tony's POII1p~ of the Project ~ wiIbout 
llniililtiOll bliil~ an!! other permits ami CCI'titi~ \>f oOCi1pa1iCy, provided 
that TOllY'S properly submits all peti4oll.$ and ~r;ations :fur such pClllftits 
_ ~prov.ls and pays all fees ~ 1II!W;r appJi~leCity ordiJlllllces, 
~ roles, and regulatious &lid Tqo.y' $ pJ,ans :fur the Project are generally 
CODSlslcmt with the conceplu!il '~ plan _ aliWl$nli previc!u8ly provided 1!Y 
Tony's. 

Ii. Copotmcficm. Tony's shall commenoe cons~ of: the PIilject within 30 
days of ~ving project pennitting. 

lil. Stol!! Qpening. Tony's will epeo. within 30 days of ¢Qmpletlon of all intIodor 
_ ~or walk to include stooldng sheI.\'e8. 

iv. Receipt of the InceRtive Revenuo from the State. 

v. Tony's h!Is OIil;imitted all appmpriate docwnentati~ to IPOR and the CitY of 
BerwyII in order for the City to receive sales till< RCeipt infbnnation for this 
project. 

6 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 34

- .--- ---. --------- -_.- ----

vi. Tany'slallllt OInllfWlle 1n ,,*oh ofth/l AafeeIJlI'III or In violatiOil of Law, 

S. P ..... 1I'18.nl1' ,( Tupyl,~_ It;. twillf 10 the elid. of the Fifteonth ~IIWIII Year, 
TUllY" ~!lll\ llpmlt~ a 1\"ly'l SlIiL'e on the ~, thiS Allreernon! shall nvtomaticaliy 
lom'linate tetCClpl lOr 10lly'S re.IIu~lID1e~ obUlllltlon staled &o10w), I'or purpoaeo of thi' 
Scotkm ~, tetnpOnuy ~_11lI'I dile to fire or CIIIlIUI\ty III other caules bI:yond 1M _nable 
conm>1 lll' TUlIy'.IIIIe1 Ille1njlclntry _tion tor Dot \JIDte than two butldredseventy ~s tOr the 
purposes of ltlllldll!laltemtlooa or repaltll shall not be CioD8ldored B ce~\ln qfo~\!lIi8. 

III ~ eIIG\\\ \hia ~OI ia ~i!latll\llo a\lOOllll8ce with tbls Section ,. tIul PattIes ape. tIW 
lIlII l'!I.Y·S aole mntidy In addition to ~~mfuallon ot' tid, Agreelllon! ihall be the 
reln'lb\iJ'Selt)ent by Tony'aofa poflionoftbe IneanllWl kOYellIlO pa)'lnOlltS previously received by 
l'Qlty'~ ll!.>r\\ ·tI\e t"tIyPursUlllll to ,tbl, AIJl'COIII'nt. Howe\lel'. hi the el/Oflt tb. TO~'5 net sales lIIX 
to IIw '-'il}' of ae~ ex~ $1 O."f(lbiOOOw\II\in th& p&,ynDIt f8tm then Tony'S shtd.l not ii»'teit 
tho lf1Cc!1iti~ ~1IIi receiV$l,JIl tIut ~ tIt.at the cap i8 not _cbed, 'tODY'. Will .reil!lb\ll'SO 
the City 8C«'IdIna to. the flUlowtna achliclWel 

• Befote tbe encl oftbeSUt p~t y_ 
• Duri\li the 6'" -IOU' PayUtent Y_ 
• Durlngtbe lllh_1S"1'~D!IlI'It V_ 
• DUring the 16'1' - 20111 P~e~ Years 

~. oflftCentive Revenue reQOived 
~ ofInCIintiW ·RtWnile rece1ve4 
~O% of~1) ~enue received 
[0% otJncentive Revenuo re~ 

A. t'I!II, No PartY shall be deemed in dlifillilt undetthis A~~ until slIob PIItIy (!be 
"l'keaobing Pety" .fbl: plIrII0803 of tIii& ~h) hu failed to wre such i»flIult 
within ten dti,ys. of ie<:eiptQfwrltteD noIIee QfdeiBlilt ftom the non-Bre8llblng Part:y in 
the cue of • monetary 4e1lW1t or within thIlty days of receipt of written notIoo of 
det.ult ftom tbenon-BreaohiJIg Pl\t!Yin the. .,.se of. nonmonDlary detimlt. ProVided, 
howevel'~ if the nature of such nQmnollllll\lY c!eli!..lilt i4 such that it CI\IlIIOt reasonably 
be cured Wiihlo such thlrty-day period, t&en the BreaQlting P\lrtY lIhall not be dectl!ed 
in defillilt it'the Breacblng Party commences to cure SUQh defilult withiIi the thirl¥-dI!y 
period and thereafter cUJigem1y p\!tllues such cure to oomp1etion, 

A, AltJ!iJ.b&; !J,Omp<ijps. In the event of a defillilt by the City, Sl!bject to the tenus and 
lilllillltlilns of' this ~ment, Tony's DI8Y pursue all tdIledies at law and/or equity 
for the 0IIfbr!;:eD1ent.oftl$ AQI"et;IJ!llht iii tbe 'lIVent of a deftullt by T(>Ity's. theCiIy 
mar pursue aU remedies at Iawl!IllIIor eq1.!ity tbr the enforcement of this Agreoment, 
including, without limitatioll the application of the proYisions of Section 5 of this 
Agreement and the tennination ofthia Ap-eemerit IUId cessation of all paymen!3 to be 
sot forth above. 

7 

_J 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 35

1\, ll.uNu -M.JUIll'!l, It' 11111 1'lIf'1\lMl1nnUO (lr I\ny OIlvalldnl (Ir IlbllllntJlIlI III L" pl!I'llI'IIllld 
11111101' Ih'~ "/11\10010111 h)' " 11M"), IN "~IR)'lIIl IN II RIIIIIII IIl'lIIruUIU"I'HnUIII hO),lIlulllhl 
NIIMIIIUllkl \ltllllr"I,,!, "lRIh l'Al1y (whll!.h ulrollllllllnnUOIIlnl)' h\lliud. uvlM ul""MI, Will', 
""IN lit' ulvU tflilllNlllulI~a, 11111 11111111'1 III' n Ihlnl PIIrl), lit 1I,Illli ~Ulln(l'tKIlu.'llhlll/"UIIIl, 
lIl,i~OII Ill' nlhur .hllllnl' lIIIiNllhu 111IIt' IIII' 1"I'lltmlNltau "lid Ihe IIIfnI n(Ih'" A~I 
.11.111111 oKI~n,'ad hy Iho Hnlllllllllll'Umo III'allllh II.I.~, 

7. M'Itt,""'''Y' 
A • .E!!DiIIJI. Any nllllau Ill' OIlmlnunklllllnn ruquh'lld or ponnll'ad 10 ho y1V1ln under 

IhlM "111\1011101111 .hllil hit Iii wrllhlll Mnd "h'llI II, "'.Uvo.1'4ICi (I) lIII,"olllll'y nr (II) by 1\ 
IqIUIUhl.ouY«nI,lhl lIOurlar (II' ,II\) 111111111. lIn_llIhtwwI"" pruvkIW In Ihll "11",,11111\1. 
",'lluaN .hulltlo dllOllI.od I'IIcolvllll allar IhI! 111'"11011110111' 01' rill tit. dlla (If'IOIlInl !'fIIllpl:or 
(h) Iha data thai II PJ\~ II) l'luIIIIQM day allar dOflllllll wilit l1li l'Ivemll/hl wllri.r .. 
avldoilucd "ya i'CI:alpl 01' dlll1UNlt: IIr (b) tha dolo Ihlli. 18 throe (3) bUMble"" dB)'8 HIler 
dC(ltIMII In Iho U.S. Inull. 1M Qv.ldanU«! bya I'IIllIm rllCl4llpt, I.y nolioo g(II111'lylnloI with "" 
!'OCIIIINI\lOIIUI of ,hi. IItIutllln S,I\ .. _h pllrIY IlIlhll ""Rlemont .hlll! hllve ,he r;!,Iit1 to 
chtlnJ,l~ Iho ftd~l'Oli. or Iho ncfdrilliloe. III bulh, Ihr llil t\IIura nll\tollllllnd communllll\ll"n~to 
lhom. hut no lK1tioo of. ohll1lflO of IIdd,.. or ad6T1111 alliin ho OI'('eot1ve UIIIII IIOtUIUy 
recelvoc\, 

NIIII_ and OIlmmunlGftltonl to III. CIty ahafl t. acfdrteIed 10, anddelivel'llCl at, ch, 
fbllowlng addl'lla5: 

The CII}' of Berwyn 
67011 2tidl Streel 
Berwyn 1\, 60402. 

II'M'N: 01'1100 oitha Mayor 

Wlth .a 00p)' to: 
Th. Serwyn Il,veJoplnont C;ol'Pol'lltlon 
3~22 SOlith OlIk Pork Avenue 
BOIWl'n. IIlInol" 61)402 
A1,.N: ()ft11lO ofillo /lxeeutlve Dlreotor 

Ind 

The Del OAldo Law Oroup, I,Le 
1441 Snllth I""rlem Avenuu 
Berwyn, ", 611402 
A1"j'Ni Jnm .. Val.em 

NolICIII and oommlUllcatlonl 10 tho Tony's thall be acldreaHd 10. and delivered ai, the 
following addreas: 

Tony'. ~"rcah Market 

8 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 36

AUen\ton: Real Es1ate IlepIIrUne:Ilt 
1220 &yo Mawr A_ 
Itasca. Illinois 60143 
~CIlID 

tony', Fresh~ 
AUeilIiQn: ~8a1Oepartmaat 
t~oo Btyn Mawr A_ue 
ltasca.lIJini,is~Ol43 
~lQI\ysftcslini8ltct.Ciim 

B. rae 01 tH ,_.... TIme is of~ mlSellCD in 1ba ~ of tbis 
Ajp:eemenL 

C. RiM . Cg".t!ve. UDItss CXilre$S1y pr\)Vided to tbC ~ in tbi.s 
Ag¢edleDl;etll:herul ~1I1l1i of tho rlgh1i$. ICIDedios, .. ~ts proVided by tins 
~:sbiiU .be ~uIative andahaU IiDt be ~ve of ~ o1bof riahfs, remedies, 
eruI ~t3aJtowed by law.Provi!1ed. ~. !\Il ~_ IIDder or QIl9II 8Q)' 
..... ;...... .. .. · ........... ·_ ·t thiB ~ or fix ..... elBint ~ tbeteot· BbaIl be I1\IIIlI: __ OIl. (II" .,...._ 0 . .. ..... .. . . . . 

persooally ~ tho euy's M~ or t\Ide!:men or the ~'s omplo,yees. offic:ei8, 
~ cOOIicteai .and ...,.~ or Tc»Iy's dheetom,. managers. ~. agents, 
cOrilDCtorsanclllODS1lliant& 

D, N,*Walyer.N~ Party sbalIbe under DO obligatioll to exerdse aD1 of 
tho rights graoIOd ~ It in tbi.s.l\~ the faillft of either Party to exetoiso at any 
_ my rleJit IIJ1IIIIed to SuoI\l'ai:ty SIuI.Il: DQt.lJe- dilemed or ccmstrued to be a waiver of 
liIllt: risJlt, oC)i.!lhal1 tbeliWure void Qfaftbct ~ l'I!I\v'$ nahtto~ tho! rfshtor any 
otbr:r rjpt.. 

e. Go):md!lJLaw. This ~ &b!lll be ~ b,. and enfurccd in 
aa:ordance wltII, the linemallaws, of the SUite of Illinois. 

F. SsfmbQIty. It is bmeby espresaed 10 be the intAn).t of tbti Parties tbat sbould 
any proviSion. co"\ollllllnt, .agteement,or pottion ofthia Agreement Or its Rpplication to any 
JIUBOIl or propcttY be held i!lv!Uid by a court of competent jurisdiction. the remaining 
provisiona of this AgieoJJIen! and the v~. onfilrc:lI!lbillty. am! ~Plication to any 
petsop. or property shill not be impaired tbcreby, but the mlliil'ling pEOvisiOIL'l shall be 
~ted. IIpplied, and 1!Qforc:ed iO lIS to ~bieve, as near lIS may be. the purpose and 
intent of this Aateoment to the greatest IIXlent pennitted bYapplicllble law. 

G. Enlire AIfI'MI!'!!!t. 1bls Agreemont constitutes the entire agtCenlODt between 
the Parties and supersedes any and all prior agxeements and IICgQtiationa between the 
Puiies. whether wiittell or oral. relllling to the subject tnll!ter of this Agreement. 

9 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 37

j 

I 
I 

H. 1,1I.11lr",fipP. 1\19 Aareoment aIaaIl be oonltruud without rOJl81'd to the 
Idolllily III' tho l'arty wl)1I dmlted the _1"UlI provlsiOl18 ot'thls Agreqment. MolllOVC!I', 
o:e.e1a ntld CIVillY ptpvtsl® ot'1ltl, Agreement ahall be coll8trued ~I lhough, all PMlioa 10 
this ~lel\l palli"IjPIIled cqU8l(y in the draltilitt of thiB Agreement. AI a result of th~ 
Ibl'tll"illg, any MIle I>r CI>n,tfI!Ction that a ooctllnenl is to be construed aaalnst the dtatling 
Party aIIall not beappllo:e.blc to this Apemen!. 

L Eplblb. All Bxl\iblls attached to 'this Aareement I!ie, by Ihla re~QC, 
IllI:llrpol'lllcd in. and made a J?ilrt ol'thls Agreenumt. In the ovent of a oonfliClt between lin 
exhibit an<! ~.Ielq of thl, Agreein«it, tile !~tqf this Agreement shall control. 

~. AID_AIIAff and f4!difWlipp •• No lIl.1eruhnem or modifiCation 10 thie 
Agreenloll\t silitll be otlealive until it ia i'liduced to writing and approved and executed by 
all porties to tlrilI Aare6ment inlloo(lm.nco.with all applicable lIatutoryproccciures. 

K. Agthority to EJseyte. Tho illdlvlrluals ~ Ual. Agreement re.prollllt 
and WIIITIIIli thal !hill' have ·ihe PoWIIi' and authority to dQ 80, and to bind the Paljieetor 
whom tI1ey 1ft -mma the Agreement. In addition. the Cil)' ~b)' represenIJ and 
warrarllB dial it hili full coJl8tiMi~ IIIl4 lawlill right, power and 1WIhority, under cum.ot 
applicable Jaw. to execldB and .uver IUId ,.foim the tmm8 liltd obllgljfiolll of this 
~ent and the tbregoing have beet) or will be. upon lIdoption of O)'dinancel 
authf'lrima the exeoutlon of 1bI'I AgteemelU, d~y and validly auth0tV.e4 IiJ).d !lPProveci 
by all necessary City proceediilgs. flndll\gI and actions. . Accordingly, .this Agreement 
g()nstitt.Ites the lepI. valid and binding obli(ll!!lonofihe City, enforceable in I\\lcOl'dal!ce 
with ill tenQ, 

1... No Thitd lim BjMfIcl.... Nil' claim as a tbird putt bcDefic;illry under 
this Agreemelit by any person sbaII be Inaiie, or be valid, qaiDBt the .city or ToQy's. 

M, CO!ll!!!a:P.rtl. This AgreeIt:tODt ma.y be ~ In counterp!11"\, each of 
which sfuJll cOJlBtitute an original. doCuili~t, which together sballconstitute~and the 
same inslrUinent. 

N. PoUC! l,gwsr. NothlDg in tbi$ Agmement shall Ilmit the standard pollee 
power fllnctiQIIS and protections of lbe City or the City's tight 'to cn{orce the same. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the perties hereto have caused this Agreement to be exQcuteci 
by their proper officers dlily authorized to exOOIdB the 88IIlO, the day and year first abovewrittcn. 

1 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 38

THE Ci.TY OR BERWYN. 
An llIinois muni!>ipa! I'OrpObml!ll. 

aY. ______ ~ __________ __ 
I~ _____ --______ _ 

TO)IW'S FllESIl MAllKET. 
an ttlim!is ______ _ 

By: 

lis, 

2 

Tony'~ I'm Foocfs. 

Genoral. &u1ner 

IJy: .1 ~ \l,/ Tv.~ 'L.r~. 
Ils: £.«iJ..t-



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 39



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 40

EXHIIKTA 

[ATTACHED] 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 41

PROPERTY D£SCRIP'TION 

CERMAK PlAZA SHOPPING CENTER 
COOK COUNTY - BERWYN, IWNOIS 

THAT PART OF LOT 1 (EXCEPT THOSE PARTS FAWNG IN STREET) OF THE CIRCUIT COURT PARTITION OF 
THE WEST PART OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 AND THE WEST PART OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 30, 
TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, LYING NORTH OF A 
STRAIGHT LINE RUNNING FROM A POINT IN THE EAST LINE OF SOUTH HARLEM AVENUE, 1590.99 FEET 
NORTH OF ITS INTERSECTION OF WEST 26TH STREET TO A POINT IN THE WEST LINE OF SOUTH HOME 
AVENUE, 971.94 FEET SOUTH OF ITS INTERSECTION WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF WEST CERMAK ROAD. 

(AND ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM ALL THAT PORTION CONVEYED TO THE STATE OF ILLINOIS BY 
WARRANTY DEED RECORDED JULY 28, 1964 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 19198042 BOUNDED AND 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST 1/4 CORNER OF SAID SECTION 30, THENCE EAST ALONG THE NORTH 
LINE OF SAID SECTION 30 A DISTANCE OF 1374.29 FEET TO THE EXTENDED WEST LINE OF HOME 
AVENUE, AS THE SAME IS NOW LOCATED AND ESTABLISHED, THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE WEST LINE OF 

HOME AVENUE AND THE SAME EXTENDED A DISTANCE OF 60 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE WEST IN A 
STRAIGHT LINE PARALLEL TO AND DISTANT 60 FEET SOUTH, MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM SAID 
NORTH LINE OF SECTION 30, A DISTANCE OF 286.00 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH IN A STRAIGHT 
LINE MEASURED AT RIG~T ANGLES TO THE LAST DESCRIBED COURSE, A DISTANCE OF 5.00 FEET TO A 
POINT; THENCE WEST IN A STRAIGHT LINE PARALLEL TO AND DISTANT 65.00 FEET SOUTH, MEASURED 

AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM SAID NORTH LINE OF SECTION 30, A DISTANCE OF 972.86 FEET TO A POINT OF 
CURVATURE; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG A CURVED LINE CONCAVE TO THE SOUTHEAST, HAVING 
A RADIUS OF 65.00 FEET AND A CENTRAL ANGUE OF 90 DEGREES, 22 MINUTES, 30 SECONDS, A 
DISTANCE OF 102.51 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY IN THE EAST LINE OF HARUEM AVENUE AS THE 
SAME IS NOW LOCATED AND ESTABLISHED, DISTANT 50.00 FEET EAST MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGUES 
FROM THE WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 30; THENCE WEST IN A STRAIGHT LINE, A DISTANCE OF 50.00 
FEET TO A POINT IN THE WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 30; THENCE NORTH ALONG THE WEST LINE OF 
SAID SECTION 30; A DISTANCE OF 130.43 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING (EXCEPTING THAT PART OF 
THE A80VE DESCRIBED PREMISES PREVIOUSLY DEDICATED OR NOW USED FOR HARLEM AVENUE AND 

CERMAK ROAD), ALL IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 42

EXHIBITB 

(NONE] 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 43

The City of Berwyn Jose Ramirez 
2nd Ward Alderman 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26" Str<et Berwyn. Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788·2660 Fax: (708) 788·2675 

www.berwyn-il.gov 

Mayor Robert J. Lovero and 

Members of the Berwyn City Council 

March 9, 2018 

Re: Damage To Public Property By A City Snow Plow 

Mayor and Members of the City Council: 

:r::L. 

I am making a request to the Administration Committee to discuss the recent 
incident involving a City snow-plow truck and the damage to public electrical poles 
which caused a major outage for our residents and report back to Council their 
findings. 

In particular what steps were taken immediately following the incident, what steps 
the Public Works Director took as far as discipline, re-training and any policy 
changes made to alleviate this from happening in the future. 

Also what was the City's liability if any in terms on this specific incident. 

Very truly yours, 

Jose Ramirez 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 44

Budget, Finance & Revenue Committee 

Cesar Santoy, Chair 
5th Ward Aldennan 

Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Date: ---'"'d-I...:..l-l-\,f) 

Ladies and Gentlemen: M \ { 
A meeting of the Budget. Finance & Revenue Committee was held on n r~. \ U l8 

l 

The open forum was called: 
(g : 0 f Db /II. 7J I-) 

The matter discussed was referral item # &4 dated. _____ in regards to: 

-It i& the teoommep<jatJs£tlqfthe wnnnitteee-ththfl1l1t;;.-; ---

lAP \ 0' 5> (vlA$ V1> 

Voting.A¥e: __ 2£--____ _ 

Voting Nay: -0;---'.:.c,J,.<-___ -,-

Adjoum _ : (0:53 (~ 

C$ar &Dtoy - thaimitln 
S.co:tt Lennon - McmlR!T 
eagar Garcia - Member 

at 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 45

Budget, Finance & Revenue Committee j:. . ~ _ 

-~ ~ Cesar Santoy, Chair 
5th Ward Aldennan 

Mayor Robert J _ Levero 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Ladies and Gentlemen: ( 

A meeting of the Bu4f ::finance & Revenue Committee was held on,------<' ./--+--"U,-+-[ LI _~ ____ at 

P:t1~ Ie ~ ,Jutl _ -
\ \ ~ x 

The meeting was called to order at 

The open forwn was ca11ed~ 

The matter discussed was referral item #, ____ dated-______ in regards to: 

It is the recommendation of the 

Voting Aye~ __ -'::-'L-----:~ 

Voting Nay; __ ..!£._~ 

A~owned; -1~ __ ~ 

Cesar Santoy -
Scott Lennon - Member 
Edgar Garcia - Member 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 46

:5-1 
BERWYN POLICE DEPARTMENT 

Mayor 
Robert J. Lovero 

February 28, 2018 

Mayor Robert J. Lovero 

Members of the Berwyn City council 

6700 W. 26th Street 

Berwyn, IL 60402 

RE: For informational purposes only 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

"Serving with Pride" 

Chief of Police 
Michael D. Cimaglia 

Please be advised that Request for Proposal (RFP) has been sent out by the Berwyn Police Department 

for the solicitation of proposals to undertake a study of the overall operations of the Police Department 

on a contractual basis. Responses are due back by 10:00 AM on March 21, 2018 and will be opened at 

11:00 AM on March 21, 2018. 

All proposals will be evaluated by our command staff and we anticipate bringing forth a selected vendor 

contract to council soon thereafter. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Michael D. Cimaglia 

Chief of Police 

6401 West 31st St., Berwyn, IL 60402 - Emergency 9-1-1 -708-795-5600 - Fax 708-795-5627 

www.berwynpolicedepartment.com 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 47

CITY OF BERWYN 
RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
6501 w. 31ST STREET BE\{\\'YN,ll.(i0402 

PHOl':E 70K!7KH-21110 FAX 701\/788-2657 
www.BcrwynRccrcatilll1.com 

March 8. 2018 

To: Margaret Paul. City Clerk 

Fron': Anthony Martinucci. Director of Recreation 

RE: Baseball Resolution 

Dear Margaret Paul, 

Attached is the Resolution for the City of Berwyn Baseball Parade. Please ent~r (he 
resolution to city council on Tuesday March 13, 2018. 

~~~'-
Anthony Martinucci 
Director of Recreation 

ROBERT J- LOVERO 
Mayor 

ANTHONY MARTINUCCI 
Director 

JOE BELCASTER 
Program Supervisor 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 48

The City of Berwyn Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

Whereas, 

Whereas, 

Whereas, 

Whereas, 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

RESOLUTION 

the Berwyn Recreation Department will hold their Annual Baseball Parade on April 28, 2018, 
beginning at 9:00 a.m.; and 

the Berwyn City Council has voted to grant penrussion for this aforesaid activity on March 13, 
2018; and 

the baseball players and coaches will assemble at the El Strip between East and Elmwood 
Avenue, proceed south on Elmwood Avenue, to Cermak Road; west to East Avenue, south on 
East A venue to Baseball Alley proceed to the Bronco Field where all teams will assemble in the 
outfield; and 

the Berwyn Police Department will have officers controlling traffic on the scheduled route with 
special attention the major intersections. 

Now Therefore, be it resolved by the Mayor and members of the Berwyn City Council to grant permission for 
this annual event and to extend to all the boys and girls participatmg in the baseball program out best wishes for 
good weather and a successful baseball season. 

Entered upon the records of the City of Berwyn, this 13th day of March, 20U!. 

Robert J. Lover 

Margaret Paul, City Clerk 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 49

Denis O'Halloran 
Fir. Chief 
do'halloran@ci.berwyn.il.us 

Sam Molinaro 
Assistant Fire Chief 
smolinaro®ci.berwyn.il.us 

March 9, 2018 

BERWYN 
FIRE DEPARTMENT 

6700 W. 26th Street. Berwyn, IL 60402-0701 

708.788.2660 ext 6474 

FAX 708.788.3039. Emergency 9-1-1 

To: Mayor Robert Lovero and Members of the City Council 

From: Chief Denis O'Halioran 

Re: Automatic Mutual Aid Response with the Village of Oak Park, IL. 

Honorable Mayor Lovero and Members of the City Council, 

Mayor Robert J. Lovero 

The Oak Park Fire Department has requested that the City of Berwyn Fire Department enter into an 
Automatic Mutual Aid response for the report of structure fires in their village. They are requesting that 
the Berwyn Fire Department respond with an Engine and manpower for incidents south of the Union 
Pacific Rail Road to Roosevelt Road in Oak Park. This will not occur on activated fire alarms and only on 
report of a structure fire and or confirmed fire. We already have this type of agreement with the Villages 
of North Riverside and Stickney Fire Department for both sending and receiving Automatic Mutual Aid. 

Attached to this correspondence are the terms of the agreement. This agreement has been reviewed by 
the command staff and the City of Berwyn's Attorney along with the Village of Oak Park with their 
approval. 

It would be my recommendation that we enter into this agreement with the Village of Oak Park and their 
Fire Department. 

Respectfully submitted, 

t9~ @JiI~-
Denis O'Halioran 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 50

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AUTOMATIC MUTUAL AID FIRE PROTECTION AGREEMENT 

THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL AUTOMATIC MUTUAL AID FIRE PROTECTION 
AGREEMENT is made and entered into this _ day of • 2018, between the 
Village of Oak Park, Cook County, Illinois, an Illinois home rule municipal corporation ("Oak 
Park"), and the City of Berwyn, Cook County, illinois, an illinois home rule municipal corporation 
("Berwyn"). Oak Park and Berwyn are sometimes hereinafter jointly referred to individually as 
a "Party" and collectively as the "Parties." 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, Article VII, Section 10, of the Constitution of the State of Illinois of 1970 
provides that units of local government may contract or otherwise associate among themselves to 
obtain or share services and to exercise, combine, or transfer any power or function in any manner 
not prohibited by law or by ordinance and may use their credit, revenues, and other resources to 
pay costs related to intergovernmental activities; and 

WHEREAS, intergovernmental cooperation is further authorized by the Intergovernmental 
Cooperation Act,S ILCS 220/1 et seq. ("the Act"); and 

WHEREAS, Oak Park and Berwyn are public agencies as defined by the Act, 5 ILCS 220/2; 
and 

WHEREAS, the corporate authorities of municipalities may enter into intergovernmental 
agreements with other municipalities to furnish automatic mutual aid fire protection on request 
pursuant to 6S ILCS 5/11-6-1.1; and 

WHEREAS, it is recognized that, in certain situations, the use of fire department personnel 
and equipment to perform fire protection outside of the territorial limits of the municipality where 
such fire department are legally employed is desirable and necessary in order to preserve and 
protect the health, safety and welfare of the public; and 

WHEREAS, it has been determined by the corporate authorities of Oak Park and Berwyn 
that this Agreement would be beneficial to the public health, welfare and safety for the Oak Park's 
and Berwyn's fire departments to provide automatic mutual aid fire protection. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein and in 
consideration of the public health, welfare and safety, the Parties hereto agree as follows: 

SECTION 1. RECITALS 

1.1. The above recitals are incorporated herein as though fully set forth. 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 51

SECTION 2. AUTOMATIC MUTUAL AID FIRE PROTECTION TERMS 

2.1. Oak Park and Berwyn do hereby authorize and direct their fire chiefs or their fire 
chiefs' designees to render and request automatic mutual aid fire protection to and from each 
other to the extent of available personnel and equipment not required for adequate protection of 
the party rendering aid pursuant to this Agreement for the following. 

2.1.1. Oak Park and Berwyn shall assist each other during structure fires, 
reports of smoke inside a building or reports of a lighting strike to a building. 

2.2. Oak Park shall provide assistance to Berwyn for the matters set forth in Sections 
2.1.1 above south of Roosevelt Rd to North of the Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railroad by 
providing one truck company with a minimum of three (3) personnel, when requested by the 
Incident Commander including one (1) officer and two (2) firefighters, subject to Section 2.1 
above. 

2.3. Berwyn shall provide assistance to Oak Park for the matters set forth in Sections 
2.1.1 above south of the Union Pacific tracks to Roosevelt Rd by sending one (1) engine 
company with a minimum of three (4) personnel, including one (1) officer and two (3) 
firefighters, subject to Section 2.1 above. 

2.4. The fire chiefs of Oak Park and Berwyn may, from time to time, establish 
protocols th.at will enhance service delivery to each community on a quid pro quo basis. 

2.5. Emergency medical service and other types of emergencies shall not be 
considered as being subject to this Agreement and shall continue to be provided under the 
"Mutual Aid Box Alarm System." 

2.6. The Parties' fire department personnel shall conduct training together on an as-
needed basis. 

2.7. The Parties' fire chiefs or the fire chiefs' designees have the sole discretion to 
determine the amount of personnel and equipment to be made available to render automatic 
mutual aid fire protection pursuant to this Agreement. 

2.8. The Parties' personnel who provide automatic mutual aid fire protection pursuant 
to this Agreement shall under the command of their respective superior authority and shall not be 
considered to be employees of the Party requesting automatic mutual aid fire protection. 

2.9. Oak Park and Berwyn shall not be liable to each other or a third party for a failure 
to render automatic mutual aid fire protection or the withdrawal of automatic mutual aid once 
furnished pursuant to this Agreement. 

2 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 52

SECllON3. NO COMPENSATION 

3.1. Automatic mutual aid fire protection rendered pursuant to this Agreement shall be 
without charge to Oak Park or Berwyn. 

SECTION 4. INDEMNIFICATION 

4.1. The Party requesting automatic mutual aid fire protection pursuant to this 
Agreement shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the other Party, its officers, officials, or 
employees, for any liability, cost, expense, claim, demand, judgment or attorneys' fees arising out 
of any accident, bodily injury, death of person, or loss of or damage to tangible property in 
providing such automatic mutual aid fire protection. 

4.2. Each Party agrees to waive all claims against the other Party for any liability, cost, 
expense, claim, demand, judgment or attorneys' fees 

SECTION S. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

5.1. All employee benefits, wage and disability payments, pension and workers' 
compensation claims, insurance premiums, damage to or destruction of equipment and clothing 
and medical expense of the Party rendering aid shall be paid by the Party employing such person 
performing services pursuant to this Agreement. 

SECTION 6. EFFECTIVE DATE OF AGREEMENT AND TERM 

6.1. The effective date of this Agreement as reflected above shall be the last date 
that it is executed by one ofthe parties as reflected below. 

6.2. This agreement shall be for a term of one (1) year. The agreement shall 
automatically renew unless one Party shall provide to the other written notice pursuant to 
Section 10 below of its intention not to renew the agreement at least sixty (60) days prior to the 
annual termination date ofthe agreement. 

SECTION 7. AMENDMENTS AND MODIFICATIONS 

7.1. Both Parties acknowledge and agree that they have not rel ied upon any 
statements, representations, agreements or warranties, except such as are expressed here, and 
that no amendment or modification of this Agreement shall be valid or binding unless expressed in 
writing and executed by the parties in the same manner as the execution of this Agreement. 

SECllON 8. GOVERNING LAW 

8.1. The laws of the State of Illinois shall apply to the interpretation of this Lease. 

3 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 53

SECTION 9. ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND SEVERABILITY 

9.1. This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement and there are no 
representations, conditions, warranties or collateral agreements, express or implied, statutory 
or otherwise, with respect to this Agreement other than as contained herein. 

9.2. If any provision of this Agreement, or the application of such provision, shall be 
rendered or declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or by reason of its requiring any 
steps, actions or results, the remaining parts or portions of this Agreement shall remain in full 
force and effect. 

SECTION 10. NOTICE 

10.1. All notices, demands, or other communications with respect to th is Agreement 
other than requests for automatic mutual aid fire protection pursuant to Section 2 above shall 
be in writing and shall be deemed to have been given when the same are deposited in the 
United States mail and sent by first class mail, postage prepaid, or by hand delivery to the 
Parties at their respective addresses as follows: 

To Oak Park: 

Village Manager 
Village of Oak Park 
123 Madison Street 
Oak Park, Illinois 60302 

To Berwyn: 

City Mayor 
City of Be rwyn 
6700 W 26th Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 

10.2. The Parties may designate in writing from time to time substitute addresses or 
persons in connection with required notices. 

SECTION 11. BINDING AUTHORITY. 

11.1. The individuals executing this Agreement on behalf of the Parties represent that 
they have the legal power, right, and actual authority to bind their respective Party to the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement. 

SECTION 12. CAPTIONS AND SECTION HEADINGS 

12.1. Captions and section headings are for convenience only and are not a part of this 
Agreement and shall not be used in constrUing it. 

4 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 54

SECTION 13. NON-WAIVER OF RIGHTS 

13.1. No failure of either Party to exercise any power given to it hereunder or to insist 
upon strict compliance by any other Party with its obligations hereunder, and no custom or 
practice of any Party at variance with the terms hereof shall constitute a waiver of either Party's 
right to demand exact compliance with the terms hereof. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 

5 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 55

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have each caused this Agreement to be 
executed by proper officers duly authorized to execute the same on the dates set forth below. 

VILLAGE OF OAK PARK CITY OF BERWYN 

By: Cara Pavlicek By: Robert J. Lovero 
Its: Village Manager Its: Mayor 

Date: . 2018 Date: . 2018 

ATTEST ATTEST 

By: Vicki Seaman By: Margaret M. Paul 
Its: Village Clerk Its: City Clerk 

Date: . 2018 Date: . 2018 

6 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 56

The City of Berwyn 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Rasheed Jones 
Finance Director 

6700 Wcs126" 51_ Berwyn,lIIinoi' 60402-0701 Telephonco (708) 788·2660 (708) 749·6468 
www.berwyn-il.gov 

To: Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
Members of City Council 

From: Rasheed Jones }l0 
Date: March 9, 2018 

Subject: 2018 Draft Budget 

The 2018 draft budget document will be distributed at the March 13, 2018 committee of the 
whole meeting for your consideration. As such, we request that a public hearing on the subject 
of the 2018 budget be called and noticed for 5:45 PM on March 27,2018. The notice regarding 
this public hearing has been attached. 

Please feel free to contact me with any questions or comments prior to the public hearing. 

Thank you. 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 57

LEGAL NOTICE 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

I. A public hearing on the proposed 2018 Appropriation Ordinance 
(Budget) for the City of Berwyn, Illinois for 2018 will be held on 
March 27, 2018 at 5:45 p.m. at the City Hall Council Chambers 
located at 6700 West 26th Street, Berwyn, Illinois 60402. 

II. The proposed 2018 Appropriation Ordinance will be available for 
public inspection at the office of the City Clerk, Berwyn City Hall, 
6700 West 26th Street, Berwyn, Illinois 60402, during normal business 
hours Monday through Friday until March 27, 2018 or until said 
Appropriation Ordinance is passed by the Berwyn City Council. 

III. This notice is being published in compliance with Illinois law, 65 
ILCS 5/8 2-9 as well as local ordinances. All interested parties are 
invited and encouraged to attend this Public Hearing. The Berwyn 
City Hall building is handicapped accessible and ADA compliant. 

By Order of Mayor Robert J. Lovero and the Berwyn City Council 

S:II Margaret M. Paul, City Clerk, City of Berwyn 

March 13,2018 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 58

The City of Berwyn 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Date: March 13, 2018 

To: Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Robert P. Schiller 
Director of Public Works 

Re: Resolution for Improvement by Municipality for Riverside Drive from Harlem Avenue to Cermak Road 

Staff is requesting the approval of the attached Resolution for Improvement by Municipality in the amount of 
$620,000.00 for Riverside Drive from Harlem Avenue to Cermak Road. The Resolution will enable the City to 
pay for their share of design engineering, construction engineering and construction of this project utilizing 
Motor Fuel Tax (MFT) funds. In addition to MFT funds, this project is also partially funded with Surface 
Transportation Program (STP) funds, in which the total Federal match is $1,549,744.00. 

Recommended Actions: 
Staff recommends approval of the attached Resolution in the amount of $620,000.00. 

Respectfully, 

Robert Schiller 
Director of Public Works 

I Public Works Drive Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 749-6510 Fax: (708) 749-9503 www.berwyn-il.gov 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 59

@DIinois Departwent 
of Transportation 

Resolution for Improvement 
Under the Illinois Highway Code 

ResolutioA Number 

I L-..:->'--__ ---1 

Section Number 

116-00174-00-RS 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the ..::C:.;:o:.;:u::..:n.::;ci::..I_----,====:-.:-:=-_____ of the ..::C"'it:<.y __ ---.-:=======-__ _ 
Governing Body Type Local Public Agency Type 

of Berwyn Illinois that the following described street(s)/road(s)/structure be improved under 
Name of local Public Agency 

the Illinois Highway Code. Work shall be done by ..:C,o",n",tra"""ct"",,===,--
Contract or bay LSbOr 

For Roadway/Street improvements· 
Name of street(s)/Road(s) Length (miles) Route 

:;; FAU 
\, Riverside Drive 0.93 3569 !', 

For Structures' 

Name of S!reet(s)/Road(s) 
EXisting 

Route Structure No. 

~ 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, 
1. That the pro DOSed imDrovement shall consist of 

From To 

Harlem Avenue Cermak Road 

Location Feature Crossed 

Pavement resurfacing, pavement marking replacement, curb and gutter replacement for drainage, sidewalk 
removal and replacement for ADA compliance, pavement patching, and restoration. 

2. That there Is hereby appropriated the sum of "'$.::6=2.::0"',0:.:0:.:0:.::.0"'0=---_____________________ _ 
________________________ Dolla'" ( ________ ) for the improvement of 

said section from the Local Public Agency's allotment of Motor Fuel Tax funds. 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk Is hereby directed to transmit four (4) certified originals ofthis resolution to the district office 
of the Department of Transportation. 

I, Margaret M Paul 
Name of Clerk 

City Clerk in and for said .::C:.,::ity"o:=======--_ 
=+L"'oca:::;"il P"'u:t:;bl"'Ic""Ag-=.=n"'cy"'T"'yp=.=-- locsl Public Agency Type 

of Berwyn in the State aforesaid, and keeper of the reoords and files thereof, as provided by 
Name of Local Public Agency 

statute, do hereby certify the foregoing to be a true, perfect and oomplete original of a resolution adopted by 

Council of Berwyn al a meeting held on March 13, 2018 
Governing Body Type Name of Local" Public Agency Date 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal this 13 day of March, 2018 
Day Month, Year 

(SEAL) ICler1<Signature 

Approved 
Regional Engineer 

I' L_P_.~ __ ~_tO_f_T~_n_~_O_~_Ho_n ______________ ~I~ 

Ponted 03/01/18 BLR 0911 0 (Rev. 03/13/17) 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 60

Instructions for BLR 09110 

This form shall be used when a Local Public Agency (lPA) wants to construction an Improvement using Motor Fuel Tax(MFT) funds, Refer 
to Chapter 9 of the Bureau of Local Roads and Streets Manual (BLRS Manual) for more detailed information, For signature requ~ements 
refer to Chapter 2, Section 3,05(b) of the BLRS Manual. 

When filling out this form electronically, once a field is initially completed, fields requiring the same Information will be auto-populated, 

Resolution Number 

Resolution Type 

SectIon Number 

Governing Body Type 

LPAType 

NarneofLPA 

Contract or Day Labor 

Enter the resolution number as assigned by the LPA, if appncable, 

From the drop down box choose the type of resolution: 
- Original would be used when passing a resolution for the first time for this project 
- Supplemental would be used when passing a resolution increasing appropriation above previously 
passed resolutions, 

- Amended would be used when a previously passed resolution is being amended. 

Insert the section number of the improvement the resolution covers. 

From the drop down box choose the type ofedministrative body. Choose Board for County; Council for a 
City or Town; President and Board of Tillstees for a Village or Town, 

From the drop down box choose the LPA body type. Types to chOose from are: County, Cliy, Town or 
ViUage. 

Insert the name of the LPA. 

From the drop down choose either Contract or Day Labor. 

Roadway/Street Improvements: 

Name Street/Road 

Length 

Route 

From 

To 

structures: 

Name Street/Road 

ExIsting Structure No. 

Route 

Location 

Feeture Crossed 

1 

2 

Name of Clerk 

LPAType 

Name ofLPA 

Governing Body Type 

Name of LPA 

Date 

Printed 03/01/18 

Insert the name of the Street/Road to be improved. Use a separate line for each street/road, l!there ara 
more names to be inserted than the table allows, type "See Attached" and place the additional information 
on a separate piece of paper. 

Inserl the length of this segment of roadway being improved in miles. 

Insert the Route number of the road/street to be Improved if applicable. 

Insert the beginning point of the improvement as it relates to the StreetIRoed is1ed to the left. 

Insert the ending point of the improvement as It relates to the Street/Road listed to the left. 

·Insert the name of the StreetIRoad on which the structure is located. Use a separate line for stillcture. If 
there are more structures to be inserted than the table allows, type "See Attached" and place the additional 
information on a separate piece of paper. 

Insert the existing structure number this resolution covers, if no cunrent structure insert nla, 

Insert the Route number on which the structure Is located. 

Insert the location of the stillclure. 

Inserl the feature the structure crosses. 

Insert a description of the major ~em. of work of the proposed Improvement 

Insert the dollar value of the resolution for the proposed improvement to be paid for with MFT funds in 
words followed by In the same amount In numerical format in the 0, 

Insert the name of the LPA clerk. 

Insert the type of clerk based on the LPA type. Types to choose from are:County,CIty, Town or Village. 

Insert the name of the LPA. 

Insert the type of administrative body. Choose Board for County; Council for a City or Town; President 
and Board ofTrustees for a Viiage orTown. 

Insert the name of the LPA. 

Insert the date of the meeting, 

BLR 0911 0 (Rev. 03/13/17) 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 61

Day 

Monll!, Year 

Seal 

Clerk Signature 

Approved 

Insert the day Clerk Is signing the document. 

Insert the month and year of the clerk's signature. 

The Clerk shall seal the document here. 

Clerk shall sign here. 

The Depertment of Transportation shall sign and date here once approved. 

A minimum offour (4) certified signed originals must be submitted to the Regional Engineer's District office. 
Following the Regional Engineer's approval, distribution will be as follows; 

Local Public Agency Clerk 
Engineer (Municipal, Consultant or County) 
District Compliance Review 
District File 

Printed 03101/18 BlR 09110 (Rev. 03/13117) 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 62

The City of Berwyn 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Date: March 13, 2018 

To: Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 

:1"- f,. 
Robert P. Schiller 

Director of Public Works 

Re: Resolution for Improvement by Municipality for sidewalk along Riverside Drive and 26th Street from 
Harlem Avenue to Home Avenue 

Staff is requesting the approval of the attached Resolution for Improvement by Municipality in the amount of 
$105,000.00 for sidewalk along Riverside Drive and 26th Street from Harlem Avenue to Home Avenue. The 
Resolution will enable the City to pay for their share of design engineering, construction engineering and 
construction of this project utilizing Motor Fuel Tax (MFT) funds. In addition to MFT funds, this project is 
also partially funded with Surface Transportation Program (STP) funds and lllinois Transportation 
Enhancement Program (ITEP) funds, in which the total Federal match is $185,217.00. 

Recommended Actions: 
Staff recommends approval of the attached Resolution in the amount of $ 105,000.00. 

Respectfully, 

Robert Schiller 
Director of Public Works 

I Public Works Drive Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 749-6510 Fax: (708) 749-9503 www.berwyn-i1.gov 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 63

@?)lInois Department 
of TranspOrtation 

Resolution for Improvement 
Under the Illinois Highway Code 

Resolution Number Resolution Type Section Number 

IL-... ___ --'II '-O--'ri9:....in_al __ --'1115-00173-00-SW 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Council oflhe City 
~~~----7G~o~w=m~ln=g~B~~"'y~~~~~--------- ~~----~~~~=nIP~u~~ .. ~~Ag~.n=~~Ty~p=e--------

of Berwyn Illinois that the following described street(s)/roed(s)/structure be Improved under 
Name of local PublicAgen~ 

the illinois Highway Code. Work shan be done by .::C:.;o;;,n",t~i:a;;ct~===,--
- Contract or Day Labor 

For Roadway/Street improvements· 
Name of Street(s)/Road(s) Length (mUes) Route 

,; 26th Street 0.15 
FAU 
1459 

I~ Riverside DriVe 0.15 
FAU 

'""." 3569 

For Structures' 

Name of Street(s)/Road(s) 
Existing 

Route Structure No. 

4 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, 
1. That the proposed Improvement shall consist of 

From To 

Harlem Avenue Riverside DriVe 

26th Street Home Avenue 

Location Feature Crossed 

The construction of a new sidewalk along 26th Street and Riverside Drive with ADA ramps, installation of 

pedestrian countdown timers at the intersection of 26th Street and Riverside Drive, and restoration. 

2. Thai there Is hereby appropriated the sum of "'$,;"10:;,,5:..<,..:.0..:.00:;,,."'0..:.0 __________________________________________ _ 

_______________________________________________ DoIlars ( _______________ ) for the improvement of 

said section from the Local Public Agency's allotment of Motor Fuel Tax funds. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk is hereby directed to transmH four (4) certified originals oflhis resolution to the district offlOe 
of'the Department of Transportation. 

I, Margaret M. Paul 
Name of Clerk 

.::C:.,::ityf.:;;====:::T= __ Clerk in and for said -=C-"ity~======,--_ 
Local Pubic Agen~ T~ local Public Ag.n~ T~ 

of Berwyn In the State aforesaid, and keeper 011119 records and files thereof, as provided by 
Name of Local Public Agency 

statute, do hereby certify the foregoing to be a true, perfect and complete original of a resolution adopted by 

Council of Berwyn at a meeting held on March 13, 2018 
Governing Body Type Name of Local Publlc Agency OatQ 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal this 13 day of March, 2018 
Day Month, Year 

(SEAL) 
rlerk Slgnatune 

Approved 
Regional Engineer 

'-1~_P._rlm_._nt_of_Tran_s_po_rta_tlo_n _______________ --'1 0 
Printed 03/01/18 BLR 09110 (Rev. 03/13/17) 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 64

Instructions for BLR 09110 

This form shall be used when a Local Public Agency (LPA) wants to construction an improvement using Motor Fuel Tax(MFT) funds. Refer 
to Chapter 9 of the Bureau of Local Roads and Streets Manual (BLRS Manual) for more detailed Information. For signature requirements 
refer to Chapter 2, Section 3.05(b) of the BLRS Manual. 

When filling out this form electronically, once a field is initially completed, fields requiring the same information will be auto-populated. 

Resolution Number 

Resolution Type 

Section Number 

Governing Body Type 

LPA Type 

NameofLPA 

Contract or Day Labor 

Enter \he resolt.tion number as assigned by \he LPA, if applicabl • . 

From the drop down box choose the type of ",solution: 
- Original would be used when passing a resolution for the first time for this proJect. 
- Supplemental would be used when passing a resolution increasing appropriation above previously 

passed resolutions. 
- Amended would be used when a previously passed resolution is being amended. 

Insert \he section number of \he improvement the resolution covers. 

From \he drop down box choose \he type of administrative body. Choose Board for County; Council fur a 
City or Town; President and Board ofTrus\ees for a Vdlage or Town. 

From the drop down box choose the LPA body type. Types to choo"" from are: County, City. Town or 
Village. 

Insert the name of the LPA. 

From the drop down choose either Contrect or Day Labor. 

Roadway/Street Improvements: 

Name Street/Road 

Length 

Route 

From 

To 

Structures: 

Name StreeVRoad 

Existing Structure No. 

Route 

Location 

Feature Crossed 

1 

2 

NameofCler1<. 

LPAType 

Name ofLPA 

Governing Body Type 

NameofLPA 

Date 

Printed 03101/18 

Insert the name of the Street/Road to be Improved. Use a separate line for each streeUroed. If there are 
more names to be Inserted than the table allows. type 'See Attached" and place the additional information 
on a separate piece of paper. 

Insert the length of this segment of roadway being improved in miles. 

Insert the Route number of \he road/street to be Improved if applicable. 

Insert \he beginning point of the improvement as n relates to \he StreetJRoad listed to the left. 

Insert the ending point of the Improvement as ft relates to \he StreetIRoad listed to the tell 

Insert the name of the Street/Road on which the structure is loealed. Use a separate line for structure. If 
there are more structures to be inserted th8n \he table allows, type "See Attached" and place the additional 
intbrrnation on a separate piece of paper. 

Insert \he exlsUng structure number this resolution covers, if no current structure insert nla. 

Insert the Route number on which the structure is located. 

Insert the location of the struolure. 

Insert the feature the structure crosses. 

Insert a description of \he major items of work of the proposed Improvement 

Insert the dollar value of the resolution fortne proposed improvement to be paid for with MFT funds in 
words foUowed by In the same amount in numerical format in the O. 

Insert the name oftne LPA clerk. 

Insert the type of cler1<. based on the LPA type. Types to choose from are:County,City, Town or Village. 

Insert the name of the LPA. 

Insert \he type of administrative body. Choose Board for County; Council for a City or Town;· President 
and Boanl of Trustees for a Village or Town. 

Insert the name oflhe LPA. 

Insert the date of the meeting. 

BLR 0911 0 (Rev. 03113117) 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 65

Day 

Month, Year 

Seal 

Clerk Signature 

Approved 

Insert the day Clerk is signing the document. 

Insert the month and year of the clerk's signature, 

The Clerk shall seal the document here. 

Clerk shal sign here. 

The Department ofTransporiation shall sign and date here once approved. 

A minimum of four (4) certified signed originals must be aubmlttBd to the Regional Engineer's District office. 
Following the Regional Engineers approval, distribution will be a8 follows: 

local pubrlC Agency Clerk 
Engin_ (Municipal, Consu~ant or County) 
District Compliance Review 
District File 

Printed 03101118 BlR09110 (Rev. 03113117) 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 66

The City of Berwyn 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Date: March 13, 2018 

To: Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Robert P. Schiller 
Director of Public Works 

Re: Engineering Agreement with Novotny Engineering for Design and Construction Services for Riverside 
Drive from Harlem Avenue to Cermak Road 

Staff is requesting the approval of the attached Engineering Agreement for Design and Construction Services 
for pavement resurfacing, pavement marking replacement, curb and gutter replacement for drainage, sidewalk 
removal and replacement for ADA compliance, pavement patching and restoration of Riverside Drive from 
Harlem Avenue to Cermak Road. This project is funded partially with Surface Transportation Program (STP) 
funds and Motor Fuel Tax (MFT) funds. 

Recommended Actions: 
Staff recommends approval of the attached engineering agreement with Novotny Engineering in the amount not 
to exceed $235,000.00. 

Respectfully, 

Robert Schiller 
Director of Public Works 

I Public Works Drive Berwyn, minois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 749-6510 Fax: (708) 749-9503 www.berwyn-il.gov 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 67

Municipality L Name 

City of Berwyn 0 @IDinois Depa b,lCIlt 
C Frank Novotny & Associates, Inc. dba of 1'anspOrtation C 0 Novotny Engineering 

Township A N Address 

Berwyn 
L S 545 Plainfield Road, Suite A 

Preliminary/Construction U 
county 

A 
Engineering Services L C~y 

G T Cook E Agreement 
A 

Willowbrook 
For N 

Motor Fuel Tax Funds N Section C State 
T 

16-00174-00-RS Y Illinois 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this day of 2018 between the above Local 
Agency (LA) and Consultant (ENGINEER) and covers certain professional engineering services in connection with the 
improvement of the above PROJECT. Motor Fuel Tax Funds, allolted to the LA by the State of Illinois under the general 
supervision of the State Department of Transportation, hereinafter called the 'DEPARTMENT', will be used entirely or in part 
to finance ENGINEERING services as described under AGREEMENT PROVISIONS. 

WHEREVER IN THIS AGREEMENT or altached exhibits the following terms are used, they shall be interpreted to mean: 

Regional Engineer Deputy Director Division of Highways, Regional Engineer, Department of 
Transportation 

Resident Construction Supervisor Authorized representative of the LA in immediate charge of the engineering details of the 
PROJECT 

Contractor Company or Companies to which the construction contract was awarded 

Section Description 

Name Riverside Drive Route 3569 Length 0.93 miles Structure No. _N:.:;'""A,--_ 

Termini Harlem Avenue to Cermak Road 

Description 
The proposed improvement consists of hot-mix aspha~ surface removal; curb & gulter removal & replacement; HMA and 
concrete driveway removal & replacement; pavement patching; HMA leveling binder & surface course installation; thermoplastic 
pavement markings; drainage structure adjustment & replacement; topsoil and sod parkway restoration; and all appurtenant 
construction. 

Agreement Provisions 

The Engineer Agrees, 

1. To perform or be responsible for the performance of the following engineering services for the LA in connection with the 
proposed improvement herein before described, and checked below: 

a. 1:81 Make such detailed surveys as are necessary for the preparation of detailed roadway plans. 

b. D Make stream and flood plain hydraulic surveys and gather high water data and flood histories for the preparation of 
detailed bridge plans. 

c. 1:81 Make or cause to be made such soil surveys or subsurface investigations including borings and soil profiles and 
analyses thereof as may be required to furnish sufficient data for the design of the proposed improvement. Such 
investigations are to be made in accordance with the current requirements of the DEPARTMENT. 

d. D Make or cause to be made such traffic studies and counts and special intersection studies as may be required to 
furnish sufficient data for the design of the proposed improvement. 

Printed 317/2018 
File #13217 

Page 1 of5 BLR 05512 (Rev. 01/10/12) 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 68

e. 0 Prepare Army Corps of Engineers Permit, Division of Waier Resources Permit, Bridge waterway sketch and/or 
Channel Change sketch, Utility plan and locations and Railroad Crossing work agreements. 

f. 0 Prepare Preliminary Bridge Design and Hydraulic Report, (including economic analysis of bridge or culvert types) 
and high water effects on roadway overflows and bridge approaches. 

NOTE Four copies to be submitted to the Regional Engineer 

g. 1:81 Make complete general and detailed plans, special provisions, proposals and estimates of cost and fumish the 
LA with five (5) copies of the plans, special provisions, proposals and estimates. Additional copies of any or all 
documents, if required shall be fumished to the LA by the ENGINEER at his actual cost for reproduction. 

h. 0 Furnish the LA with survey and drafts in quadruplicate of ail necessary right-of-way dedications, construction 
easements and borrow pit and channel change agreements including prints of the corresponding plats and 
staking as required. 

i. 1:81 Assist the LA in the receipt and evaluation of proposals and the awarding of the construction contract. 

j . 1:81 Furnish or cause to be furnished: 

(1) Proportioning and testing of concrete mixtures in accordance with the "Manual of Instructions for 
Concrete Proportioning and Testing" issued by the Bureau of Materials and Physical Research, of the 
DEPARTMENT and promptly submit reports on forms prepared by said Bureau. 

(2) Proportioning and testing of bituminous mixtures (including extracting test) in accordance with the 
"Manual of Instructions for Bituminous Proportioning and Testing" issued by the Bureau of Materials and 
Physical Research, of the DEPARTMENT, and promptly submit reports on forms prepared by said 
Bureau. 

(3) All compaction tests as required by the specifications and report promptly the same on forms prepared 
by the Bureau of Materials and Physical Research. 

(4) Quality and sieve analyses on local aggregates to see that they comply with the specificaiions contained 
in the contract. 

(5) Inspection of all materials when inspection is not provided at the sources by the Bureau of Materials and 
Physical Research, of the DEPARTMENT and submit inspection reports to the LA and the 
DEPARTMENT in accordance with the policies of the said DEPARTMENT. 

k. 1:81 Fumish or cause to be fumished 

(1) A resident construction supervisor, inspectors, and other technical personnel to perform the following 
work: (The number of such inspectors and other technical personnel required shall be subject to the 
approval of the LA.) 
a. Continuous observaiion of the work and the contractor's operations for compliance with the plans 

and specifications as construction proceeds, but the ENGINEER does not guarantee the 
performance of the contract by the contractor. 

b. Establishment and setting of lines and grades. 
c. Maintain a daily record of the contractor's activities throughout construction including sufficient 

information to permit verification of the nature and cost of changes in plans and authorized extra 
work. 

d. Supervision of inspectors, proportioning engineers and other technical personnel and the taking 
and submitting of material samples. 

e. Revision of contract drawings to reflect as built conditions. 
f. Preparation and submission to the LA in the required form and number of copies, all partial and 

final payment estimates, change orders, records and reports required by the LA and the 
DEPARTMENT. 

NOTE: When Federal funds are used for construction and the ENGINEER or the ENGINEER's assigned staff is 
named as resident construction supervIsor, the ENGINEER is required to be prequlllified with the 

Printed 31712018 
File #13217 

STA TE in Construction Inspection. The onsite resident construction suparvlsor and project inspectors 
shall possess valid Documentation of Contract Quantities certification. 

Page 2 of 5 BLR 05512 (Rev. 01/10112) 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 69

2. That all reports, plans, plats and special provisions to be furnished by the ENGINEER pursuant to this agreement will be 
in accordance with the current standard specifications and policies of the DEPARTMENT, it being understood that all 
such reports, plats, plans and drafts shall before being finally accepted, be subject to approval by the LA and the said 
DEPARTMENT. 

3. To attend conferences at any reasonable time when requested to do so by the LA or representatives of the 
DEPARTMENT. 

4. In the event plans, surveys or construction staking are found to be in error during the construction of the PROJECT and 
revisions of the plans or surveyor construction staking corrections are necessary, the ENGINEER agrees that he will 
perform such work without expense to the LA, even though final payment has been received by him. He shall give 
immediate attention to these changes so there will be a minimum delay to the contractor. 

5. The basic survey notes and sketches, charts, computations and other data prepared or obtained by the ENGINEER 
pursuant to this agreement will be made available upon request to the LA or the DEPARTMENT without cost and without 
restriction or limitations as to their use. 

6. To make such changes in working plans, including all necessary preliminary surveys and investigations, as may be 
required after the award of the construction contract and during the construction of the improvement. 

7. That all plans and other documents furnished by the ENGINEER pursuant to the AGREEMENT will be endorsed by him 
and will show his professional seal where such is required by law. 

B. To submit, upon request by the LA or the DEPARTMENT a list of the personnel and the equipment he/she proposes to 
use in fulfilling the requirements of this AGREEMENT. 

The LA Agrees, 

1. To pay the Engineer as compensation for all services performed as stipulated in paragraphs 1 a, 1 g, 1 i, 2, 3, 5 and 6 in 
accordance with one of the following methods indicated by a check mark: 

a 1:81 A sum of money equal to 4.0 percent of the awarded contract cost of the proposed improvement as 
approved by the DEPARTMENT. 

b. D A sum of money equal to the percentage of the awarded contract cost for the proposed improvement as 
approved by the DEPARTMENT based on the following schedule: 

Schedule for Percentages Based on Awarded Contract Cost 

Awarded Cost 
Under $50,000 

Percentage Fees 
__________ (see note) 

---------------------- % 
---------------------- % 
---------------------- % 
---------------------- % 
---------------------- % 

Note: Not necessarily a percentage. Could use per diem, cost-plus or lump sum. 

2. To pay for services stipulated in paragraphs 1b, 1c, 1d, 1e, 1f, 1h, 1j and 1k of THE ENGINEER AGREES at the hourly 
rates stipulated below for personnel assigned to this PROJECT as payment in full to the ENGINEER for the actual time 
spent in providing these services the hourly rates to include profit, overhead, readiness to serve, insurance, social 
security and retirement deductions. Traveling and other out-of-pocket expenses will be reimbursed to the ENGINEER at 
his actual cost. Subject to the approval of the LA, the ENGINEER may sublet all or part of the services provided under 
paragraphs 1b, 1c, 1d, 1e, 1f, 1j and 1k ofTHE ENGINEER AGREES. If the ENGINEER sublets all or a part of this 
work, the LA will pay the cost to the ENGINEER plus a five (5) percent service charge. "Cost to ENGINEER" to be 
verified by furnishing the LA and the DEPARTMENT copies of invoices from the party doing the work. The 
classifications of the employees used in the work should be consistent with the employee classifications for the services 
performed. If the personnel of the firm including the Principal Engineer perform routine services that should normally be 
performed by lesser-salaried personnel, the wage rate billed for such services shall be commensurate with the work 
performed. 

Ponted 317/2018 
File #13217 

Page 3 of 5 BLR 05512 (Rev. 01110/12) 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 70

Grade Classification 
of Employee 

Principal Engineer 
Resident Construction Supervisor 
Chief of Party 
Instrument Man 
Rodmen 
Inspectors 
Project Manager 
Senior Technician 
CAD Technician 
Technical Assistant 

Hourly Rate 

$160.00 - $175.00 
$145.00 - $160.00 

$130.00 - $160.00 
$120.00 - $140.00 
$100.00 - $125.00 
$ 40.00 - $ 65.00 

The hourly rates itemized above shall be effective the date the parties. hereunto entering this AGREEMENT, have affixed their 
hands and seals and shall remain in effect until 6/112019 . In event the services of the ENGINEER extend 

beyond 6/112019 , the hourly rates will be adjusted yearly by addendum to this AGREEMENT to compensate for 
increases or decreases in the salary structure of the ENGINEER that are in effect at that time. 

3. That payments due the ENGINEER for services rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT will be made as soon as 
practicable after the services have been performed, in accordance with the following schedule: 

a. Upon completion of detailed plans, special provisions, proposals and estimate of cost - being the work required by 
paragraphs 1 a through 1 g under THE ENGINEER AGREES - to the satisfaction of the LA and their approval by the 
DEPARTMENT, 90 percent of the total fee based on the above fee schedule and the approved estimate of cost. 

b. Upon award of the contract for the improvement by the LA and its approval by the DEPARTMENT, 100 percent of 
the total fee (excluding any fees paragraphs 1j and 1 k of the ENGINEER AGREES), based on the above fee 
schedule and the awarded contract cost, less any previous payment. 

c. Upon completion of the construction of the improvement, 90 percent of the fee due for services stipulated in 
paragraphs 1j and 1k. 

d. Upon completion of all final reports required by the LA and the DEPARTMENT and acceptance of the improvement 
by the DEPARTMENT, 100 percent of the total fees due under this AGREEMENT, less any amounts previously 
paid. 

By mutual agreement, partial payments, not to exceed 90 percent of the amount earned, may be made from time to time 
as the work progresses. 

4. That should the improvements be abandoned at any time after the ENGINEER has performed any part of the services 
provided for in paragraphs 1a and 19, and prior to the completion of such services the LA shall reimburse the 
ENGINEER 
for his actual costs plus 150 percent incurred up to the time he is notified in writing of such abandonment 
"actual cost" being defined as material costs plus actual payrolls, insurance, social security and retirement deductions. 
Traveling and other out-of-pocket expenses will be reimbursed to the ENGINEER at his actual cost. 

5. That should the LA require changes in any of the detailed plans, specifications or estimates (except for those required 
pursuant to paragraph 4 of THE ENGINEER AGREES) after they have been approved by the DEPARTMENT, the LA 
will pay the ENGINEER for such changes on the basis of actual cost plus 150 percent to cover profrt, overhead 
and readiness to serve - "actual cost" being defined as in paragraph 4 above. It is understood that "changes" as used in 
this paragraph shall in no way relieve the ENGINEER of his responsibility to prepare a complete and adequate set of 
plans. 

6. That should the LA extend completion of the improvement beyond the time limit given in the contract, the LA will pay the 
ENGINEER, in addition to the fees provided herein, his actual cost incurred beyond such time limit- "actual cost" being 
defined as in paragraph 4 above. 

7. To submit approved forms BC 775 and BC 776 with this AGREEMENT when federal funds are used for construction. 

It is Mutually Agreed, 

Printed 317/2018 
File #13217 

Page 4 of 5 BLR 05512 (Rev. 01/10112) 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 71

1. That any difference between the ENGINEER and the LA concerning the interpretation of the provisions of this 
AGREEMENT shall be referred to a committee of disinterested parties consisting of one member appointed by the 
ENGINEER one member appointed by the LA and a third member appointed by the two other members for disposition 
and that the committee's decision shall be final. 

2. This AGREEMENT may be tenminated by the LA upon giving notice in writing to the ENGINEER at his last known post 
office address. Upon such tenmination, the ENGINEER shall cause to be delivered to the LA all drawings, specifications, 
partial and completed estimates and data ~ any from traffIC studies and soil survey and subsurface investigations w~h 
the understanding that all such material becomes the property of the LA. The ENGINEER shall be paid for any services 
completed and any services partially completed in accordance with Section 4 of THE LA AGREES. 

3. That if the contract for construction has not been awarded one year after the acceptance of the plans by the LA and their 
approval by the DEPARTMENT, the LA will pay the ENGINEER the balance of the engineering fee due to make 100 
percent of the total fees due under the AGREEMENT, based on the estimate of cost as prepared by the ENGINEER and 
approved by the LA and the DEPARTMENT. 

4. That the ENGINEER warrants that he/she has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide 
employee working solely for the ENGINEER, to solicit or secure this contract and that he/she has not paid or agreed to 
pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the ENGINEER, any fee, commission, 
percentage, brokerage fee, gifts or any other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this 
contract. For breach or violation of this warranty the LA shall have the right to annul this contract w~hout liabil~y. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this AGREEMENT to be executed in quadruplicate counterparts, each of 
which shall be considered as an original by their duly authorized offices. 

Executed by the LA: 

ATTEST: 

By ___________________________ ___ 

_ .:.:M:::a::;rg..,a::.re",t:..:M",.:..:P...::a::u::..1 __________ Clerk 

(SeaO 

Executed by the ENGINEER: 

ATTEST: 

By ___________________________ ___ 

Title: John E. Fitzgerald, Secretary 

Ponied 31712018 
File #13217 

Approved 

Date 
Department of Transportation 

Regional Engineer 
Page 5 of 5 

_C:::Ic.:.TY..:....::O"-F-=B:.=E::..:RT.WY~N;;:/:::;B;:::E:;;;R:::-WY=.:N;::/iiC:=O::;O"'K'--____ of the 
(MunicipalitylTownshipiCounly) 

State of Illinois, acting by and through its 

By Robert J. Lovero 

Title: Mayor 

FRANK NOVOTNY & ASSOCIATES, INC. dba 

NOVOTNY ENGINEERING 

545 PLAINFIELD RD., SUITE A, WILLOWBROOK, IL 60527 

Hie: James L. Cainkar, President 

BLR 05512 (Rev. 01/10112) 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 72

The City of Berwyn 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Date: March 13, 2018 

To: Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Robert P. Schiller 
Director of Public Works 

Re: Engineering Agreement with Novotny Engineering for Design and Construction Services for sidewalk 
along Riverside Drive and 2()1h Street from Harlem Avenue to Home Avenue 

Staff is requesting the approval of the attached Engineering Agreement for Design and Construction Services 
for the construction of new sidewalk with ADA ramps, installation of pedestrian countdown timers and 
restoration along Riverside Drive and 26th Street from Harlem Avenue to Home Avenue. This project is funded 
partially with Surface Transportation Program (STP) funds, Illinois Transportation Enhancement Program 
(ITEP) funds and Motor Fuel Tax (MFT) funds. 

Recommended Actions: 
Staff recommends approval of the attached engineering agreement with Novotny Engineering in the amount not 
to exceed $61,840.00. 

Respectfully, 

Robert Schiller 
Director of Public Works 

I Public Works Drive Berwyn, Illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 749-6510 Fax: (708) 749-9503 www.berwyn-i1.gov 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 73

Municipality L Name 

City of Berwyn 0 OO~noisDe~ C Frank Novotny & Associates, Inc. dba of1tanspOrtation C 0 Novotnv Enaineerina 
Township A N Address 

Berwyn 
L S 545 Plainfield Road. Suite A 

Preliminary/Construction U 
County A 

Engineering Services L City 
G T Cook E Agreement 

A 
Willowbrook 

N For 
Section MolDr Fuel Tax Funds N State C T 15-00173-00-SW Y Illinois 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this day of March ,2018 between the above Local 
Agency (LA) and Consultant (ENGINEER) and covers certain professional engineering services in connection w~h the 
improvement of the above PROJECT. Motor Fuel Tax Funds, allotted to the LA by the State of Illinois under the general 
supervision of the State Department of Transportation, hereinafter called the "DEPARTMENT", will be used entirely or in part 
to finance ENGINEERING services as described under AGREEMENT PROVISIONS. 

WHEREVER IN THIS AGREEMENT or attached exhibits the following terms are used, they shall be interpreted to mean: 

Regional Engineer Deputy Director Division of Highways, Regional Engineer, Depariment of 
Transportation 

Resident Construction Supervieor Authorized representative of the LA in immediate charge of the engineering details of the 
PROJECT 

Contractor Company or Companies to which the construction contract was awarded 

Section Description 

Name 26'" St. & Riverside Dr. Route 1459 Length 0.30 miles Structure No . ....:N.::;fA,-,-_ 

Termini Harlem Avenue to Home Avenue 

Description 
The proposed Improvement consists of earth excevation, new concrete sidewalk and ADA ramps, installation of new 
pedestrian signal countdown timers, restoration and all appurtenant construction. 

Agreement Provisions 

The Engineer Agrees, 

1. To perform or be responsible for the performance of the following engineering services for the LA in connection with the 
proposed improvement herein before described, and checked below: 

a. 181 Make such detailed surveys as are necessary for the preparation of detailed roadway plans. 

b. 0 Make stream and flood plain hydraulic surveys and gather high water data and flood histories for the preparation 0 
detailed bridge plans. 

c. 181 Make or cause to be made such soil surveys or subsurface investigations including borings and soil profiles end 
analyses thereof as may be required to furnish sufficient data for the design of the proposed improvement. Such 
investigations are to be made in accordance with the current requirements of the DEPARTMENT. 

d. 0 Make or cause to be made such traffic studies and counts and special intersection studies as may be required to 
furnish sufficient data for the design of the proposed improvement. 

Printed 31112018 
File #14471 

Page l of5 BLR 05512 (Rev. 01/10/12l 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 74

e. 0 Prepare Anny Corps of Engineers Permit, DivISion of Water Resources Permit, Bridge waterway sketch and/or 
Channel Change sketch, Utility plan and locations and Railroad Crossing work agreements. 

f. 0 Prepare Preliminary Bridge Design and Hydraulic Report, (including economic analysis of bridge or culvert types) 
and high water effects on roadway overflows and bridge approaches. 

NOTE Four copies to be submitted to the Regional Engineer 

g. ~ Make complete general and detailed plans, special provisions, proposals and estimates of cost and furnish the 
LA with five (5) caples of the plans, special provisions, proposals and estimates. Additional copies of any or all 
documents, if required shall be furnished to the LA by the ENGINEER at his actual cost for reproduction. 

h. 0 Fumish the LA with survey and drafts in quadruplicate of all necessary right-of-way dedications, construction 
easements and borrow pit and channel change agreements including prints of the corresponding plats and 
staking as required. 

i. ~ Assist the LA In the receipt and evaluallon of proposals and the awarding of the construction contract. 

j. ~ Furnish or cause to be furnished: 

(1) Proportioning and testing of concrete mixtures in accordance with the 'Manual of Instructions for 
Concrete Proportioning and Testing" Issued by the Bureau of Malerials and Physical Research, of the 
DEPARTMENT and promptly submit reports on forms prepared by said Bureau. 

(2) Proportioning and testing' of bituminous mixtures (including extracting test) in accordance with the 
"Manual of Instructions for Bituminous Proportioning and Testing" issued by the Bureau of Materials and 
Physical Research, of the DEPARTMENT, and promptly submit reports on fonns prepared by said 
Bureau. 

(3) All compaction tests as required by the specifications and report promptly the same on fonns prepared 
by the Bureau of Materials and Physical Research. 

(4) Quality and sieve analyses on local aggregates to see that they comply with the specifications contained 
in the contract. 

(5) Inspection of all materials when inspection is not provided at the sources by the Bureau of Materials and 
Physical Research, of the DEPARTMENT and submit inspection reports to the LA and the 
DEPARTMENT in accordance with the policies of the said DEPARTMENT. 

k. ~ Furnish or cause 10 be furnished 

(1) A resident construction supervisor, inspectors, and other technical personnel to perfonn the following 
work: (The number of such inspectors and other technical personnel required shall be subject to the 
approval of the LA.) 
a. Continuous observation of the work and the contractor's operations for compliance with the plans 

and specifications as construction proceeds, but the ENGINEER does nol guarantee the 
perfonnance of the contract by the contractor. 

b. Establishment and setting of lines and grades. 
c. Maintain a daily record of the contractor's activities throughout construction including sufficient 

Information to permit verification of the nature and cost of changes in plans and authorized extra 
work. 

d. Supervision of Inspectors, proportioning engineers and other technical personnel and the taking 
and submitting of material samples. 

e. Revision of contract drawings to reflect as built conditions. 
f. Preparation and submission to the LA in the required fonn and number of copies, all partial and 

final payment estimates, change orders, records and reports required by the LA and the 
DEPARTMENT. 

NOTE: When Federal funds are used for construction and the ENGINEER or the ENGINEER's assigned staff Is 
named as resident construction supervisor, the ENGINEER Is required to be prequalified with the 

Printed 31112018 
File #14471 

STA TE In Construction Inspection. The onsite resident construction supervisor and project inspectors 
shall possess valid Documentation of Contract Quantities certification. 

Page 2 of 5 BLR 05512 (Rev. 01/10112) 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 75

2. That all reports, plans, plats and special provisions to be furnished by the ENGINEER pursuant to this agreement will be 
in accordance with the current standard specifications and policies of the DEPARTMENT, it being understood that all 
such reports, plats, plans and drafts shall before being finally accepted, be subject to approval by the LA and the said 
DEPARTMENT. 

3. To attend conferences at any reasonable time when requested to do so by the LA or representatives of the 
DEPARTMENT. 

4. In the event plans, surveys or construction staking are found to be in error during the construction of the PROJECT and 
revisions of the plans or surveyor construction staking corrections are necessary, the ENGINEER agrees that he will 
perform such work without expense to the LA, even though final payment has been received by him. He shall give 
immediate attention to these changes so there will be a minimum delay to the contractor. 

5. The basic survey notes and sketches, charts, computations and other data prepared or obtained by the ENGINEER 
pursuant to this agreement will be made available upon request 10 the LA or the DEPARTMENT wnhout cost and without 
restriction or limITations as to their use. 

6. To make such changes in working plans, including all necessary preliminary surveys and investigations, as may be 
required after the award of the construction contract and during the construction of the improvement. 

7. That all plans and other documents furnished by the ENGINEER pursuant to the AGREEMENT will be endorsed by him 
and will show his professional seal where such is required by law. 

e. To submit, upon request by the LA or the DEPARTMENT a list of the personnel and the eqUipment he/she proposes to 
use in fulfilling the requirements of this AGREEMENT. 

The LA Agrees, 

1. To pay the Engineer as compensation for all services performed as stipulated In paragraphs la, 19, Ii, 2, 3, 5 and 6 in 
accordance with one of the following methods indicated by a check mark: 

a [8J A sum of money equal to 11.0 percent of the awarded contract cost of the proposed improvement as 
approved by the DEPARTMENT. 

b. 0 A sum of money equal 10 the percentage of the awarded contract cost for the proposed improvement as 
approved by the DEPARTMENT based on the following schedule: 

Schedule for Percentages Based on Awarded Contract Cost 

Awarded Cost 
Under $50,000 

Percentage Fees 
__________ (see note) 

-----,------_ % 
% 

---------- % 

------------ % 
---------- % 

Note: Not necessarily a percentage. Could use per diem, cost-piUS or lump sum. 

2. To pay for services stipulated in paragraphs 1 b, Ie, 1 d, Ie, If, 1 h, lj and 1 k of THE ENGINEER AGREES at the hourly 
rates stipulated below for personnel assigned 10 this PROJECT as payment In full 10 the ENGINEER for the actual time 
spent In providing these services the hourly rates 10 include profit, overhead, readiness 10 serve, insurance, social 
security and retirement deductions. Traveling and other out-of-pocket expenses will be reimbursed 10 the ENGINEER at 
his actual cost Subject 10 the approval of the LA, the ENGINEER may sublet all or part of the services provided under 
paragraphs lb, 1c, ld, 1e, 1f, lj and 1k ofTHE ENGINEER AGREES. If the ENGINEER sublets all or a part ofthis 
work, the LA will pay the cost to the ENGINEER plus a five (5) percent service charge. 'Cost 10 ENGINEER" to be 
verified by fumlshing the LA and the DEPARTMENT copies of invoices from the party doing the work. The 
classifications of the employees used in the work should be consistent with the employee classifications for the services 
performed. If the personnel of the firm including the Principal Engineer perform routine servlces that should normally be 
performed by lesser-salaried personnel, the wage rate billed for such services shall be commensurate with the work 
performed. 

Printed 31112018 
File #14471 

Page 3 of 5 BLR 05512 (Rev. 01110112) 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 76

Grade Classification 
of Employee 

Principal Engineer 
Resident Construction Supervisor 
Chief of Party 
Instrument Man 
Rodmen 
Inspectors 
Project Manager 
Senior Technician 
CAD Technician 
Technical Assistant 

Hourly Rate 

. $160.00 - $175.00 
$145.00 - $160.00 

$130.00 - $160.00 
$120.00 - $140.00 
$100.00 - $125.00 
$ 40.00 - $ 65.00 

The hourly rates itemized above shall be effective the date the parties, hereunto entering this AGREEMENT, have affixed their 
hands and seals and shall remain in effect until 6/1/2019 . In eventthe services of the ENGINEER extend 
beyond 6/112019 , the hourly rates will be adjusted yearly by addendum to this AGREEMENT to compensate for 
increases or decreases In the salary structure of the ENGINEER that are In effect at that time. 

3. That payments due the ENGINEER for services rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT will be made as soon as 
practicable after the services have been performed, in accordance with the following schedule: 

a. Upon completion of detailed plans, special provisions, proposals and estimate of cost - being the work required by 
paragraphs 1a through 19 under THE ENGINEER AGREES - to the satisfaction of the LA and their approval by the 
DEPARTMENT, 90 percent of the total fee based on the above fee schedule and the approved estimate of cost. 

b. Upon award of the contract for the improvement by the LA and its approval by the DEPARTMENT, 100 percent of 
the total fee (excluding any fees paragraphs 1J and 1k of the ENGINEER AGREES), based on the above fee 
schedule and the awarded contract cost, less any previous payment. 

c. Upon completion of the construction of the improvement, 90 percent of the fee due for services stipulated in 
paragraphs 1j and 1 k. 

d. Upon completion of all final reports required by the LA and the DEPARTMENT and acceptance of the improvement 
by the DEPARTMENT, 100 percent of the total fees due under this AGREEMENT, less any amounts previously 
paid. 

By mutual agreement, partial payments, not to exceed 90 percent of the amount earned, may be made from time to time 
as the work progresses. 

4. That should the improvements be abandoned at any time after the ENGINEER has performed any part of the services 
provided for in paragraphs 1 a and 19, and prior to the completion of such services the LA shall reimburse the 
ENGINEER 
for his actual costs plus 150 percent incurred up to the time he is notified in writing of such abandonment 
"actual cost" being defined as material costs plus actual payrolls, insurance, social security and retirement deductions. 
Traveling and other out-of-pocket expenses will be reimbursed to the ENGINEER at his actual cost. 

5. That should the LA require changes In any of the detailed plans, specifICations or estimates (except for those required 
pursuant to paragraph 4 of THE ENGINEER AGREES) after they have been approved by the DEPARTMENT, the LA 
will pay the ENGINEER for such changes on the basis of actual cost plus 150 percent to cover profit, overhead 
and readiness to serve - "actual cost' being defined as in paragraph 4 above. It is understood that 'changes" as used in 
this paragraph shall in no way relieve the ENGINEER of his responsibility to prepare a complete and adequate set of 
plans. 

6. That should the LA extend completion of the Improvement beyond the time limit given In the contract, the LA will pay the 
ENGINEER, in addition to the fees provided herein, his actual cost incurred beyond such time IimH - "actual cost' being 
defined as in paragraph 4 above. 

7. To submit approved forms BC 775 and BC 776 with this AGREEMENT when federal funds are used for construction. 

It is Mutually Agreed, 

Ponied 31112018 
File #14471 

Page 4 of 5 BLR rui512 (Rev. 01/10112) 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 77

1. That any difference between the ENGINEER and the LA concerning the interpretation of the provisions of this 
AGREEMENT shall be referred to a committee of disinterested parties conSisting of one member appointed by the 
ENGINEER one member appointed by the LA and a third member appointed by the two other members for disposition 
and that the committee's decision shall be final. 

2. This AGREEMENT may be terminated by the LA upon giving notice in writing to the ENGINEER at his last known post 
offICe address. Upon such termination, the ENGINEER shall cause to be delivered to the LA all drawings, SpeciflCBtionS, 
partial and completed estimates and data If any from traffic studies and soil survey and subsurface Investigations with 
the understanding that all such material becomes the property of the LA. The ENGINEER shall be paid for any services 
completed and any services partially completed In accordance with Section 4 of THE LA AGREES. 

3. That if the contract for construction has not been awarded one year after the acceptance of the plans by the LA and their 
approval by the DEPARTMENT, the LA will pay the ENGINEER the balance of the engineering fee due to make 100 
percent of the total fees due under the AGREEMENT, based on the estimate of cost as prepared by the ENGINEER and 
approved by the LA and the DEPARTMENT. 

4. That the ENGINEER warrants that he/she has not employed or retained any company or parson, other than a bona fide 
employee working solely for the ENGINEER, to solicit or secure this contract and that he/she has not paid or agreed to 
pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the ENGINEER, any fee, commission, 
percentage, brokerage fee, gifts or any other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this 
contract. For breach or violation of this warranty the LA shall have the right to annul this contract without liability. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this AGREEMENT to be executed in quadruplicate counterparts, each of 
which shall be considered as an original by their duly authorized offices. 

Executed by the LA: 

ATTEST: 

By __________________________ __ 

__ ~M=my~a~ra~t~M~. ~Pa=u~I __________________ Clerk 

(Seal) 

Executed by the ENGINEER: 

ATTEST: 

By __________________________ ___ 

Title: John E. Fitzgerald, Secretary 

Printed 31112018 
File *14471 

Approved 

Date 
Department of Transportation 

Regional Engineer 
Page 5015 

~C~I~TY~O~F~B=E~RWY~~N~/~B~ER~WY==N~/ C~OO~~K _________ ofthe 
(MunicipalitylTownahIpICounty) 

State of Illinois, acting by and through Its 

By Robert J. Lovero 

TrtIe: Mayor 

FRANK NOVOTNY & ASSOCIATES, INC. dba 

NOVOTNY ENGINEERING 

545 PLAINFIELD RD., SUITE A, WILLOWBROOK, IL 60527 

Tifte: James L. Cainkar, President 

BLR 05512 (Rev. 01110112) 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 78

The City of Berwyn 

Date: March 13,2018 

To: Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
Members of City Council 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Re: Waste Management Contract 

Brian L. Pabst 
City Administrator 

S-Cf 

In 2015, the City of Berwyn signed a contract with Waste Management to provide waste and recycling services 
through December 31, 2018. 

Over the past several months, staff has met with Waste Management officials in order to proactively ascertain 
what additional benefits we could offer the residents in an extended contract. The objectives for the extension 
were: I) minimize any cost increase; 2) analyze current level of service; and 3) expand services to include a 
hazardous waste/electronic program that picks up items at residents' door. The normal cost ofthis "At Your 
Door" program is $1.35 per home per month or $1.35 x 16,297 households = $22,000 per month; however, 
Waste Management has agreed to provide this valuable service at no additional cost for the next 5 years. Staff 
maintained a hard line was also able to secure the following existing and new benefits via a 5-year contract 
commitment: 

• January 1,2019- December 31 , 2019: 0010 increase 
• January I, 2020 - December 31, 2023: 2.5% annual increase 

Highlights of the Contract: 
• Each house receives one 96 gallon cart for weekly waste pick-up. 
• Each house receives one 64 gallon cart for weekly recycle pick-up. 
• Continued survey of carts - Identifying damaged lids/carts and replacing same. 
• Controlled garbage rates - this renewal maintains the current garbage rate through December 31, 

2019 -zero percent increase. At that time, there will be a yearly scheduled increase of 2.5% to account 
for inflation consistent with current contract. 

• Senior discount - Seniors a minimum of 63 years in age receive a 10 % discount. 
• The City receives a rebate of $20 per ton of recyclable materials collected. The amount received in 

2017 was $77,553.80. This is a unique incentive only given to three other Waste Management 
municipalities within Illinois. 

• Landscape waste collection season is from April I to December 31. 
• Christmas trees are collected the 2nd and 3rd week of January. 
• One "white good" (Ranges, refrigerators, water heaters, other similar domestic commercial large 

appliances) collected per week. 
• One bulk item (ex. Couch, mattress, tables, and other similar large furniture types) collected per week. 
• At Your Door Spedal Collection program - Collection of household hazardous waste and electronic 

waste (household chemicals, automotive products, paint products, garden chemicals, universal materials, 
and electronics) have now been added to our services for no extra charge. The resident contacts Waste 
6700 We .. 26" Street Berwyn,lllinoi, 60402.0701 Telepho"," (708) 7SS·266O FIOO (708) 788.2567 www.berwyn.i1.gov 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 79

The City of Berwyn Brian L. Pabst 
City Administrator 

Management, a kit is mailed to the resident and the items are picked up at the resident's door on a 
scheduled date. 

• Recycle Often, Recycle Right program - A recycling education program that helps residents gain a better 
understanding of what is and is not included in the curbside recycling service in an effort to reduce 
contamination. In addition to attending schools, various meetings such as Ward meetings to educate the 
public, Waste Management created a recycling video that has had over 13,000 City Facebook views not 
counting the number oftimes the public has viewed the video via the City's website. 

• Waste Watch Program - Waste Management provides its community watch program to Berwyn to assist 
the police and fire departments by acting as extra eyes and ears on the streets. 

• Roll-Off Boxes - As a part of our contract, Waste Management provides 250 20 cubic yard roll-off 
boxes to Berwyn. These are used by Public Works for waste collected in the City's garbage containers 
found in the City's commercial corridors in addition to leaf collection and other various waste. 

• Special Event Services - Waste Management provides port-o-lets and, portable sinks, and waste 
containers for 14 City sponsored events. 

• Waste and recycling services to City buildings/property - Waste Management provides waste and 
recycling services to 13 City properties and 2 commercial corridors. 

• An exclusive Waste Management website to Berwyn residents - home.wm.comlberwvn. This website 
provides information regarding Waste Management's services to Berwyn residents. Residents can also 
email service requests/complaints through this website. 

The City of Berwyn and Waste Management have built a strong relationship over the years. This team is 
committed to providing first-rate services to residents and promoting a "green" earth. Their superior service is 
seen in quick response times to resident concerns, expanded recycling programs, educational programs, 
environmentally friendly trucks that run on natural gas, a "Think Green" grant of $2,500 to help purchase trees 
for Berwyn and now a hazardous waste service at no additional charge. 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends the approval of the attached five-year contract with Waste Management. 

n,;. .k 
Brian Pabst Ruth Volbre Robert Schiller 
City Administrator Assistant City Administrator Public Works Director 

- 2 -



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 80

MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE. RECYCLING ANP YARD WASTE AGREEMENT 

TIlis Municipal Solid Was(c, Recycling and Yard Waste Agreement (the "Ailreemem") is enter~d into on , 2018 
(the "Effective Date"), by and between the City eX Berwyn, a municipal corporation created under me laws cJ me S[Qce of Illinois ("City''). 
and Waste Management of Illinois, Inc. (I>WM"), a Delaware corporation. 

Redtal. 
A. The City desire:! to provide its citizens with environmentally sound solid wASte collection. and disposal, ra.-ychlble materials collection 

and yard waste collection; 
B. WM and its affiliates have extensive: experience in providing solid wtl;slC, yard waste and rec.yclable materials collection, disposal and 

pmcessing; and 
C. The City has detemuned that it would bt: in the best interests of ics citizens to contract with WM for the collectIon of irs residemial 

solid waste. recyclable IMterials and yard waste according to the terms and conditions contained herein. 

Agreements 
1. PEFINITIONS 

a. Acceprable Waste - shall mean all noo#lw.ardous solid waste generated by househokb: in the ordinary course (ncluding moo wa:stcs and 
diKarded pope". canlbootd, pl.5t><.~, cloth, ita.. and metal material~ but excluding Exduded Waste as def",ed herein. Wast< shall be COf .. Kler.d 
'Accep",ble Waste" only if properly contaIned with 96-gallon Carts placed In the .lIey or at d,e curb os de.lgnared bv the City on d,e proper 
weekly collection day, but occ~sional overflow of waste is permitted If it is properly contained in a rigid sided container with handles no larger 
than 32 gallons and 50 lbs. in proximity to the Cart. AJ used herein, dle term "waste" shalt mean Acc.::eptahle Waste unless the context 
demonstrates otherwise. Tide [0 Acceprnble Waste shall mmsfer to WM upon collection in WM vehicles. 

b. Exduded Waste shall mean, without limitation, any regulated quantity of a Hazardous Waste or Hazardous Substance as defined 
by federal, state or local laws or regulatiOns; containerized wastes. the contents of which are not able to be idcntificch sludges; waste from a 
pOllution control process or cleanup of 9 spill of a chemical substance or commercial producti waste tires; biohazards or regulated medical 
waste; friable i'sbesros; construction and demolition wastei soil, sod, tree branches and stumps; paint; motor oil; excessh,t storm debris or 
debris resulting from weather events such as hurricanes or tropical StOrIn$.; or any item too large or heavy to be contained within a %~galton 
Care. Title to and liability for Excluded Waste shaH remain with the resident d18t generated the Excluded Waste at all times. 

c. RecyclAbles or Recyclahle Materials - are defined In Exhibit A. Tide to RecyclAble Materials shall uansfer to WM upon collection in 
WM vehicles. 

d. Y~rd Waste -shall mean leave, grass, shrubbery, clippings, and similar garden waste. This material muse be placed in the alley or at me 
cum as designoted bv the CitY in biodegradable Kraft paper hags or 32.-gallon rigid :5ided containers with handles. The bagJi or containers must not 
weigh more than 50 100. TWigs and brunches can be bundled in four toot long by [wo foot diametcr bundles, tied and left in the alley or at the 
curb as designi'ted by the City for pick~up. Individual branches cannot exceed 3" In diameter. 

e. Bulk Items - shall mean Ia~ furnlture#type items sut'h as couches, chairs, mattresses, tables and other furniture pieceti including 
carpeting Wt h .. becn cut, rted and bundled into rolls no larger than four (4) feet long and each bundled weighing no more than SO pounds. 
Bult. items do not include white goods and electronic waste. 

f. Whit( Goods - s},all mean ''WhIte Goods" as defined by the Illinois Environmental Protection Act, 4151LCS 5/1 e[ seq., as amended, 
or in rules promulgated thereunder. 

g. Residential Unit shall mean R dwelling within the corporate lunits of the City occupied by a person or persons as R Uomicile. A 
residential unit shall be deemed occupied when wither domestic water or Hglu and power 5elViccs are being supplied there[o. Apartment or 
condominium bUildings with four (4) or more individual dwellings shall not be comidered Residential Units and art, therefore. not covered by 
this Agreement. 

h. Senior Rare Residents 6J Hlld older must show proof of age [0 receive senior discount. A copy of a driver's license or sCAte 
idcntificanon will be required. Seniol discount billing adjustments will be based upon the copies sent {O WM. 

II. TERM 
The initial term of this Agreement shall he for five (5) years commencing on Janwuy I, 2019, and expiring December 31, 202), and 
thereafter shOlIl autom~tically renew for successive ~newal terms of one~year ea(..h, unless either Party giv~s thc! other Parry written notice of 
ils intention to terminate the Agreement at lea~ ninety days prior to the end of the then#currcnt term. All notices shall be served by 
certified mail. return receipt requested, or by a nationally recognized overnight courier servict. 

11l. SERVICES 
3. WM shH.Il furnish [he labor, equipment, licenses, permits. and other requirements necessary to provide Acceptable Wtute ilnd 

Recyclable Materials collection to all Residents Units of the City, which currently consists of approximately 16,297 Rl!Sldentlal Units (the 
"Servicell

). As part of the Service, WM shall: 
i. ('..Hrr Supply. Ench Residentiill Unit has already been provided ,I 96~galh,:m eart for Acceptable Wa~te and .1 separate 64·gallon 

Cart for Recyclable Materials. New Residential Units will be provided a 96~gallon Carr for Ac<.;cptable Waste and a scp3rate 64# 
gnJlon Drt for Recyclable Materials as the Units arc added to the City. 11" Carts and equipment WM furnishes Residenrs and 
the City shall remain WM's property Residents may purchase an additional refuse or recycle cart for $75.00. 

ii. Acceptable Waste Collection fuguen,y Days :md Times. Acceptable Waste shall be collected from the curbside once per week 
from ("ach Residential Unit on R weekday or weekdays to be "greed by WM Rtld City. WM sh~ll be responsible for removing 
spilltlgc caused in the 1.:00U5e of providing colleccion, Collections shall occur duling ordinary hours bur in no instance e~rlicr 
than 7:00 A.M. All Acceptable- Waste must be- placed in the alley or at [he curb as designaced by the Cit)' for collcction no later 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 81

th~n 6:00 P.M. on scheduled day of col1ectlon. Residential Units may place additional Acceptable Waste out on collection d.'lY 
so long as it is properly cont3ined in iii rigid sided container with handles no larger than 32 gallons and 50 Ihs. 

iii. Rccydahle Materials Colleer-ion Frequency. Days and Times. WM shall provide recycling collection services to Residential Units 
on a weekly basis, subject to the terms find conditions in Exhibit A. All Recyclable Materials must be placed in the alley or at 
the curb as cksignated by the City for c<>lIection no later than 6:00 A.M. on scheduled day of colleetlon. The City and 
Residential Units shall ensure that only materials acceptable in accordance with Exhibit A are placed in the recycling 
containers. Residential Uni[5 may place additional Recyclable MateriAls out on collection day so long as it Is contained wirhin a 
rigid sided contRiner with handles that is clearly identified by the Residential Unit as being for Recyclable Materials d1.1t is no 
larger than 32 gallons and 50 Ibs. WM reserves the! right to refuse recycling services where the! mat~ri8ls are not properly 
segregated from walte or other non-recyclable material. 

iv. Yard Waste Collection Frequency. Days and Times. WM shall provide yard waste collection services to Residential Units on a 
weekly basis heglnning on April rc of each yenr and concluding on December 3r' of each yeAr. All Yard Waste must be placed 
in the alley or at the curb as deSignated by the City for ..:ollection no later than 6:00 A.M. on scheduled day of collection. 
Residential Units must place Yard Waste out on collection day in a biodegradable bag or 8 rigid sided container with handles 
clearly identified by the Residential Unit as being for Yard Waste that is no larger than 321:3l1ons and 50 Ibs. Twigs and 
bronches can be bundled in four foot long by two foot diameter bundles, tied and left in the alley or at rl"le curb as designated by the 
City for pick-up. Individual bronches cannot exceed .J" in diameter. 

v. Chrjstmas Tree Collecrion. R~idents may 5e'[ out one Ouistmas tree per Residential Unit to be collected. on the designated 
collection day during the sttond and third futl wedts of January ench year. Cllristmas trees must be clean (e.g., no ornaments, 
li~hts or tinsel), unbagged and under 6 fecr in length (or cut into 2 pieces, each under 6 feet In length, if trte is greater than 6 
fe.t tall). 

vi. At vour Door Boccial Colleqion!i)l prornm. WM shall provide fur rhe collection of household hazardous waste and electronic 
waste through its At Your Door Special Collectlon~1 pcogram (AYOl in accordance with Exhibit B. Visit wm.ty9urdoor.com. 
The cost of the program is inchJdcd in the: monthly service rate. Notwithstanding Section 2 of this Agreement, WM sooll 
provide the At Your Door Special Collection9.' program In accordance with Exhibit B as of October I, 2018. WM will pick up 
electronics left at Public Works during the transition of the program. 

vii. Exclusjons frOID tbe Service - Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Service shull not include large trees, tree 
roots, tree trunks, sod, rock nnd buildin&: materials such IlS lumber, brick, countertops, guttcrs, ~\uminum siding, rumac~s, 
central air conditioning units, paneling, fencing, drywall. etc., constrUC'[ion or demolition waste colll"Ction. Services to 

commercial establishments acc not covered by this Agreement. 
viii. ~. WM shall dispose or arrange to dispose of the Acceptable Waste collected under this Agreement only at solid waste 

disposal faci1ities that ace licensed and permitted to accept such solid waste. 
ix. HQHday Schedule. The: following shall be designated holidays on which the Service shall not be provided: New Year's Day, 

Memllrial Day, Independe!nce Day, Lnbor DdY, ThanksgiVing Day and Christmas Day. If .. designaU!.d holiday falls on a 
regularly scheduled Service day, the Service will be pc:rformed on the next weekday including Saturday. 

x. Cart Renlacement. WM shall replace at no ..:harge to tile City or the individual Residential Unie any Cart that becomes 4.1.1magcd 
or desrroycd during the provision of the Service, or that becomes unusable because of ordinary wear and tear. However, if a 
Cart in the possession of a Residential Unlt is lost, stolen, damaged, or destroyed through no fault of WM. the occupant of the 
Residential Unit shall be cesponsible to compensate WM the fair market value for the replacement of slich Cart. The 
Rcsidential Unit shall be billed separately for such replacement cost. 

b. Bulk ircms. WM shall pick up one (I) Bulk Item per week per Residcntial Unit at no additioor.1 cost. Residenti,,1 Units will be 
responsible to contact WM and make amtngcments for collection of addidonal Bulk Items on an individual hAsis. 

c. Whitt Goods. WM shall pick up one (1) White Good per week per Residential Unit at no additional cost. Residential Units will 
be responsible to contact WM and make ilrmngements for collection of White Goods on an individual basis. 

d. C&mpHance with L,ws. The Service shall be performed itt acc..x)rdancc: with all applicable Shltutes, laws, rules, regulatiolu and 
ordinances. 

e. Permm:l and Equipment. The Service shall be performed by properly trained and licensed personnel in adequate numben nnd with 
adequate vehicles and equipment to complete the Service in II safe and timely m~nner. 

f. Complajms and Missed Pick·Ups. All complaints as to WM's provision of the Service, including alleged missed pit:k.ups, shall be given 
prompt: and courteous attention. WM shall (lttempc to resolve all complaints promptly, and shall cure all missed pick-ups that are not the result c.i 
force majeure evonts within one (1) w«kd.y, conditions pcmlitting. WM shall provide a local phone number (800-964·8988), .",!fed by .n 
authorized agent, between the hours of 8:00 am and 5:00 pm Mond<l.Y through FridtlY, to handle! inquiries And complaints connected with 
services provided under this Agreement. Residents may also submie inquiries and complaints through WM's webpage specifically designed 
fur Berwyn residents hom('.wm.l~ .. )(n/"t'rwYl1. 

g. Anti~OiscriminatPoo. In perfonning me Service, WM shall not discrimimue against any person 00 tht.' basis of filee, rcligKlll, sex, 
n."'Itional origin. political affiliotion. or physical and mental disability scrvkc. 

h. ExclusivE,". The City grants the exclusive right to perform the Services sct forth in this Agreement. The City agrees that it will not 
allow anyone orher man WM to lease cnrts to residents tU engage in the collection of residenti~1 waste within (he City 

IV. MUNICIPAL LOCATIONS 
WM will provide. at no addieional charge, refusc. recycling Ilnd Por[~()"Let (POL) services [0 the City of Berwyn locations listed on Exhibit 
C. Any t!.dditionallocntions will be reviewed by the City and WM before adding. 

V. SPECIAL EVENTS 

2 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 82

WM will provide, at no Additional chartt', refuse, recycle and Pan-O·Let (POL) services for the City r:i Bcnvyn special events lined on 
Exhibit C. Any additional even£5 will be reviewed by [he City Rnd WM before adding. 

VI. ROLL'()FF BOXES FOR PUBLIC WORKS 
WM shall provide annually, at no additional chafgC, up to 250 20 cubic yard roll-ott' boxes at the City's PubHc Works Yard and servkf! said 
containers on an as-needed basis. Additional r'l.lll-off boxes in excess of 250 annually shall be charged Ar 11 rate of $350.00 per loAd and 
$45.00 per tllO over 4 tons. 

VII. ADDITIONAL PROGRAMS 
WM will provide the following ptograms at no cost to rht: City: 

R. R!?Cycle Often. Recycle RighttM. WM wfllintroduce its recycling education program and work with (he Villagt! to communicate 
the message to its residenu in accordance with Exhiblr O. This progrum will help residents gain a better undersranding of what is and is not 
included in the curbside recycling service and reduce contamination. Visit n'!..'ydf't)ftcnreqrrlcdght+,OJD. 

b. Waste Watl'h. WM will provide its community watch program to the City [0 assist the police and fire depmtments by acting as 
extra eyes and ears on the streets in accordance with Exhibit E. 

c. LnwnTrncker. WM will supply the City with up to five (5) flore.sccnt/standard light bulb recycling boxes per yem. at no cost, for 
usc at City loc;uions. Visit wmlamptrackcr.com. 

d. BaneryTracker. WM will supply the City wirh up to five (5) 3 ~ g<\llon Battery Recycling Buckets per year, fit no cost, for use at 
City locations. Visit wrnlammrdcker.com. 

The material set forth in subsections c and d in this .section are each part of a mail,bad:: proCram. 

VIlI. HOUSE COUNT AND ADJUSTMENTS 
Th, csthmted house count at the commencement of the term herwnder shall be 16,297 Residen,ial Unit>; however. the Parties shall ""rify rhis 
h~ count prior to me initial billing under this Agreement and sOOll adjust the house count for billing ptnp:.:>Se5 accordingly. Either Party may 
propose a prospective adjustmem to the house COUnt ;1( any time during the term of this Agreement upon reasonable notice to me other Pany, 
which adjustment sh.'liJ be investigated jOindy by the Panies to establish a new hou.~ count [0 f'Wly thereafter. WM shall keep accurate route 
sheets and/or a Residential Unit database dun shalt be provided to City promptly upon it!! request, 

IX. FEES AND PAYMENTS 
3. Service fcc per Residential Unit. The per Residential Unit monthly fee [0 be paid by the City [0 WM are for the collection of 

unlimited Acceptable Waste. Recyclable!, Yard Waste and At Your Door Special Collecdon per Residential Unit, placed at the curbside b)' 
the Resident by 6:00 A.M. the morning of pickup, at the frequency identified in this Agrecmenc. The fee per Residential Unit. per monch. 
~,.II be twenry·rhree dollars and 79 cents ($23.79) for non-seniors and cwenry-one doIlm and forry-one cenes ($21.41) for 'onion; for the 
first year of the Agreement effective January 1, 2019. The monthly fee paid to WM shall be calculated bf'scd upon the current hOllse count 
at the time each invoice is generAted, times the fee per Residential Unit [c.g .• Current House Count x F~ • Monthly Invoice Amount}. 

b. Annual Increase. Beginning Jemuary 1. 2020, tlnd each January I~ thereafter, the monthly fee per Rt8ickntial Unit shall be adjusted by 
cwo and a half percent (2.5%). 

c. lnypkes and Payment. WM will submit monthly Invoices to the City and the City shall have thirty (30) days from the invoice 
date to remit payment in full. Payment by City shall be made by check or wire transfer or ACH debit, A 1.5% late fee will be appUed to 
balances due and unpaid after more than fifteen (15) d9Ys beyond rhe due date. 

d. Recycle Rellat". WM shall provide the City with a $20.00 per ron recycle rebate on a ml.){lthly oosis. 
t. Clu!Dg£S in Law. No[Withstanding anythlnr: to the contrary in this Agreement, WM shall be entitled to pass through to, and 

collect from, the City any additional collection or disposal COSts, taxes, or surcharr:es incurred by WM RS a result of Rny mandaced changes in 
local, state or federal laws or regulations governing the generation, collection. trnnsportation. processing, sorting and disposal of solid waste 
and/or recyclable mf'teriRls. 

f. Disposal Payment: - The fee for an collection transportation required under this Agreement. including disposal by the West Cook 
County Solid Waste Agency (Agency), is srated in lX.~. 

On or before the fjfteenth of each month. WM shan pay to the Agency an amount equal to the amount owed by the City to the 
Agency for the disposal of the City's Acceptable Waste for the previous month (including any administrativc fees imposed by the Agency ro 
the City); provided, however, that the City providC5 \VM with an invt'lice from the Agency by (he 10.11 of each month. Said payment shall 
he made OUI of the: proceeds collectoo by WM from the City as provided for in IX.a WM funher agrees that WM shall cover all cJ the City's 
costs for dispos~1 of MSW out of the proceeds collected from the City, whether or not there are sufficient funds collected from said service to 
pay all costs for disposal. Any surplus fundli for the disposal of MSW collected by WM shall remain dle property of WM. Any deficit in the 
funds fur dw disposal of MSW collected by WM shall remain the obligation of WM. WM may adju.u the' rates set forth in Sectitm IX.a to 

account for increases in the amount charged by thf! Agency for dispoSRl of the City's Acceptable Waste, including .my administrative fees. 
The parties acknowledge that all the Acceptable Waste collecred pursuant [0 this A~eemcnt is preStndy rransp!.'),f[ed to a location 

dcsigmued by the Agency. In the event that the Agency or the City dcsignnte a different location which results in incre<lsed transportation 
and/!..lr Ji5posnl costs to WM, WM m;:!.y request the City to renegotiote the rates described in IX.a. In the event that the parties are unable to 
mutually Hgrec upon new riltes then either pany may terminate the Agreement upon ninety (90) days prior written notice to the orner 
ptlrcy. 

x. NATURAL DISASTER ASSISTANCE 
In the rase of ,I naturol dis.aster (i.e. fll'xxI, [omado), WM will proVide roll~off containers to the City f()r ('I~anup. The flue for the ,nnminer 
is $90.00 per h;lUi nnd $45.00 per ton. This will he hiUN sepannely to the CiC)'. 

3 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 83

XI. EYlCTIONS/SKJP.QUTS 
In order to prot('C( the public health, safely and welfare and at the request: of the City, WM ,hall coUect quantities of Municipal Solid 
Waste, Recyclable Material, Ynrd Waste and White Goods left at the street curb or alley without proper preparation in unusual 
circumstances {i.e. eVictions!slip--outs} and shall bill the propeny owner for the actual cost thereof. The City agrees to assiSt WM in 
identltying the property owner for this purpose. 

XII. DEFAULT AND TERMlNA TlON 
The failure of either Pany to perform a material obligation under [his Agreement shall be considered II breach of th15 Agreement, and the 
breaching Party shall be in default. In the event of default, the non..defaulting Party shall give written notice of the default, and the 
defaulting Party shall have: (0 ten (to) days from the receipt of the notic~ to cure any failure to pay money under this Agreement. or (ji) 
thirty (30) clays from the receipt of the notice to cure flny other default uncler this Agreement. If the defaulting Party fails to cure the 
hreach within the allotted time, the non~defaultinc Parry mpy. at its option, immediately terminate the Agreement. In the event of a 
default. the defaulring Party agrees to pay all damages cflused by said default, to include, without limitation reasonable attorneys' fees and 
cOSts associated with enforcement of this Agreement. Under no circumstances shall the Parties be liable for any consequential, indirec[. 
puniti"e or spt:dal damages for any alleged default under this Agreement 

XIll. FORCE MAlEURE 
WM's performance of [he Service may be sWipendcd and its obligations hereunder excused during the pendency of II. cause or causes bt=yond 
its reflsonable control, such as by way of cxtlmple and not limitation: acts of war, public enemy. civil disturbance, riot or disorder; epidemic 
or pandemic; sets of God such as landslide, hghtning. earthquah, fire, storm, me impending approach of a storm, or flood; explosion; 
rcstr.tining orders, interferenc~ by civil or military authorities. strike, statute, ordin.'l.ncc, government <>«:Jer or ruling; or other simJlar a.uses. 
In the event t..'l an occurrence of a farce maje:wre event, WM shall notify the City immediately, in writinl!, describing me particulars of the 
circumstAnces preventing performance of the Service and its expected durntlon. Notice shall be provided after the effect of such occurrence 
has ceased. 

XIV. FINANCIAL ASSURANCE 
WM shall furnish a Performance Bond for the faithful performance of this Agreement. said Performanr.e Bond to he executed by a 
responsible surety company ratcd AAA or better by Best's Insurance ReporUi. The Bond shall be in the penal sum of One Million and 
No/lOO D"lIars ($1.000,000) for the penod of this Airecment, including any renewal thereof. The Performam:e Bond shall be conditioned 
upon the faithful perfl.lnna.nce by WM of its obligations under [his Agrcement and upon its full compliance wIth all applicable laws, 
ordinances and reeulntions. Said Performance Bond shall indemnify the City against any loss resulting (rom any brc;!.ch or failure of 
performance. 

WM cxpressl'y understands and agrees that any Performance Bond or insurance protection required of WM of i)therwise pcc.wided by chis 
Agreement. shall in no way limit its responsibility co defend, indemni[y, keep and hold harmlc55 and defend the City, its agents officialsl 

servants .and employee as hereinabove provided 

XV. INDEMNWICATION 
a. The Ciry agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold WM harmle:lS from and against all claims and actions, .o;uirs. debts. damab1Cs. 

liabilities I'lnd Ct'lS(S whatsorver, including but not limited to attorneys' fees and costs of defense. based uJlC'n or arisini: out of the City's 
breach of (his Agreement, and based upon Of arising out of any injuries (including death) to persons, or damage to propeny, [Q the extem 
callied in whole or in part by the negligent acts or omissions of [he City, or any of its directors, officers. employees, agents. or subcontractors. 
in the performance of this Agreement. 

b. WM agrees to indemnify. defend, and hold the City harmless from and against all claims and actions, suits, debts, damages, 
liabilities and costs wha.noever. including but not limited to attorneys' fees and costs of defense, bas~ upon or rlrising out ofWM's breach of 
this Aarecmcm, and based upon or arising out of any injuries (Including dead) to persons, or damage to property, (0 the extent caused in 
whole or in part by [he negligent acts or omissions of WM, or any of irs directors, officers. employees, neent:!, or subcommctors, in [hc 
pertonmmce o( this Agre~ment. 

c. Nonvimstanding any proviSiOns to the contrary. WM shnll not be responsible (or any damage to pavement I)r curbing d1-'lt is [he result 
of ordinary wear and [~r during the performance of the Service. 

d. The indemnification obligations" this sec[ion shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agrecment for itny reason. 

XVI. INSURANCE 
WM shall mamtain at its o\o\'l\ cost and expense the (allowing mininlum limits of o,currencc~bascd insurance during the tcon of this 
A~rt'cment: 

A. 
B. 
C. 

D. 

E. 

l:yz 
Worker's Compensation 
Employer's Liability 
C)mprehen .. ive General Liahility 

Automobile Liability (owned and non~l"lwne-d) 
i. Bodily Injury 
ii. Property Damllge Liability 
Excess/Umbrella 

4 

&!mm! 
Statutory 

$500,CXXl 
$500,{XX} per occurrence 
$l.CXXl,CXXl AggTq,'iItc 

$3,000,000 
~ 1 ,OCO,CX)() per oc,urrcnce 
$500,OCO per rx:.currenrc 
$5,000,000 per l."lC(."urrencc 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 84

11le City, its elected and appointed officials and employees, shall be included as additional insured parties under the COL. Automobile 
and Excess/Umbrella. coverages. Prior to commencement of the Service, WM shalt deliver to City a cerdRcate of insurance evidencing the 
required covcrages. This certificate shall provide dun Anr chemge restricting or reducing coverage. or the c .. mecHanon of any policies under 
which certificates are issued. shall nO[ be valid unless at least 30 days' written notice of cancellation is provided. 

XVII. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
a. Independent c.qntracror. WM shall perform the Service as fin independent contractor. WM, its officers. employees, agents. 

t:ontmctors or subcontractors, are not and shall not be considered employees. agents or servants of the City for any purpose whauocv~r 
under this Agreement or otherwiSt:. WM at all times shall have exclusive conttol of the performance of the Service. Nothing in this 
AgrC(!ment shall be construed to give the City any right or duty to supervise or control WM, its officers. employees. agents, (onrn:u.:tors, or 
subcontractors. nor [0 determine the manner in which WM shall perform its obligations under the Agreement. 

b. Amendments, No amendment [0 thiS Agreement shall be made except upon the written consent of both Parries. 
c. Enure Agreems:m. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and undersUlnding between the Parties hereto with respect 

to the SObjCCl matter and supersedes any pnor and contemporaneous agreements and understandings, express or impliro. 
d. ~. A waiver by either Party of any breach of ;tny provision hereof shall not be t".lKen or held to be til waiver of any subsequent 

breach. whether Similar (IT dissimilar, or as a waiver of any provision itself. No payment or acceptance of compensation for any period 
subsequent to any breach shall be deemed 8 waiver of any rle-ht or acceptance: of defective performance. 

c. Severance. In the event that any provision of this Agreement is found by a (ourt of competent jurisdiction to be void. invalid, or 
unenforceable', the balance of this Agreement shall remain in effect and binding on the Parties. 

f. Oloicr:. cJ Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the stare where the services are being performed. without regard 
to chOJce L'i law rules. 

g. Assignment. Neither Parry may Assign its rights and obligatiOll$ under this Agreement without the prior written consent of [he 
other Party, except that WM may assign its nghts nnd obligations under this Agr~ement to any WM affiliate without the City':; conscnt. An 
assignment shan not relieve the assignee of any obligations under thb Agreement. 

h. ~. All notices required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be pcrsonaU), delivered, sent by 
certified mail, rtturn receipt requested, or by overnight courier. with copies to counsel for the respective Parties. 

IN WITNESS lliEREOF, the parties have executed this Municipal Recycling and Wasre Agreement as of the Effective Date mdlcRted aix')Vc. 

Waste Management of Illinois, Inc. 

Signarure: 

Primed 
Name: 

Title: 

5 

City of Berwyn 

Signature: 

Printed 
Name: 

TItle: 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 85

Exhibit A 
Single Stream Recycling 

The list of items below represents the current materials currently being accepted by WM as Rccydablcs. This list may expand or contract due to 
market conditions. 

Acceptable Recyclables ("Recyclables") Unacceptable Materials 

Aluminum food and beverage containers Microwave crays 
Glass food and beverage containers - brown. clear, or green Mirrors Window or auto glass 

Ferrous (Iron) caos PET plastic containers with the symbol #1 - Light Bulbs 
with screw tops only, without caps 

HDPE natural plastIC contHiners with the symbol #2 - (milk and Ceramics 
water bottles) 

HDPE pigmented plastic containers with rhe symbol #2, without Porcelain 
caps (detergent, shampoo bottles, etc.) 

PlaStiCS with symbols #3, #4, #5, #6, #7~ni1rrow and screw top Plastics unnumbered 
containers-withom caps 

Newsprint Plastic bags 

Old corrugated cardboard ("Aar hangers 

Magazines and Mail Glass cookware/bakcware 
Catalogs and Telephone books Household items such as cooking pots, toasters, etc. 

Cereal boxes 
Printer paper and copier paper 

All other office pape"r without wax liners 

I. Additional Specifications 
!l. All glass containers must by empty and free of metal caps and rings and contain less than 5% food debris. 
b. All tin C8m, bi·metal "m5, and aluminum cans must he empty and contain less than 5% food debris. 
c. All aerosol cans must be empty with less than 5% content 
d. All plastic containers must be empty, caps removedi less than 5% food debris. 
c, AU Fiber must be dry and free of food debris and other contaminating material. 
f. Tissues, paper towels or other paper that has been in contact with food is not acceptable. 

n. Rccyclables may contain up to 5% Unacceptable Materials, provided however, Recydables may not: 
a. Materially impair the strength or the durability of the WM's structures or equipmenti 
h. Create flammable or explosive conditions in WM's facilities; 
c. Contain dry cell ~I[[cries of lead acid batteries; 
d, Contain chemic.II or othet properties which are deleterious or capable of causing material damage [0 any part of WM's property, 

irs personnel or the public; or. 
e. Contain Excluded Waste as defined in the Agreement. 

III. If loads of the mixed recyclables materials do not meN WM's specifications for acceptable recydablcs or are otherwise not properly 
segregated from the waste, WM shall have the right to reject the load in whole or in parr. (')r to handle the contaminated load and impose 
additional reasonable chart-res on the City or Resident. 

IV. Upnn written notice to the City and Residents, WM may discontinue acceptance of any category of recyclable materials as a result of 
market conditions related to such materials 

6 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 86

Exhibit B 

Expanding your Recycling Program? 
"o.\:1ro~'fo .. ~nt·, ,lot \OIJ! Door:~'"toIII (ol .ct~-\~ a ren'IC+ p'OVldftiJ "0 rt~1IitnU to .-.rnt"'p 
tI'I+ .tl('hI:!~f. ~'" N:,rdru~ oIIIId tlIIN·ta·rtoc:¥I:l" .t~. thiflt .tmcm .~'4I1'Y ftet.l.OIId 
JI(~~vlit\l.. M ~rth .r.rI"9"'tC",~ ~s @ft .. irQIIftt~ .. 1 f,OlutlonS (0CtIp.l"~, '0\1"'~ Ml~ 

I't'at..., <t nn'fM NmttllV to4t;~eofthti. ~t~, 1> ... col.lect'lf'tl thrtNttnl$ M ft.· drocIr· 
~'.' . N;:'*'t .. 6 ~lM.., . Our Jl'J'S5ton b. to foro~'16e qc.et'l:~' W :Ct'lfWIfn*" ;p!C\iI1 fN.t.".1 
~liitft'tent i<t-J\.tt:H t<l pubi'it ~ 

'1tIe- .rot '11:Y' OOOt ~:~I.l1 C~tK(IOI'I:Jo\ ;e«\'1Ce coUtcts home gen.rat«t -::petta.I ~ dncti;V 
iron' rM~'$......vr.:n 10¥ C~It) E~. lS~. If\I' pogrem NJ ~ Iulct"t!di of 
Vmu~, of ~ ~J::" 1~' ~d Qlnmly mu.i.~ ~~ 'or dMem of M~II( ajenoe:<!t 

lD'IIItt' ~~.". 

lIns ,;er.'ICP \.< nal: 'I'DU'" ~ual hou!.~ lentnfll::«'d :>peCliIi IMt.Ni pmgratJt, bK.wse thIS 
~rVFl i:;. flKu..~ an teqC\:1'Ij I!IIO$t of tile m«.~~ (;Dhcted CCIfNIIUntltl95 .(1'0;:£ tile ,ountt\I 
c.,. tiJl:e ad\'imlte rA ~ "\al'llrit'rnert1. ·~ ciJlrlbilit, to COilK~ and t'eC'jd' III (l\liI!'rl~.ed 
ut~ of reC"1C:;a~ , co\l«teCf dftrtty frClrl tnt hOOIt. 

Hon\~ ~nHAteod S""tial Mat~rial, included in t~ pro~ram: .. Household (~icll, 

ii AutomotM> Products 

~ Paint Product, .- Garden Chemicals 

I Universal A\aterials 

Cl Electronics 

w . At Your Door _ ... _-

7 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 87

A missinc piece to your residential recyclinc procraml 
:!~,. -can.:. OOttw~. "irdboaroil aNi p.il.;t!>!$. are. «l~ad)' :;.art of rnrut 'fCyc~~ ?rD~n'I$. What 

a.oo ... ,t 1:i1£o ~- f!'\itf"'.'$ U;t'fl! '1' tOrte-J wtn ~$ e,ertm11.1C!·. cteanmg rupplifi ~d pailrt! Halk.' 

&:Ie.' .. r~~'d!M In your Cor='Imur'lllpt di:ipos.@ of tl'i@se ~tt!mS~ 

~ coil «t!Ing I:neo.-fo ltElm. UJe: ~en~1 1tf" ... t .. ~1Ul:1QA and E'n~«nIi!nW hiLV'-~~ iiI~ 
furtheor reduced. Thf At I'DIM' L'Ioof'" ptDgl'JIn fotU!~J Dr. co1~llOCI .,d J'K)'Clin9 of ~Jt
alfdo!t'!'JI'1~ ~ah, to P"@".~ dij.pDsa1 n'l1'eglJlio! t"iL<tI bins, Once co~tf'd. the prgsram 
lK)'[ko~ rro>l: ;petial rNt..p;is inc!uding eectroolc:> . palnt.~. wueries. (imp~ and motor 0 111 

'TheIrefoi't' a-"emng 1t1e.~ 1I:En$ from &Dtal ....oofliu, ~ hDnw CQUKtlOO ~'r(e IS the e&."te>t, 

IUi(V I!O encQf.lr. '-ec)'I:';:rI9 MId prq:JJa'P ~:po;:iIt of I'IcIIJ;.ebald g4!ntrated rr.a'tM"Q1:$ 11\ 'iJCIur 
{':~1""»"1~\, 

(OO'Ib~~ theo qJ,ilnttt.e:;. o.f $pet'li.l IT.i.t-E'Ni.." coLecttod IYl .o\t 'tour ~~h.t.,. ~~I'lt to. fadbn.e.;: 
fo.r me p!J1l/CSf' ~f 'K"id1r1i w:-~h fOUr tr.l.d;t;UI .. 1 req'(~, :it£h .~. papa!'. llurmnum U .m , 

EI.ol . .'1!!t$ .• ~c. a."I0 ~ CDI"IrncJ'Ilt.' .. recvwng rates- '.itl lfCFli«.Se. 

Exp.rience where it counts 
O'<er I:N Jo1Nt'~ WE' tra\'e de~~opH eff!lCIltJl':: proco!'':!-f';', Qa:""pd upon fe!dbac:1t ffOll'l r~at<:",tJ. ~C 
~:" ~enc)' c.u,:-':CtMr,. to ~t .;en-e the JlMC&. of your comfl'lunrt'j. Olif "nawlecrge.~.e ~earr 
e-... te::s. dI.te to. 09,~@f'I!he-1r1du:)u)' 1eo.',pP.f'ence COr.'Ibined·.vkt! :pedfic e~pert!1>e ,,~this fiell1 HOII'l 
~h", ~:"'r""c-E' T~(.hl'!'lcI.In~ to our C~;.l CeM.er llepre::.eota\'I','Es:. an teiiPI member! p.1rt:1C'J)ate 1ft OUt 

1ft d'i2pr:t, ;ind ~'!DII(" tr.i.1I1'ng ~ .. s. OI.'lI!r t.he YS"'$, '.-e ha~e refined \he challenging, proce:'s 
of !f'.:>lc!erttl;k1 CQ1lKl;\On c-f horr~ !j;i!l'te'"ated $pI!Cli\ matenill.i , OUT o!'."peneKf:' lIIo'lth muh~e 

t:'Jt:Ij:o:: agerw::le- ~ hundreod.' .:,f Utou.oanw !f ff.t.!dent.1 t.m bP applied to yau~ Cornmufllt)' 

w . _1",_-.. At Your Door 
I.'".l.;j 

8 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 88

Educating your community 
Clur .,,.c; .. 'ted~e-llaf~ an w~l<_ WI-:t. ),our camm~s '0 M~Fi ~"e1:r:l a ccoj.· efliC1e!1'>t ar>d 
-tffect~ .... ~~0iidI ta pOOb:: edU(~on, til-.t'**' koth t.ui~d iJld :.j,j;· ... 1r.lrI~·~_;err,~;o:t ljo..-a:"snc.uI 
t.h'!' &.ra.tior. cf w P"OJ1'1I'TJ 

"!"heo At ','out OOar''''' V~'¥l offen ill $lJT1PLP solution to iIf'fy commun;ty'" rec:~ding df-lemm .. , .:. 
IitIrrK> ba!.ed (jI'!'ClJ~am i.:: ofrere4 to R'.:'iderru ~im~r t~tKt ,he- At ~our ~ '.er\If!C@ to JCbedt.l1e 
i cctt«oon lhen. ttle<y F'la:e melior !-PI!OiIIi ~U: w.w. me pra'~lde:d ",cUKt1Cf'l HI and plJce it 
nNr' 'thPIJ t rOtJl' door -~ Of ga.-aj€'. 'Th! ~'t ~ not t'.IMd r.O be hGtme to part'lcip.ate, &1 

t.hey sl",,11 place ft bas. 1¥'- .iI ~ \oI:iJt'!on r.It t~r COI-leE:tloa dat.e tt,,~ eovery reridenl: '!'.o 
u..;e t"oe- Pf<lSr.lIT· wt~ It ~; (C1I','«t'lent Kor'thQtl' 

How does it work? 

P I., , ' '' ' " ,1 .1 ' . 
"' 1 ~ ,II :. ' 11 . 11""'" 
I •• '1\\ I " I" 0:" 1 '''1(' 

!o', ,,' Il " PI) U" ' ~. ':A·" 
, • ' j ' '" I.,. .. 

."-HF-nr,1 qL;lnrn~ 
Iln." t) :.ot='u L \., lI ~\ IU J I 

' 1.<1 10" w t , 1<.11 

I ~. 1 .:IILl"Cl ' Ci 
11.~ 1 HCl [13111 

""'r" , ~, ai_ ull"," 
to • fM. llt'l, tI'II"'Il 

UII"III frr ~ I,.'~ (\,I' 
pro~1 d 'If,DW' 

It 

Materials accepted with Wast. Manap_t's At Your 
Door Speciill CoIlKtlonSM provam: 

M4C1OOri'ft PrOGI2c:t!:: ,tntl(~C<:::E- r.Q~~r ::1 .;, o' t fl!~e"'S:, bl;Li..fO f\.t\'Id, :la:~t~"f!o~, ft.!> , pottst'~1 and ..... ~ 
paint f'rl::Idu(e: Pi1MI:. Jp.rat Pilmt. :.:tam, ~npper. 'thllMe"". {iilUu... ~E.r, ",",ood ~1I"I1fId 
pr~f.er.'atI·.'€o 

GoitIdeon C"'emicat:~ Fertt'''~f. t\«blode. pe~tx:'\CIe ~nd 'JI'.iiK1:lC-oe. 
tlniwel-... I ... ..attlria~: Compact f"iuo~1I!IIt lamp ten'!. fllJOre<'...tBl~ tube. holliebDtdba~~i" 
therrnOl!'let.e-r .. N! hmra,:tr. 
~wimm1"8 Pool chemical:: pooi. iKiId ,ubili:t~ ilnd dM):nn~ 11IftI_"''-._ .. '-

fJKt.onic:. T~. (orr,:v'ter. ~t.£jl . rI'QU:;e. \,>] pla~. [;III"Dlcon.ape p:al'eJ. 'lett. cell plloo4!o. 
:».Ucp f,onte'. \e-;!iNrd . f~ rTJichme, ~~. rt'I1<fO ...... ·.>e. CD rom and r;!oloiltM [~d~ 

w . At Your Door -,,,--'" 

9 

COtIVElIEIIT AIID 
EASYTOUS[! 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 89

Count on us! 
,o;ast .. " ... rr4!flt~ .tot 't«Ir !X-v !'.p«:laI Collect'l~ Mf'""e"~ £o:teNt\'t e~u~w1rIr.i 
lIIoia:hpublic ~ ~rd1'~Dr)'~ 1rrP!~ ~~r.I'.r.f ~pedOIIl 
~ prOjI'iln'-:G U>a1 ~~. wrth r~ lUt~ ind k;oJ r~'tioM 

Pr~"" )'N!' l'etJabDl'l~ ...... SOI!iI@ itI""' ta~ .. ::p«~k: ,tc:¥'C.InJ..d di".enim ~ftInHItS. ThIS' 
PI"JIS,I1IIrI .., (Qff-mKted.o he<.p", p.,bht ~fo InW't ~ f'eI'IOI'IaI. ~al and AUe r«fCl~ 
IrwJ ck\oltf'rl«l t&"~-ts.. ~.1tette fOU ue- c'Of'Ipl.,.. ",,11\ t:d$tinJ ~ Of pnactJ.~)' Jet1:j,Pg 
WtYd of the curve t". ;.ettlnt yoor tJIjI,On .:;iiItWd:. th~ o\t "our ~f* M!f'\'Xe IS thf f'It?It ~ fo· 
1IIC.rea.:ini the>::. tar;e:~ '6'" are COP'II'f.ILttedi to htfpsns. .... I1'Ht c:u"..t and fuhn tNnge!> 11' 

~,,, rompliillN:E' 

Waste Monaaemrnl's At You, Door Special CoIKtlon- ~rvic~ 
will Mip JOU achieYelOUF comlllllnitJ's ob,iective5. 

• .. 

• 
" 
" 
• 

¥O~~ U:~$lbl;p '1;0 'fesiderru. tbP,l car. ~ the PfOIr .. rr at !telr .:ronvemenc.£l 
(OITlI'IWtty WIdE! 'II!t'\'K. '"o1t allow$.IU rtS~ to~. , I'll 1UlII. 1.Mb":. ~lI'c'IiUlt!II~ 

,wa'llabL .. ) ....... round 

TurnliiPy prosran'· w:th nmlrNi. ;'.1( atM 

LMg~ quatlt;JYO o! rN.~ Pf@'Mlt.dfront«lt."...** &o.ndfill r ____ ... _ ,.. ....... 

!ffO (aplt..J I!i!~-" ~tUllr", ' .. lIult:lll'C ... .t·a.!nl 

l.~ ~ner.Jl fllN2 iOocMtOm ,..,." 1nr:1lM4l1r1 fMe< 

oI.d'lK!'tt! hghK '~hf'l!;w::I d'r~1"" nt.~ 

_Nt ~tomwatlPl' "ftJ&'W'ef'M!!® 

COI"Pp-ef>!.ru'We U!portqog c~iIIbIi!~.' to t~. rT'QiIL .,', ~f di; lfUd rr~i!M. 

W . At Your Door 
_ ... _ ./; • .:t ••••• 

10 

WMA-lYOUAOOOR .COM 

.. ,. 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 90

Exhibit C 

City of 

~ 
Address # of I Size # of Slz8 ~ Account 

~ ~CITY OF CITY HAL lSI 3 2.1 TuiF 15 

~~~~~YNQTY~ 
1 

1 
, CNTR 15420 16t1l SI 2 2.0 MfTll 

1.5 MfTl1 

4 54~ 

BOG 

III... Tu 
I CITY OF FIRE DEPT I6434W 1 1.0 Tu 1 96G 1'1 

~~~ll~;;~I~~H~llU~f"~~.~C~~PI====~16~700 ~'~~ ______ ~ ____ ~L~OOG+-~N __ +-__ ~~~~~ 
~ laTYaFF~~PT 1~15 ~IS~I ________ +-__ -7r~I .. 5+-~~1-__ ~~~ti4G1-~fu~ 

96G 

1 ti4G W 

QTY OF HEALTH DEPl I~ 26th SI 2.0 
I Cil . UF , PAHK I"",n SI & Eas' A", 1 1.5 

2.0 
luiF 
TuiF 

IF 

2 S W 
1150-117525 I CITY UF 650131s1 SI 4 2.01 M.W.lh,F 

2.0 

OOG lh 

Ii 
I CITYOF WAlER ~PJ" lSI 1.0 lh 

:~ ~~~~·7k:~A"' ____ -+ ___ ~6~~~lh~~ ____ +--+ ____ ~ 
~~rr~~~NS~______________ ~~~~~I~.Aw ______ ~ ____ ~~~~lh~-L ____ J-__ L-__ ~ 

11 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 91

ExhibitD 

This isol tI'"~:s piece of p2p5~ fi.'"st rOOeo 
It's been ~~:ycled bt:"'fOie, at"ldl it can be 

ieq~lec ag.~in. 5060 :/O"J':" ca.!"!. 

(heck c:..rt l .... .es! o:tlE-r iti::m: tr"tot 
GIn tho,,1: ",C}'CloJ fer a chan:e at 

all EJ:Z:itI'lg s:Korad came·, 

I : Iut Ut~"'rOda;;l«l;!1"~i 
co~ ocw:.. • .c. a FCI:i: Lent"\. or eIt'E!:"l 

{n;:-<~ for iI p,:nl:l' ooe da:¢ 

~)U! I:h!t ~u lD:i~, ¥1d rt 
~ R!tum tc yru ICIflI; '" the fonn 
alit oy,o' bot 

~;y.:b nut "L~Cii;ytadi'I; HIt 
It coul.: bE: bad' Q';ltre s:1'£if jtlo' i neN 
C!~ ... IE: OOd,¥5i 

And :1l'S: r'1!o."'\:.",f t:30p:n? ~)~~' r: t'l':!~f. 
atr. -"JOO 1m""! wt~1l sre:)- r.: CTII!t't: 
t.t~ 1i!G"'. 

"'''~:Il;O;n!'~v!lt'OLi!':.:.rst;:J<e''!ar;.:~ 
!GI!' y~!; a."\: ~'::2:w.u1L mll"'" ~~a . .., 
~-'SaIl/t."., ~ecG·f!!"'; ·,'ro.])\:! ~$:r:1 

1:[(.3'.::;1 C!f:r., 'I!:'v, .... ~ I!'VJI 

CClllticty_Ioc"_"~t 
represenbtiveOf erftiilrorr@'wm.com 

12 

I' lime to rep'lnl 
'-2cych"9 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 92

£ver wonder. "W1rj and hoW 10 recycler 
WhEn you use 'RKYcl~ Oft~n. 
IIIKYd~ Right ~ great Il1tngs flappeD. 
EV€fY ~ .... e encounter hUndreds of 
recydallle ~ems. Iiy recyd'"9 properly. 
yoo help matenals get to the" next best 
use. ~\Im:h .n turn saves tons upon tons of 
r;J.Y mawi.:ts,. trne. energy a~:'5 E".;i--er'!Se. 

.. l h.J 

69\1t\ of plastic Iloltles don\ 9"t recyded' 
45j(.0( aI.Imilom cans end l.9 n the 
gart>age.' llquids often spoOl a whole load 
of 011,.,..,,,. recyclable paper Tflan wlrj 
it~ lime to get back to the basics 0( good 
recycling. The fact 15 tflat some recydtrlg 
actions lllJke a !Jigger ,",pacl tflan others. 
The RKY* ott ..... RK~ Rlght.
Recyding R!lIes w~ help you ret"'nk 
recyring to rml:e , su.tainable impact! 

. to 
mc.1::e ·t~ :Yomi::E ;;:I')j become i1I Rec.yc~ng 

t..rnbasscdm. Whel l~Er you'r,'? a rror:-:e C:;I'lY.:r, 

teacher. city official. bustO"". kid. or a 
recyding enthu~ast. aA t he infonnation 
you """" 10 help pass lion is jUst few 
dirks away. 

OJ014\"~~.« n:.Ilec:Jd!Ofttn IIIqtJt
RII1t·~rqsft.lc.ltOllpnJgrm.~ ~ bl5IOu;»:! 
~'~llJI3l mao.:. Plea5acom:utYO&lICUI 'I'U'Ic.~1y fI)t; 
tf'!lll ..:~t t1IIII!I',;ft¥CX!lt:tml oetIIS at leO! JrugrOl'N, 

""'''' ... df'\'ff1.lq'lt1y 

13 

....... 

NO FoocI Wost • 

NOF ... ",Cups 
IoContoinen 

¢-" . .,. 
' ...... 

NO Plastic &.>g. 
aRJm 

/< 
NO Meed ... 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 93

ExhibjtE 

14 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 94

_6511 

i'/;utc J .... y<l!lont h;:s • mo.g !wi """,,",I.ent to evelJ indi';d •• l Q)"""unity"~ •• """ Malting <OIIUI1IID1tle. dWlfI, 
Ie II1d &:wnga i. i .. mb.llo<:us I~, us. WilSie MandyeJlO"r. c..p.,.l. h"wly S",,"m ond CODUlUlnily Rel.tio ... 
OIgaaizatlaLs ho"" .stahU,,,od 11'= YI.urlI to Iulther ent_nce Ihe sar~y of out ""iglLbomood. aid •• gment othor 
coIlllllUllity-ba"'d pIOgl."". 

Ow drl .. ,. """" the loW IllIlillY alWlualU .. 'Oi~ flO.e COIUisleu(y IbaR jIiltall u.ti'II!:y 'OS';M, .! _ .... 
Think of 211.000 W<fu1l1 01.", •• -ad, .nd cutlIied iDdivld .. 11 driving tblOugh .oighborl,ooo. enl1a"',ing 
comJl1lllllty 'aloty by belnl olloor1r.lnt itl1d .. ,orling ",ci~on" .11<1 s .... pi(iOl~ situ,li • ., to tilt police. 

W. abo ho .. I stroog commitll",t to .... mu.lty $Ol'ety. DIll clti\'effl .,. plOri4eG 0lJI19n!hensi •• ,.feLllrai,on!. 
Out lU!ighb ... <an ... t .WI becat1 •• ~.lmQt1 Ylbo our drl ....... ! 0" em,"'" JIII!.~i .. .."..nill!l.n~ 4ruS : .. Ung 
JIU9'<11ll goo< far b<yonl"hrt g<l\4l!IllDOllt ~ iDdadiI, cNdIing SOl .CIo •• rtgi.lries ad tile tfllOli.lt 
".Ith list. 

VlaSIe l'I8tch \l'trlor bera ... it's • portlll!nhlp betwto. Wut.lIaDog .... nt,. I1w •• fI"IlII""'n~ .... rgeoq .OJvites •• d 
High""YWattb, J:oighborl.1I<I WsId!. and /'mba Alrst. Evorf W.ste Hanagcllont trud< is equipped wit" • 2-way radi. 
0' «In pAoa •• 0 ... drl."" and he:per. hlV. mlgollt t<1iuing III IIIct Il1d report Uljlthlng ousp!dollS or dangelo .. 
In tl!e1T d"!"trIIol Of Ii.ettl, to 9-1-1: £lent...ud! II wklct. cr .... file •• mad lwardo..a "")IidoUl aaivi::ia .. 

Our tDlplDyaes lhe. wort and roil. 111m IuiiIleI In the .. comlll1lllllies. md .,... m pr!vfeged In mrrk 1.1 • hUlirms. 
that holps In imp .... lhe hullllliIld &afety .f iRdiviiIuab and OIIIIIIllmitie. in • Wli dire .. ""y. If rou .Ie btt..,.lcd 
in a Wasil! _.1 pmgr.m I. !"l,n nerg~iIOrbOod. taU 1I'l0l s ... dt;y at 1-&00-882-3149 and we ..w. co ... ct you with 
JOur 10",\ WI' OOIU .. Wllty representalm. 

15 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 95

r 

The City of Berwyn 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Date: March 13, 2018 

To: Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
Members of the City Council 

Brian L. Pabst 
City Administrator 

J-IO 

Re: Continued Support of, and Participation in, the West Cook County Solid Waste Agency's 
Regional Disposal Project. 

More than 20 years ago, the West Cook County Solid Waste Agency (WCCSW A) initiated its Regional 
Disposal Project (RDP). In 1997, the City of Berwyn joined this consortium via a signed Agreement I 
Resolution. The RDP is a cooperative, regional effort in which participating member commumties jointly 
contract for long-term solid waste transfer and disposal capacity. The primary goals of the RDP are to provide 
participating member communities with reduced costs for solid waste disposal, price stability and 
environmental safeguards. 

Our current rate per ton is $50.28. The WCCSW A recently drafted an RFP and received four proposals from 
Groot, Republic (formerly Allied), Lakeshore I Advanced, and Strom I Waste Management. All proposers were 
interviewed in January 2018 with Groot submitting the lowest bid at $43.99 per ton. 

The City of Berwyn's contractor - Waste Management, has worked seamlessly with this program for the last 
several years. The waste is delivered by the hauler to the agency desiguated landfill facility where it is loaded 
in larger trucks and taken to the landfill at the reduced rate. Our current contractor - Waste Management, pays 
the WCCSA monthly for the City of Berwyn disposal costs based on a per ton schedule at the reduced rate; this 
cost is built in to the City of Berwyn's current and proposed agreement with Waste Management. 

As indicated above, the benefits of being a member of the WCCSW A are significant. This has been an 
excellent, money savmg program for numerous municipalities for over 20 years. 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends the approval of the attached Resolution of continued support of and participation in 
the West Cook Connty Solid Waste Agency's Regional Disposal Project. 

Jj.; . iW-
Brian Pabst, City Admimstrator 

6700 Welt 26'· Street Berwyn,lIUnois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-2567 www.berwyn-U.Kov 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 96

• 

THE CITY OF BERWYN 

RESOLUTION 
NUMBER __ _ 

A RESOLUTION OF CONTINUED SUPPORT OF AND 
PARTICIPATION IN THE WEST COOK COUNTY SOLID 
WASTE AGENCY'S REGIONAL DISPOSAL PROJECT 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 97

" 

RESOLUTION NO. __ _ 

A RESOLUTION OF CONTINUED SUPPORT OF AND 
PARTICIPATION IN THE WEST COOK COUNTY SOLID 
WASTE AGENCY'S REGIONAL DISPOSAL PROJECT 

WHEREAS, more than twenty years ago, the units of local government as 
members and associate members ("Members") of the West Cook County Solid Waste 
Agency ("Agency") banded together in an effort to control the rising cost of the transfer 
and disposal of the municipal solid waste generated by their citizens; and 

WHEREAS, the Members were also intent on minimizing their potential legal 
liability regarding the disposal of their municipal solid waste and assist in the Agency's 
effort to increase recycling of significant portions of the waste stream; and 

WHEREAS, in order to accomplish these goals, the Members entered into Project 
Use Agreements with the Agency thereby agreeing to supply their municipal solid waste 
to and become Participating Members in the Agency's Regional Disposal Project ("RDP"); 
and 

WHEREAS, as appropriate and from time to time, the Agency negotiated with 
numerous waste haulers to renew or enter into new contracts with the preference being 
renewable ten year contracts ("RDP Contract(s)") providing for the transfer and disposal 
of the municipal solid waste generated by the citizens of the Participating Members; and 

WHEREAS, a new RDP Contract has been negotiated and it has or will be entered 
into prior to the expiration of the current RDP Contract; and 

WHEREAS, the RDP Contract accomplishes the goal of the limitation of 
environmental liability by providing for environmental audits of disposal facilities, requiring 
surety bonds, environmental insurance for disposal facilities and indemnification by the 
contractor and its parent company; and 

WHEREAS, the RDP Contract limits price increases and further caps yearly price 
increases based on the cost of living; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Berwyn entered into a Project Use Agreement with the 
Agency and has participated in the RDP and wishes to continue to do so. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Berwyn, as follows: 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 98

r 

SECTION 1: The foregoing preambles are hereby incorporated into this 
Resolution as though fully set forth herein. 

SECTION 2: The City Board hereby finds that intergovernmental cooperation in 
the form of the Regional Disposal Project to have been a success and a significant benefit 
to our citizens. 

SECTION 3: Accordingly, the City of Berwyn will continue to be a part of the 
Regional Disposal Project through its Project Use Agreement with the Agency. 

SECTION 4: All Resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent 
of such conflict. 

SECTION 5: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its 
passage and approval as provided by law. 

APPROVEDon ____________ __ 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

CLERK 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 99

The City of Berwyn Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26" Street Benvyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-2675 

www.borwyn-il .gov 

March 9, 2018 

Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
Members of the City Council 
City of Berwyn 

Subject: Payroll March 7,2018 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Jc- J 

The current payroll has been prepared for review by the finance department 
and is ready for approval at the March 13,2018 meeting. 

Payroll: March 7, 2018 in the amount of $1,206,733.94 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Finance Department 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 100

The City of Berwyn Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26" Street IIc>wyn, Illinois 60402-<)701 Tclephooe: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-2675 

www.berwyn-iLgov 

March 9, 2018 

Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
Members of the City Council 
City of Berwyn 

Subject: Payables March 13,2018 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

I\-l 

The current payables were prepared for review by the finance department and 
are ready for approval at the March 13,2018 meeting. 

Payables: March 13,2018 in the amount of$I,435,488.19. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Finance Department 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 101

CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 319/2017· To Payment Date: 311412018 

Reconciled! Transaction Reconciled 
Number Date Status Void Reason Voided Oat. Source Pa~Q8 Name Amount Amount Difference 
Q1 - General Cash 
~ 
44770 0212312018 Open Accounts Payable Paramount Restoration Group, Inc. $5,297.00 
44771 02126/2018 Open Accounts Payable aCot $190.00 
44772 0212612018 Open Accounts Payable Industrial Organizational $2,910.00 

Solutlons,lnc. 
44773 02126/2018 Open Accounts Payable K's Quality Construction, Inc. $356.00 
44775 02126/2018 Open Accounts Payable Provantag9 LLC $245.08 
44776 0212612018 Open Accounts Payable Syserco Midwest $24,534.00 
44777 0212612018 Open Accounts Payable CASEY STEFANO $150.00 
44778 0212612018 Open Accounts Payable LAURA LOPEZ $1,475.00 
44779 0212712018 Open Accounts Payable A~lcla Ruiz $627.13 
44780 0212712018 Open Accounts Payable Berwyn Historical Society $50.00 
44781 0212712018 Open Accounts Payable Berwyn North School District #98 $400.00 
44782 0212712018 Open Accounts Payable Youth Crossroads $250.00 
44783 02128/2018 Open Accounts Payable Berwyn Westem Plumbing & Heating $17,574.00 
44784 03/0112018 Open Accounts Payable AT&T $124.13 
44785 0310 1/21) 18 Open Accounts Payable Chase $337.89 
44786 0310 1/21) 18 Open Accounts Payable Jose Ramirez $358.95 
44787 03101/21)18 Open Accounts Payable Robert W. Fejt $1 ,530.77 
44788 03/01/21)18 Open Accounts Payable Youth Crossroads $1 ,950.00 
44789 03/0212018 Open Accounts Payable Easypermit Postage $3,367.23 
44790 0310212018 Open Accounts Payable Pitney Bowes $3,449.36 
44791 0310212018 Open Accounts Payable Special Events Management $600.00 
44792 0310212018 Open Accounts Payable CYNTHIA BUSSE $500.00 
44793 03/0212018 Open Accounts Payable Berwyn Park District $500.00 
44794 03/0512018 Open Accounts Payable Thomson Reuters $516.00 
44795 03/0512018 Open Accounts Payable Tnomson Reuters- West $343.04 
44796 03/0612018 Open Accounts Payable Verlzon Wireless - LeHigh $1,169.68 
44797 03/1412018 Open Accounts Payable ABC Commercial Maintenance $4,278.30 

Services, Inc. 
44798 03/1412018 Open Accounts Payable Able Printing Service $225.00 
44799 03/1412018 Open Accounts Payable ACS $3,750.00 
44800 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable Addison Fire Protection $375.00 
44801 03/1412018 Open Acoounts Payable AETNA $36,027.96 
44802 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Air One Equipment. Inc. $3,448.93 
44803 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Algor Plumbing and Heating Supply $21Q.42 
44804 03114/21)18 Open Accounts Payable American Red Cross-Health & Safety $81.00 

Services 
44605 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable AMS ElectriC. Inc. $3,560.00 
44806 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Aqua Chili of Chicago # 22 $119.00 
44807 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable AT&T $6,264.30 
44808 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable AT&T $7,636.98 
44809 03/1412018 Open Accounts Payable AT&T $8,736.50 
44810 03/1412018 Open Accounts Payable AT&T $3,649.55 
44811 03/1412018 Open Accounts Payable AWESOME Pest Service $755.00 
44812 03/1412018 Open Accounts Payable B. Davids Landscaping $185.00 
44813 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable Baker & Taylor Entertainment, Inc. $78.75 
44814 03/1412018 Open Accounts Payable Barbara Ziemba $91.85 
44815 03/1412018 Open Accounts Payable Barge Terminal & Trucking $893.52 

user: Gunn, Fe licia Pages: 1 of 5 Thursday, March 08, 2018 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 102

CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 31912017 - To Payment Date: 311412018 

Reconciled! Transaction Reconciled 
Number Date Status Void Reason Voided Date Source Palt;ee Name Amount Amount Difference 
44816 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Battery Junction $132.48 
44817 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Berwyn Ace Hardware $22.95 
44818 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Berwyn Development Corporation $815.00 
44819 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Berwyn Garage $524.92 
44820 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Berwyn Western Plumbing & Heating $2,709.00 
44821 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Betsey Means Wills $350.00 
44822 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Building Services of America,llC $988.95 
44823 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Case Lots , Inc, $1,371.63 
44824 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Cassidy Tire $1,161 .00 
44825 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable COW Government, Inc. $1.457.19 
44826 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable CenterPoint Energy Services,lnc. $11,187.88 
44827 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Chicago Metropolitan Fire Prevention $210.00 

Company 
44828 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Chicago Office Products Co. $1,549.02 
44829 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Chicago Pollee Department $1 ,988.00 
44830 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Chicago Tribune $624.00 
44831 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Cintas Corporation $1,512.61 
44832 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable CItadel $204.00 
44833 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable ~Iege of OuPage $149.00 
44834 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Comcast Cable $552.35 
44835 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable CornEd $791 .09 
44836 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable CornEd $32 ,808.32 
44837 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Complete Temperature Systems. Inc. $338.00 
44838 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Constituent Outreach Consultants, $3,988.00 

Inc. 
44839 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Continental Research Corporation $604.62 
44840 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Cook County Clerk $10.00 
44841 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable COTG $2,217.40 
44842 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Dearborn National Life Insurance $7.460.07 

Company 
44843 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Diamond Graphics. Inc. $6,413.00 
44844 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Dirty Deeds Environmental,LLC $475.00 
44845 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Donegal Excavating, Inc. $3,465.00 
44846 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Edmund P. Wanderling $4,085 .50 
44847 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Elite Document Solutions $451 .95 
44848 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Emergency Vehicle Technologies $2,032 .90 
44849 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Empire Cooler Service, Inc. $92.00 
44850 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Engineering Solutions Team $1,272.00 
44851 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Federal Express Corporation $327.62 
44852 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Rrst Advantage Background Services $76.45 

Corp. 
44853 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Fleet Safety Supply $242.34 
44854 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable FSCI $1,230.00 
44855 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Gale I Cengage $8n.94 
44856 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Gallagher Materials, Inc. $2,945.00 
44857 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Gary T. Copp $660.00 
44858 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Goldstlne,Skrodzki,Russian,Nemec & $17,875.00 

Hoff, LTD. 
44859 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Gryphon Training Group, Inc. $125.00 
44860 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable H & H Electric Company $11,331 .90 

user: Gunn, Felicia Pages: 2 of 5 Thursday, March 08, 2018 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 103

CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 319/2017 - To Payment Date: 3/1412018 

Reconciledl Transaction Reconciled 
Number Date Status Void Reason Voided Date Source Pa}!e. Name Amount Amount Difference 
44B61 03/141201B Open Accounts Payable Hannah Rapp $10.4B 
44B62 031141201B Open Accounts Payable Health Care Service Corporation $931,122.93 
44B63 03/141201B Open Accounts Payable HI9h PSI, LTD $1,42B.5B 
44B64 03/1412018 Open Accounts Payable Home Depot Credit Services $30.02 
44B65 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable Horizon Screen Print $201 .75 
44B66 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable tIIinols Association of Chiefs of Police $105.00 
44B67 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable Illinois Association of Property & $790.00 

Evidence Mgrs. 
44B6B 03/14/201B Open Accounts Payable Illinois Department of Transportation $5B5.00 
44B69 03/14/201B Open Accounts Payable Illinois Fire Inspectors Association $325.00 
44B70 03/14/201B Open Accounts Payable Illinois Secretary of State Police $317.00 
44B71 03/141201B Open Accounts Payable Illinois Tactical Officers Assocation $390.00 
44B72 03/141201B Open Accounts Payable Impact Networking,LLC $19.50 
44B73 03/141201B Open Accounts Payable Infinity Communications Group $97.41 
44874 03/141201B Open Accounts Payable Ingram Library Services LlC $3,236.71 
44B75 03/141201B Open Accounts Payable J. R. Carpet, Inc. $3,100.00 
44876 031141201B Open Accounts Payable Jack's Rental, Inc. 52,214.9B 
448n 031141201B Open Accounts Payable Jack's Rental, Inc. $1,520.13 
44878 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable JNC Consulting, Inc. $2,150.00 
44B79 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Jo Snow $350.00 
44880 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable John Hadj~nnou $1,300.00 
44881 03/141201B Open Accounts Payable John McGrath $550.00 
44BB2 03/141201B Open Accounts Payable John Tarullo 511,430.00 
44BB3 03/141201B Open Accounts Payable Just Tires $1,009.25 
44BB4 03/141201B Open Accounts Payable K's Quality Construction, Inc. $420.00 
44BB5 03/141201B Open Accounts Payable Klein, Thorpe and Jenkins, LTD. $7,37B.40 
448B6 03/14/201B Open Accounts Payable L-K Fire Extinguisher Service Inc. No $125.50 

2 
44BB7 03/141201B Open Accounts Payable Lawndale News $1,034.63 
44BBB 03/14/201B Open Accounts Payable LexlsNexls Risk Solutions $3B2.96 
448B9 03/141201B Open Accounts Payable Little Village Printing $132.00 
44B90 03/1412018 Open Accounts Payable M & J Asphalt Paving $1,400.00 
44B91 03/1412018 Open Accounts Payable M. K. Sports $2,639.00 
44892 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable Mayo Clinic Store $32.00 
44B93 03/141201B Open Accounts Payable McCann industries, Inc. $1,605.66 
44B94 03/141201B Open Accounts Payable McDonough Mechanical Services, Inc. $1,702.42 
44895 03/1412018 Open Acoounts Payable Menards 571.91 
44896 03/1412018 Open Accounts Payable Metro Collision Service I Metro 550.00 

Garage, Inc. 
44897 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Micro Marketing, LlC $36.38 
44B98 031141201B Open Accounts Payable Midwest Tape $1,648.38 
44B99 0311412018 Open Accounts Payable Miguel A. Santiago Consulting, Inc $5,000.00 
44900 031141201B Open Accounts Payable Mike & Sons $460.60 
44901 031141201B Open Accounts Payable Monroe Truck Equipment, Inc. $2,652.63 
44902 03/141201B Open Accounts Payable MRA $18,400.00 
44903 03/141201B Open Accounts Payable National Animal Care & Control $1,190.00 

Association 
44904 03/141201B Open Accounts Payable NLEEC, SUM 450 $4,950.00 
44905 03/141201B Open Accounts Payable Office Depot $3B9.62 
44906 03/141201B Open Accounts Payable Office Team $1,293.B1 

user: Gunn, Felicia Pages: 3 of 5 Thursday. March 08, 2018 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 104

CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 3/9/2017 - To Payment Date: 3/1412018 

Reconciledl Transaction Reconciled 

44908 03/1412018 Open Accounts Payable Otis Elevator Company $5,132.89 
44909 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable PACE Suburban Bus $500.00 
44910 03/1412018 Open Accounts Payable Patrick N. Murray $1,925.00 
44911 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable Patten Industries, Inc. $1,273.46 
44912 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable PHS Locksmith $265.00 
44913 03/1412018 Open Accounts Payable Pitney Bowes $810.61 
44914 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable Pitney Bowes $164.98 
44915 03/1412018 Open Accounts Payable Professional Pest Control, Inc. $110.00 
44916 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable Provantage LLC $11.00 
44917 03/1412018 Open Accounts Payable Quinn Stitt $15.00 
44918 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable R.E. Walsh & Associates. Inc. $125.00 
44919 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable Rick Daodan 513,385.00 
44920 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payab}e Roscoe Company $1,016.87 
44921 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable Rose's Catering $1 ,780.00 
44922 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable Sam's Club I Synchrony Bank 5710.60 
44923 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable Scout Electric Supply $1,246.48 
44924 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable Secure Solutions, Inc. $525.00 
44925 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable Servicios Fuentes LTD $1,075.00 
44926 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable Shelfwiz $160.50 
44927 03/1412018 Open Accounts Payable South Berwyn School District 100 $173.02 
44928 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable Specialty Mat Service 5336.96 
44929 03/1412018 Open Accounts Payable Sprint $1,439.09 
44930 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable Standard Equipment Company 52,323.67 
44931 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable Siorino, Ramella & Duri(in 518,333.80 
44932 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable Suburban laboratories, Inc. $585.00 
44933 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable SYNCB/AMAZON $1 ,414.67 
44934 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable Technology Management Revolving $894.70 

Fund 
44935 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable Tele-Tron Ace Hardware $1,161.37 
44936 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable Today's Business Solutions $1,840.00 
44937 03/1412018 Open Accounts Payable Tom Deegan $280.00 
44938 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable Total Parking Solutions, Inc. $1,800.00 
44939 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable Traffic Control & Protection, Inc. $316.80 
44940 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable Tryad Automotive $1,484.36 
44941 03/1412018 Open Accounts Payable Untque Plumbing $17,832.50 
44942 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable US Gas $252.00 
44943 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable USIC locating Services, Inc. $26,208.63 
44944 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable Verizon Wireless - LeHigh $734.62 
44945 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable Village of Romeoville Fire Academy $1,380.00 
44946 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable Weimer Machine $1 ,393.93 
44947 03/1412018 Open Accounts Payable West Central Municipal Conference $6,321 .99 
44948 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable WaridPoint ECC, Inc. 530.00 
44949 03/1412018 Open Accounts Payable ALEXANDRA KOSIEK $50.00 
44950 03/1412018 Open Accounts Payable AMPARO DIAZOELEON 53,500.00 
44951 03/1412018 Open Accounts Payable ANGELINA MANFREDINI $50.00 
44952 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable BREAKING GROUND INC 51 ,475.00 
44953 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable DIAZ BROTHERS REMODELING $1,475.00 
44954 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable EMMA RYBCZYK $50.00 
44955 03/14/2018 Open Accounts Payable GAIL REMIYAS $175.00 

user: Gunn, Felicia Pages: 4 of 5 Thursday, March 08, 2018 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 105

44957 03/1412018 

44958 03/1412018 
44959 03/1412018 
44960 03/1412018 
44961 03/1412018 
44962 03/14/2018 
44963 03/14/20 18 
44964 03/14/2018 
44965 03/1 412018 

Type Check Totals: 
01 - General Cash Totals 

Grand Totals: 

user: Gunn, Felicia 

Open 

Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 319/2017 - To Payment Date: 3/14/2018 

Reconciledl 

Checks 

Chectc. 

All 

Accounts Payable 

Accounts Payable 
Accounts Payable 
Accounts Payable 
Accounts Payable 
Accounts Payable 
Accounts Payable 
Accounts Payable 
Accounts Payable 
195 Transactions 

Status Count 
Open 195 
Stopped 0 
Total 195 

Stopped 0 
Total 195 

Slalus Count 
Open 195 
Stopped 0 
Total 195 

Status Count 
Open 195 
Stopped 0 
Total 195 

Pages: 5 of 5 

JAIME ZURHEIDE & MAIRE 
MARTINO 
JAMES MAlZA & PATTY MARTINEZ 
JOANNE SPARLING 
JUAN LEYVA ESPINOSA 
LEVA 
LlGIA C. GRANADOS CARDENAS 
LILLIAN AVELAR 
OSCAR PENA 
WILLIAM JAMBROSEK 

Transaction Amount 
$1.435,488.19 

$0.00 
$1,435,488.19 

$0.00 
$1,435,488.19 

Transection Amount 
$1 ,435,488.19 

$0.00 
$1,435,488.19 

Transaction Amount 
$1,435,488.19 

$0.00 
$1,435,488.19 

Transaction 

53,500.00 

$1,475.00 
$1.475.00 
$1,475.00 

$395.00 
$1,475.00 
$1,475.00 
$1 ,475.00 
$3,500.00 

$1.435,488.19 

Reconciled 

Reconciled Amount 
50.00 
50.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 
$0.00 

Reconciled Amount 
sii.oo 
$0.00 
$0.00 

Reconciled Amount 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

Thursday. March 08. 2018 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 106

Chicago International Christian Church 
4722 S. Woodlawn Ave. 
Chicago, IL 60615 
E-mail: eric.gayton@usd21.org 
Phone Number: (312) 361-8375 

To The City of Berwyn 

March 07, 2018 

We are requesting permission to fund raise on traffic corners in Berwyn. The purpose is to raise money 
for leadership training. The goal is to train our members to then be able to train others in Cook County 
and in other places in the world to learn how to build better communities, be more responsible citizens 
and learn how to help build family and moral character. 

The fund raising event would be an activity of the Chicago International Christian Church established In 
2006. We have responsibly fund raised at this intersection before. Our tax exempt identification 
number is: E9933-8688-02. 

We are requesting the city of Berwyn to allow us specific dates for fundraising on the corners of Oak 
Park and Cermak Rd. Please consider the following Saturdays: March, 17'h, 24th, and 31st from 9am to 
Spm. 

Thank you for your continual support as we are trying to raise money to make a difference In people's 
lives. 

Thank you In advanced, I look forward to hearing from you. 

Cory Blackwell/Evangelist 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 107

Occcmbcr 7, 2007 
OFFICE OF TIlE ATTORNEY GENERAL 

STATE OF ILLINOIS 

CJnCAOO INTERNATIONAL CHRISTIAN CHUR.CH 
Ull S.WABASH.SUITE710 ' 
CHI~.IL,60605 

Lisa Madigan 
ATTOIINIIY OBN\IRAL 

'RE: Religious Exemption of CHICAGO INTI1.RNATIONAL CHlUSTIAN CHURCH under 
. " tlte ChmitNrle Trust Am aBEl fIw,Illioo~ Act. 

CON 611J5l35s • 

Dear Re&istnmt: 

We have reviewed the malelilll sUpplied for C1nCAGO IN"fBNNAll0NAL 
CHRISTIAN CHURCH. 

Based IIpI)I1 the illfomIation YOII have FO~ CHICAGO IN-rERNATIO~AL 
~TIAN CHVRCHmeets tlw qua:li:fiClitipns ofSectioa3 (a) of'AnActto.hsuIate 
Solicitation III!d CcIlecaOD ofFlmds for Charitable Ptlzposcs.' and" SectiOA 4 ofTha CbaDtable 
TtIIst Act' TheJefore, it is a religious ~"';OD l!Xempt from filiDg annua:! financial repo~ 
WIder,the Charitable Trust IUId Soli~ns Acts. • 

I would also call your attention to SeQlion'12 of tl;Ie Solicitations Act which states ,that it 
shall be tmlawful for 8I1y Charitable organi1Anon to represent, cIiJectJ,y or UI.directly, for the 
pmpose of solicitation and collection of JimdlJ ME chariteble pwposes, in 81ItY fuIm Or mmmcr 
\\iudaoever. 1hat.it bas registered or oiletWiJe complied With file JIlO"risiE?D oft1!i3 Act. 

. - f.n the c:ventY0lp"1l1gInjzal:jOD should ~ any ChaBgesin:1he ~1Il1 ~yoll 
BllPPlied on tlw regislmtion statement, such as tlw ~ officers, address or p~SII, YO\l must 
notify us so that we may reflect those changes in our:files. 

Thank yeu for Sllppl)'ing this office with the inftmnation necessary to make iIis 
determina!ion. If you should have any questions, ple4se.ti:el ftee to contact meat (312}8l'4-
2595. 

. : . 

Ve;y.lmly. }'Ol% 

~~-. r/!I))p: "', 
~~te~.~naa ~ffi~ " 

, Charitable Trusts Bureau' 
100 West Randolph Street,l11hFloor 
Chic:ago, Dlinois 60601-3175 ... -



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 108

., . 

.II., •• ; 

.:" . 
" t', 

-. 

.:. ", . .... 

'. 

~ ~0N7tL ~SUJ\N 

£llC:':xs aooM 
11l.l s'~ 11'1' -aft 1lob 
ClttCJlClQ. Xl. n'6O$ 

_10)'82: Xcle~t~U ... ~ou ~r • 
:11'7-01'11._01 

DLlIf· 
~1"'t;:t28.OJ.iOD'7 

Ccla.taet NJ:IlOD. 
IlOHALtJ " IIBLL . XDlI 3 UBS 

CMtact 'l'el~ l'II.ImIlel: I 
etl'77) '.-5500 

AQcounting ,,-iQcl Ending. 
lleQeII\l2Q' .)l 

Pbbli~ Cbari.y Sta~u8' 
. .. - - . . t~ QoH U {1>' (~-' .. 

Po~ NO ~n4. 
Ito 

BffaetJ.ve Date .f lJDllllpUCO. 
May 2.. 200' 

C~tr~iOD J.le4uct:tbUity. 
Yes 

A .... q ... 11 JIppl.i .... 
H6 

lIe.r Applic:aJ;1t. 

We 4tre pl.-.ed to i~orm you 1;hat. upon r.ev1ew ~ your .pplicatiola :for t.x 
~ .,eatull _ bve cieten)ine4 that you are elOeIIIpt from .~~ f._ tu; 
~ sect:ioR 501 (e) (3) of the ;tatemal R_UtI Cod". C9m;dbutioas to. you are 
~~ ua4er aeqtioa 170 of the COde. You ere alao ~111ed to. ~ .. . 
tiUt 4eCblOt:tb1e heqYeeta. devi.e., tr,ua!l:fer. or gif·e. ~ nc::.t1_ -205!h 2\0 _ 
_ a5~ of· tb8 code. llee.",e tld. ~et"elr coultl help reeo1 .... · -.r ~ 
~p"'inr .yvU exeII1Pt at&tua. yoU ~ keep it in' ~~. jr' .~. cia • . 

oX9lm1zatioaa mcempt· qnder aec:Uoa 501 Ie) U, of the CiIj4e ._. furt!)er cl ... if;\:ed. 
.•• 1tlt:ur ~lic eIIIlriU .... r pdva.te .• ~t.i ___ . lie det.umiM4 tlIat fOU UII; 

.. 

• :"'lic clIa1Jity 1IIMII=r the Code nc:t.i"':11Ii u. .. 1:4Id i1I the. ".diD!I' .et·.~.. '·0'" 1.=-·.·· 
Pl __ e.a. ezu;:loae4 1Nb:j.i.e&tioa 422~·PC. Cornp-liann Gui~ fOlL" SOl (c) (3) ~. 
~:U:ie.. tor __ helpful info~iOl:l aIIIout your reepona:lldUtl". It!! all 

~t. .¥f .... t;i_. '. 

r .. : 

! '. . ... ; 

-. 
. .. 

. " 
J ' 't •• ..~ . 

i' '. '" .~''\ - . 
' ,:.; .~ i· 

I . ~ . ,: , ', ..... 

• 

.~ .. 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 109

k-r.J 
S'fH~Df. .CELLE 

r.f l:'DIIJ.~ I'f., ( . 
1428 S.Wesley Ave .• Berwy&"lUrrmijj6P"tg~~1287 • 708-788-0876 • FAX 708-788-0242 

February 16,2018 

Mr. Thomas j. Pavlik, City Clerk 
6700 W. 26th Street 
Berwyn,IL 60402 

Dear Mr. Pavlik, 

ZOIC fIB 2b A to: OS 

As in previous years, I am writing with a special request for Good Friday, March 
30th. Once again, St. Mary of Celie is having a Way of the Cross procession and 
would like permission to walk two blocks in the streets near parish property. This 
year, we would like to start at the church at 15th & Euclid, walk north on Euclid 
to13th Street, turn east and walk a block to Wesley Avenue, then turn south and 
walk back to 15th Street. 

We are also requesting permission to have the perimeter around St. Mary of Celie be 
designated as a "no parking" area during the event, which would take place from 
1:00 pm to 3:30 pm. It would also be helpful if the City would assist us with traffic 
control (to stop cars from driving through) at all designated corners. 

Please let me know if you need any further information. Thank you for your 
consideration. 

Sincerely, 

Rev. Hugo Morales 
Pastor 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 110

Christian Congregation of Jehovah's Witnesses 
4108 S. Oak Park Ave 

Stickney, IL 60402 
708-945-2404 - 708-795-6526 

englishciceropw@gmail.com 

k .. s 

February 26th, 2018 

Dear City Clerk, 

This is our otlicial request to apply for permission to conduct our Conununity Service in 
Berwyn, starting Monday, April 2nd through Saturday, June, 30th 2018 at the following 
locations, days and times: 

Locations: 
Windsor & Oak Park 
Windsor & Grove 
Windsor & Harlem 
Cermak & Home 
Cermak & Elmwood 
Cermak & Scoville 
Cermak & Lombard 
3308 & Oak Park 

Days & Times: 
Monday - Friday 7am-12pm & 4:30pm-6:30pm 
Saturdays -7am-lpm 

Locations, days and times will vary due to the amount of volunteers available and weather 
but will not exceed the above locations. days and times. 

Thank you again for your assistance and the privilege of serving the community! 

Sincerely, 

Minister of Jehovah's Witnesses 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 111

Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Charles D. Lazzara 
Building Director 

6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402..()70l Telephone: (708) 788-2660 fax: (708) 788-1427 
www.berwyn-il.gov 

March 2, 2018 

Honorable Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor of the City of Berwyn 
Members of City Council 

Re: Building and Local Improvement Permits 

Gentlemen: 

Attached is the financial report of Building and Local Improvement 
Permits issued by the City of Berwyn for the month of February 2018, 
along with a copy of Permit Statistics for this same period. 

Charles D. La ara 
Building Director 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 112

Report Of Building Permits Issued By The City Of Berwyn 
Between: 2/112018 

Name and Address 

Marco Salerno 3511 S, Maple Avenue 

Bianca Roldan 3725 S. Home Avenue 

Hector Garcia 3614 S. Ridgeland Avenue 

Diaz Brothers Remodeling Co 3135 S. Harvey Avenue 

Orlik Properties, Inc. 2422 S. Euclid Avenue 

American Revival Company NFP 1336 S. Clarence Avenue 

DBS Development LLC 1433 S, Highland Avenue 

GERARDO & SILVIA MARTINEZ 3729 S, Elmwood Avenue 

MG Holdings LLC 

Hector Garcia Living Trust 

Ezequiel Holguin 

1310 Kenilworth Inc. 

( Building: Permit Report) 

3639 S, Euclid Avenue 

3630 S, Highland Avenue 

2310 S, Lombard Avenue 

1310 S. Kenilworth Avenue 

And 2/2812018 

REINSPECTION HVAC AND BUILDING HAD TO MOVE 
CONDENSER FOR COMPLETE REHAB 

plumbing final reinspection --- INSTALL A BATHROOM IN 
THE BASEMENT, REMOVE EXCISING GALVANIZED 
PIPING AND REPLACE WITH COPPER PIPE THROUGH 
OUT THE HOUSE----, ALSO INSTALL NEW ELECTRIC IN 
THE BASEMENT AND ATTIC - INCLUDING 36 RECESSED 
LIGHT CANS, 40 OUTL 

ADDITIONAL INSPECTION AND REINSPECTION FEES 

PLUMBING FEES ONLY: PLUMBING UBNDERGROUND 
PVC HEADING INSP, PLUMBING UNDERGROUND PVC 
HEAD TEST, GAS PRESSURE TEST, 

REVISION OF APPROVED PLANS 

REINSPECTION FOR INSULATION MAIN FLOOR IATTIC
REMODEL INTERIOR- RlR KITCHEN AND 2 BATHROOMS, 
ALL NEW FLOORING, ALL NEW COPPER LINES AND 
VENTING, INSTALL NEW HOT WATER HEATER INSTALL 
NEW LAUNDRY SINK, NEW HVAC SYSTEM, INSTALL NEW 
ELECTRICAL SWITCHES AND OU 

elec rough reinspection fee 

REINSPECTION OF INSULATION ---- Building family room, 
bathroom office space on basement. Frame water meter 
room. Frame laundry room (existing) create walls. Frame out 
family room, insulate, drywall 12x1 0, family room area has 
existing heat vent. Office ro 

Issued Permit No. 

2/8/2018 Bldg-B 8270-1 

2120/2018 Bldg-B 8642-2 

2127/2018 Bldg-B 8702-1 

212212018 Bldg-B 8732-1 

216/2018 Bldg-B 8778-3 

218/2018 Bldg-B 8831-2 

2/27/2018 Bldg-B 8876-1 

2/16/2018 Bldg-B 8928-1 

ADD BATHROOM IN BASEMENT, 2/16/2018 Bldg-B 8930-1 

INTERIOR REMODELING: 1ST FLOOR - REMODEL THE 211/2018 Bldg-B 8937-0 
KITCHEN, 1 FULL BATHROOM, LIVING ROOM, DINING 
ROOM, LAUNDRY ROOM AND 1 EXISTING BEDROOM, 
2ND FLOOR - FINISH INTERIOR EXISTING DORMER WITH 
1 MASTER BEDROOM AND 1 MASTER BATHROOM AND 
REMODEL THE EXISTING FULL BA 

first fl: RR fixtures and finishes throughout. (kitchen, 217/2018 Bldg-B 8938-0 
bathroom, living room, dinig room, and 3 bedrooms) including 
drywall, insulation, trimwork and doors. Attic: new framing, 
drywall, insulation, electrical, plumbing and ductwork and 
finishes for mast 

CONSTRUCT A NEW SINGLE FAMILY HOME, INSTALL A 2/16/2018 Bldg-B 8939-0 
NEW 1 1/2 WATER SERVICE. CONSTRUCTION A NEW 
SINGLE FAMILY HOME. INSTALL A 1 1/2" NEW WATER 
SERVICE, TO INCLUDE 5 BEDROOMS AND 3 1/2 
BATHROOMS, BASEMENT WIL BE FINISHED WITH A 
RECREATIONS ROOM, LAUNDRY/MECHANI 

Frithly, March 02, 2018 

Cost Of 

Improvements 
$0,00 

$0,00 

$0,00 

$0,00 

$0,00 

$0,00 

$0,00 

$0,00 

$4,400,00 

$72,500,00 

$9,600,00 

$220,000,00 

Cost Of 

Permit 

$130,00 

$50,00 

$370,00 

$150,00 

$230,00 

$65,00 

$50.00 

$65,00 

$285,00 

$1,427,50 

$785,00 

$7,305,00 

Page I of.1 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 113

Report Of Building Permits Issued By The City Of Berwyn 

Name and Address 

1310 Kenilworth Inc. 

Enanuvie Ewharekuko 

Be Wise Holding, LLa 

JAMES A MORRONE 

Krystof Zadora 

Elmwood Group, LLC 

Prosperous Connections LLC 

Prosperous Connections LLc 

Between: 2/1/2018 

1308 S. Kenilworth Avenue 

1521 S. Grove Avenue 

2726 S. East Avenue 

6723 W. Riverside Drive 

1438 S. Kenilworth Avenue 

1241 S. Harvey Avenue 

6437 W. 26th Street 

3206 S. Clinton Avenue 

Sourbis Brothers Management LL 3838 S. Ridgeland Avenue 

( Building: Permit Report) 

And 2/28/2018 

CONSTRUCTION A NEW SINGLE FAMILY HOME. INSTALL 
Al 1/2" NEW WATER SERVICE. TO INCLUDE 5 
BEDROOMS AND 3 1/2 BATHROOMS, BASEMENT WIL BE 
FINISHED WITH A RECREATIONS ROOM, 
LAUNDRY/MECHANICAL ROOM, 2 BEDROOMS AND A 
BATHROOM. AlC CONDENSERS MUST BE LOCATED BE 

READ NOTES DATE 
3/112018************************** ATF (PREVIOUS 
CONTRACTOR) R/R 3 BOILERS AND INSTALLED 2 
FURNACES(FURNACES ARE BEING USED TO HELP THE 
AlC UNITS) --A WATTS 9-D DOUBLE CHECK VALVE IS 
ACCEPTABLE ON SINGLE FAMILY 

2ND FLOOR ADDITION AND INTERIOR REMOLDING. 1 ST 
FLOOR ADD 1/2 BATHROOM, REMODEL KITCHEN ABD 
EXISTING FULL BATHROOM, LIVING/DING ROOM AND 
LAUNDRY, 2ND FLOOR WILL HAVE 3 BEDROOMS AND 
FULL BATHROOM, BASEMENT IS CRAWL SPACE WITH 
MECHANICAL ROOM AND SINK. BOlLE 

INTERIOR REMODEL -- 1 ST FLOOR WILL REMODEL THE 
KITCHEN AND FULL BATHROOM, LIVING ROOM AND 
DINING ROOM. 2ND FLOOR REMODEL THE FULL 
BATHROOM AND 4 EXISTING BEDROOMS. BASEMENT 
INSTALL A NEW BATHROOM IN THE BASEMENT, 
LAUNDRY ROOM, MECHANICAL ROOM AND RECREATI 

NEW SINGLE FAMILY HOME WITH 2 CAR GARAGE. WILL 
INCLUDE 4 BEDROOMS AND 3.5 BATHROOMS. WILL 
INSTALL 1 1/2" WATER SERVICE AND WATER METER. 
AlC CONDENSERS MUST BE LOCATED BEHIND THE 
HOUSE 3' FROM PROPERTY LOT LINE AND ELECTRICAL 
METER. MUST HARDWIRE SMOKE A 

NEW DORMER TO INCLUDE 3 BEDROOMS AND 2 NEW 
BATHROOMS, R/R KITCHEN AND EXISTING BATHROOM 
ON 1ST FLOOR, PAINT, DRYWALL AS NEEDED, 
BASEMENT TO REMAIN UNFINISHED, BOILERS TO 
FORCED AIR. UPGRADE WATER SERVICE AND WATER 
METER TO 1 ". INSTALL NEW REAR STAIRS. ALL 

BUILD NEW GARAGE 20X20 14' HEIGHT. JULIE DIG 
A0530988 

BUILD NEW GARAGE 20X20 14' HEIGHT. JULIE DIG 
A0530994 

ATF FOR BASEMENT BATHROOM-PLUMBING ALREADY 
PASSED ON PRELIMINARY. 

Issued Permit No_ 

2/16/2018 Bldg-B 8940-0 

2114/2018 Bldg-B 8941-0 

2/15/2018 Bldg-B 8942-0 

2116/2018 Bldg-B 8943-0 

2116/2018 Bldg-B 8944-0 

2/21/2018 Bldg-B 8946-0 

212212018 Gar-B 8947-0 

212212018 Gar-B 8948-0 

2126/2018 Bldg-B 8949-0 

Friday, March 02, 2018 

Cost Of 

Improvements 

$220,000.00 

$0.00 

$60,000.00 

$43,000.00 

$190,000.00 

$0.00 

$11,000.00 

$11,000.00 

$0.00 

Cost Of 

Permit 

$7,305.00 

$635.00 

$3,355.00 

$2,555.00 

$6,740.00 

$3,740.00 

$330.00 

$330.00 

$535.00 

Page 2 of3 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 114

Report Of Building Permits Issued By The City Of Berwyn 
Between: 2/112018 

Name and Address 

Kevin & Sabrina Johnson 3108 S. Home Avenue 

ADOLFO MELENDEZ 1308 S. Gunderson Avenue 

Maricela Guzman 2307 S. Ridgeland Avenue 

Miriam Gonzalez & Irma Gomez 2522 S. Scoville Avenue 

25 Building Permits Issued During Period 

( Building: Permit Report ) 

And 2/28/2018 

REMODEL THE BASEMENT TO INCLUDE A NEW 
BATHROOM AND OPEN RECREATIONAL SPACE· WITH 
WINDOWS TO EGRESS CODE, INSTALL A SUMP PUMP 
SYSTEM. WILL INSTALL HEAT LAMP. 

ATF PERMIT FOR REMODEL ENTIRE BASEMENT AND 
INSTALL A BATHROOM BY PREVIOUS OWNER. REMOVE 
BASEMENT PANELING AND INSTALL DRYWALL. INSTALL 
EGRESS WINDOW IN BEDROOMS, INSTALL HOT WATER 
TANK. REPAIR AS NEEDED LOOSE FLOOR BOARDS AND 
TREADS ON FRONT PORCH. CLOSE 

install new central air, new furnance 96% eft. 80,000 STUs, 
new case coil 3 tons, new condenser 3 tons. NC 
CONDENSERS MUST BE LOCATED BEHIND THE HOUSE 
3' FROM PROPERTY LOT LINE AND ELECTRICAL METER. 

ADDING 2ND STORY ADDITION TO INCLUDE 2 NEW 
BATHROOMS AND 3 BEDROOMS. ALL ELECTRIC, 
PLUMBING AND HVAC TO CURRENT CODE. ALL 
BEDROOMS REQUIRE A RETURN. BRING WINDOWS TO 
EGRESS CODE WHERE NEEDED. 

Issued Permit No. 
2/26/2018 Bldg·B 8950·0 

2/26/2018 Bldg·B 8951·0 

2127/2018 Bldg·B 8952·0 

2128/2018 Bldg·B 8953·0 

Totals . .... 

Friday, March 02, 2018 

Cost Of 

Improvements 
$22,550.00 

$1,500.00 

$5,500.00 

$15,000.00 

$886,050,00 

Cost Of 

Permit 
$930.00 

$200.00 

$345.00 

$1,025.00 

$38,937,50 

Page 3 0/.1 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 115

Permits Issued Friday, March 2, 2018 9:00 AM 

For Period Beginning 211/2017 And Ending 2/28/2018 

Feb 
OSmCeIl 

Jan OSign 

Dec I 1'IRoof 

Nov <UH_ • POD 

Oct '2017 . OPium 

Sep '<UI, 
_Imp. 

Aug 
II HVAC 

, 
Jul 

o Ga. 

Jun 

rn Fence 

May '201 

D8ee 
Apr '201 

DDump 
Mar '2017 

Feb 
• Bldg 

o 25 50 75 100 125 150 175 200 225 250 275 300 

Permit Detail 

2018 February Bldg 23 2017 December Bldg 48 
2018 February Dump 9 2017 December Dump 2 
2018 February Elee 13 2017 December Elee 16 
2018 February Fence 1 2017 December Fence 10 
2018 February Gar 2 2017 December Gar 1 
2018 February HVAC 4 2017 December HVAC 10 
2018 February Impr 87 2017 December Impr 111 
2018 February Plum 12 2017 December Plum 16 
2018 February POD 2 2017 December POD 4 
2018 February Roof 11 2017 December Roof 18 
2018 February Sign 2 2017 December Sign 5 

166 241 

2018 January Bldg 43 2017 November Bldg 33 
2018 January Dump 8 2017 November Dump 19 
2018 January Elee 20 2017 November Elee 19 
2018 January Fence 2017 November Fence 8 
2018 January HVAC 16 2017 November Gar 
2018 January Impr 70 2017 November HVAC 8 
2018 January Plum 22 2017 November Impr 173 
2018 January POD 4 2017 November Plum 28 
2018 January Roof 12 2017 November POD 2 
2018 January Sign 4 2017 November Roof 63 

200 2017 November Sign 3 
2017 November SmCeli 

356 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 116

Permit Detail 

2017 October Bklg 36 2017 April Bklg 40 
2017 October Dump 10 2017 April Dump • 
2017 October Elee 27 2017 April Elee 10 
2017 October Fence 2. 2017 April Fence 2. 
2017 October Gar 4 2017 April Gat 
2017 October HVAC 13 2017 April HVAC 11 
2017 October Impr 239 2017 April Impr 199 
2017 October Plum 32 2017 Ap"1 Plum 26 
2017 October POD 1 2017 April POD 4 
2017 October Root 54 2017 April Roof 59 
2017 October S~n 1 2017 April Sign 2 

447 365 

2017 September Bldg 35 2017 March Bldg 41 
2017 September Dump 11 2017 March Dump 12 
2017 September Elee 14 2017 March Elee 15 
2017 September Fence 26 2017 March Fence 18 
2017 September Gar 5 2017 March Gar 9 
2017 September HVAC 5 2017 March HVAC 7 
2017 September Impr 228 2017 March Impr 155 
2017 September Plum ,. 2017 March Plum 30 
2017 September POD 2 2017 March POD 3 
2017 September Root 55 2017 March Roof 40 
2017 September Sign 6 2017 March Sign 6 

408 336 

2017 August Bklg 48 2017 February Bklg 48 
2017 August Dump 11 2017 February ,,"mp • 2017 August Elee 26 2017 February Elee 14 
2017 August Fence 35 2017 February Fence 2 
2017 August Gar 10 2017 February Gar 2 
2017 August HVAC 10 2017 February HVAC 11 
2017 August Impr 252 2017 February Impr 93 
2017 August Plum 17 2017 February Plum 27 
2017 August POD 3 2017 February POD 2 
2017 August Roof 73 2017 February Roof 23 

485 2017 February Sign 5 

2017 July Bldg 48 229 

2017 July Dump • 
2017 July Elec 28 
2017 July Fence 23 
2017 July Gar 6 
2017 July HVAC 14 
2017 Ju~ Impr 221 
2017 Ju~ Plum 12 
2017 Ju~ POD 3 
2017 Ju~ Roof 70 
2017 Ju~ Sign 3 

437 

2017 June B~g . 28 
2017 June ,,"mp 6 
2017 June Elee 22 
2017 June Fence 30 
2017 June Gar 13 
2017 June HVAC 24 
2017 June Impr 283 
2017 June Plum 22 
2017 June POD 6 
2017 June Roof 60 
2017 June Sign 2 

496 

2017 May B~9 35 
2017 May Dump 15 
2017 May E~ 20 
2017 May Fence 34 
2017 May Gar 9 
2017 May HVAC 14 
2017 May Impr 280 
2017 May Plum 20 
2017 May POD 8 
2017 May Root 74 
2017 May Sign 7 

514 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 117

Permit Detail 

Total Permits Issued 4698 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 118

Permits Issued By The Building Department Friday, March 02, 2018 

Between: 21112018 And 212812018 

Building Permits Issued: 23 
Cost of Improvements: $864,050.00 

Dumpster Permits Issued: 9 
Cost of Improvements: $4,300.00 

Electrical Permits Issued: 13 
Cost of Improvements: $26,705.00 

Fence Permits Issued: 1 
Cost of Improvements: $2,000.00 

~rage Permits Issued: 2 
Cost of Improvements: $22,000.00 

• 

HVAC Permits Issued: 4 
Cost of Improvements: $16,778.00 

Local Improvement Permits Issued: 87 
Cost of Improvements: $470,405.59 

Plumbing Permits Issued: 12 
Cost of Improvements: $52,559.09 

POD Permits Issued: 2 
Cost of Improvements: $0.00 

Roofing Permits Issued: 11 
Cost of Improvements: $60,733.00 

Sign Permits Issued: 2 
Cost of Improvements: $6,800.00 

Total Permits: 166 Total Improvements: !5.1,526,330.68 

Fees Collected 
BackfiiiiilspeCiion " ....... .. r---·$195.oo 

( Building: Permit Fees Report) Page 1 0/3 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 119

Permits Issued By The Building Department 

I 
r-

( Building: Permit Fees Report) 

Between: 2/112018 And 2128/2018 

ctiimiieyune-rRough r . 
Chimney Liner Finar---:r 

. __ . . -
$50.00 

$50.00 

I $75.00 

Friday, March 02, 2018 

Page 20/3 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 120

Permits Issued By The Building Department 

Between: 2/112018 And 2/2812018 

r ..... -... --.- r ·· 
Parkway Inspection $50.00 

r:;- - ._- .- .. - . . ... - .---------,:-=..,...,-::-:-:-
. Total Fees Collected. . . . . $69,315.00 

( Building: Permit Fees Report) 

Friday, March 02, 2018 

Page30f3 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 121

Report Of BuildinglImprovement Permits Issued By The City Of Berwyn Friday, March 02, 2018 

Between: 21112018 And 2/2812018 
Census Permit Cost Of Cost Of 

Name and Address P.1.N. # Closs Issued Permit # Improvements Permit 

Hector Garcia Living Trust 3630 S. Highland Avenue 16-32-309-030-000 INTERIOR REMODELING: 1 ST FLOOR - R 211 /2018 Bldg-B 8937-0 $72,500.00 $1,427.50 
REMODEL THE KITCHEN. 1 FULL 
BATHROOM, LIVING ROOM, DINING ROOM, 
LAUNDRY ROOM AND 1 EXISTING 
BEDROOM. 2ND FLOOR - FINISH INTERIOR 
EXISTING DORMER WITH 1 MASTER 
BEDROOM AND 1 MASTER BATHROOM AND 
REMODEL THE EXISTING FULL BA 

...................... ' .................................... " ......... ,- , .... 
Robert A. Grieger 6514 W. 26th Street 16-30-404-011-000 plumbing rough reinspection 1st fl. R 211/2018 Plum-L 77085-3 $0.00 $50.00 

JOCl1846LLC 1846 S. Oak Park Avenue 16-19-315-041-000 REPAIR FROZEN AND BROKE WATER LINES R 211/2018 Plum-L 78072-0 $5,000.00 $135.00 
AND RIR WATER HEATER -- ALL WORK TO 
CODE. 

3 
---.~~-~-------------

Charles E. Evans & Lois E. Ev 1908 S. Maple Avenue 16-19-316-022-000 Install 30amp breaker/receptaclelwire fo.- dryer. R 21112018 Elec-L 78073-0 $4,575.00 $185.00 
Install set1SOf light outside of garage door. Install 
dedicated drcuits for washer/frezeer/sump pump. 
Install 12 new flush mount light fixtures. Add 
fan/light combo switch to 2 bedrooms. 

4 ---------,--- -----_ .. __ ._-
Berwyn Plaza LLC 6905 W. OGDEN AVENUE A 99-99-999-000-068 JOB STOP -INSTALLED VANITY LIGHTS FOR 211/2018 Impr-L 78074-0 $4,000.00 $50.00 

BARBERSHOP. INSTALL WOOD PANELING 
ON THE WALLS. HUNG MIRRORS ON THE 
WALLS AND WORK STATION AS WELL. TILES 
ON FLOORS. 

5 

Anna Svehla 6927 W_ 29th Place 16-30-317-025-000 Replace electric meter box, new grounding rod. R 211/2018 Elec-L 78075-0 $1,450.00 $125.00 

6 --_.-.-.--.-.. __ .. __ ._ .•..•....... _ ... _ .. __ .•.. _--_._-.. _ .. _ .......... .. _---
Miguel & Concepcion Garcia 2337 S. Clinton Avenue 16-30-106-015-000 Install 5 eheat envi high efficiency heaters In R 211/2018 Elec-L 78076-0 $3,700.00 $170.00 

second fl. And oull new circuits where needed. 

7 

JKK IVLLC 1646 S. Lombard Avenue 16-20-303-o3~00 PRELIMINARY PLUMBING AND ELECTRICAL R 21112018 Impr-L 78077-0 $0.00 $100.00 
INSPECnON OF WORK THAT WAS DONE BY 
THE PREVIOUS OWNER 

8 

Jamie Rosin 6233 W. Cermak Road 16-29-102-007-000 33'-6" wide x 3-'6" projection x 7'-6" drop All new CIR 211/2018 Impr-L 78078-0 $7,500.00 $180.00 
welded framework remove/dispose of eXisting. 
40.25LF_ No electric 

Jose Ortiz 1303 S. Euclid Avenue 16-19-209-002-000 replace 10 windows 1 st floor and 9 windows on R 21212018 Impr-L 77886-1 $2,600.00 $55.00 
2nd floor. Includes bedrooms, dining/living room 
and front area on 2nd floor. Check for egress. 
Call for final inspection. 

(Building: Permit_County --411) Page I 0/19 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 122

Report Of BuiidinglImprovement Permits Issued By The City Of Berwyn Friday, March 02, 2018 

Between: 2/1/2018 And 212812018 
Census 
Class Name and Address 

R& B Customs 

11 

Thomas Guenshurg 

12 .. . .. , .. __ . __ .•..... _-- -

6606 W. Ogden Avenue 

3822 S. Kenilworth Avenue 

Robert Lee McCutcheon & Jes 2832 S. Maple Avenue 

13 .. 

Haydee T. Nascimento 1843 S. Gunderson Avenue 

Altagraci8 C. Herrera 2432 S. Harvey Avenue 

15 

Saleem Mohhammed 3528 S. Kenilworth Avenue 

16 

6843 Stanley LLC 6843 W. Sianley Avenue 

17 ----------
George & Bernice Fejt Trustee 2621 S. Cuyler Avenue 

18 

Cuyler·Cennak Bldg LLC 6318 W. Cermak Road 

19 ------, ---_ .. __ .. _----_._----_ . 
Orlik Properties, Inc. 2422 S. Euclid Avenue 

(Building: Permu_County...J\U) 

P.l.N. # 

16·31·403·007·000 RIR REPLACE CONCRETE FLOOR C 

16·31·329.()23·000 TlOAND RESHINGLE HOUSE ROOF, RIR R 
GUITER AD DOWNSPOUTS. DOWNSPOUTS 
MUST DISBURSE ONTO PRIVATE 
PROPERTY. DUMPSTER MUST HAVE 
FLASHING BARRICADES. 

16·30·308·037·000 RIR 4 WINDOWS·3IN LIVING ROOM AND 11N R 
BEDROOM (THIS BEDROOM WINDOW DOES 
NOT NEED TO MEET EGRESS BECAUSE 
ANOTHER WINDOW IN SAME BEDROOM 
ALREADY HAS EGRESS SEE PERMIT L·74551) 

16·19·414·017·000 less for additional inspections, 2 framing ane 2 
insulations 

R 

16·29·118·032·000 BUILDING FINAL REINSPECTION : Remove R 
and replace 8 windows, living room 2 ea. 29 3/4 x 
661/21 ea 43314 x 66112, bvedrooms 3 ea. 31 
112 x 45 112, kochen 2 ea. 31 112 x 41 112 vinyl 
fusion welded. (EGRESS). 

16-31·3OS.()20·OO0 INTERIOR DEMO ONLY: Remove the "d 
wooden floor on the 1st fl. And 2nd 11. Demolish 
kitchen wIt cabinets and flooring. Demolish 
bathroom and a half (2nd fl.) Demolis brick 
chimney (currently not belong used to vent 
anything per hlo). Dumpster for clean ou 

16-31·114-oo7'()00 installation fa fire alarm system. 4 manual fire 
alarm boxes, 11 smoke detectors. 

R 

C 

16·29·301·013·000 DUMPSTER ON THE STREET TO REMOVE R 
UNWANTED ITEMS· DUMPSTER MUST HAVE 
FLASHING BARRICADES. 

99-99·999'()00·062 DUMPSTER FOR OWNER TO CLEAN OUT 
EVICTED TENANT DEBRIS. DUMPSTER 
MUST HAVE FLASHING BARRICADES. 

16·30·216·025·000 REVISION OF APPROVED PLANS R 

Cost Of Cost Of Penn it 
Issued Pennit # Improvements Permit 

2/212018 Impr·L 78079·0 $8,950.00 $40.00 

21212018 RoaR 78080-0 $14,440.00 $325.00 

21212018 Impr·L 78081·0 $5,507.00 $100.00 

21512018 Impr·L 6804'" $0.00 $200.00 

215/2018 Impr·L 76976·1 $0.00 $50.00 

215/2018 Impr·L 78082·0 $8,000.00 $90.00 

21512018 Impr·L 78063·0 $2,500.00 $255_00 

215/2018 Dump·L 78084·0 $0.00 $50.00 

21512018 Dump·L 78085'() $50.00 

21612018 Bldg·B 8778·3 $0.00 $230.00 

Page 2 of 19 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 123

Report Of Building/Improvement Permits Issued By The City Of Berwyn Friday, March 02, 2018 

Between: 211/2018 And 212812018 
Census Permit Cost Of Cost Of 

Name and Address P.l.N. # Class Issued Permit # Improvements Permit 

Page Tilley 2535 S. Euclid Avenue 16·30·225·014·000 HVAC Rough Reinspection Navarro Heating R 216/2018 Impr·L 77545·1 $0.00 $50.00 

21 

Sacreno & P. Zimmerman 6305 W. Roosevelt Road A 99·99·999·000·044 INSTALL A FIRE ALARM. 216/2018 Impr·L 78086·0 $8,000.00 $330.00 

22 

Alice Alvarez 2415 S. Wesley Avenue 16·30·218·006·000 Correct violations 1-3 prong outlet, 2- working R 2/6/2018 Elec·L 78087·0 $1,500.00 $140.00 
smoke detector in attic. 3- gfi outlet, kitchen 
counter and garage. 

23 

Benito Huerta 3717 S. Highland Avenue 16·32·318·026·000 RR all windows througout house (Egress where R 216/2018 Impr·L 78088·0 $6,000.00 $150.00 
needed, signed) install siding on garage and tic 
and RR garage only. Install tile in basement. 

24 

William & Marian Gerena 2232 S. Harvey Avenue 16·29·102·034·000 Plumbing Prelim to determine if ATF bmst install R 216/2018 Plum·L 78089·0 $0.00 $0.00 
done to code and/or determine violations needed 
to repair to install to code. AU work is proposed to 
be done by owner. 

25 '" __ 0_,._" •• ' __ , __ • _______ .... 

Ezequiel Holguin 2310 S. Lombard Avenue 16·29·111·024·000 first fl: RR fixtures and finishes throughout. R 217/2018 Bldg·B 8938·0 $9,600.00 $785.00 
(kitchen, bathroom, living room, dinig room, and 3 
bedrooms) including drywall, insulation, trimwork 
and doors. Attic: new framing, drywall, insulation, 
electrical, plumbing and ductwork and finishes for 
mast 

Grandview Capital, LLC 1817 S. Clarence Avenue 16·19·411·007·000 plumbing final reinspection -- REPAIR R 217/2018 Impr·L 78010·1 $0.00 $50.00 
RADIATORS IN 1ST FLOOR BEDROOM, 
KITCHEN COUNTERTOP GFCI, ALL OPEN 
LIGHT BULB TO FULLY ENCLOSED, EACH 
BEDROOM MUST HAVE 2 OUTLETS, 
EMERGENCY LIGHTS IN STAIRWELL, 
REPLACE HOT WATER TANK FLEX LINES TO 
COPPER, GARAGE OUT 

27 - .. ------------

Abida Mazin 3029 S. Euclid Avenue 16·30·416·015·000 Dumpster clean out unwanted items. R 217/2018 Dump·L 78090·0 $500.00 $50.00 
DUMPSTER MUST HAVE FLASHING 
BARRICADES. 

28 

John & Doreen Wilson 1942 S. Wisconsin Avenue 16·19·317·033·000 Install acrylic tubliner over existing tub. No valve R 217/2018 Impr·L 78091·0 $1,980.00 $90.00 
work. 

29 

Concetta Cairo 1515 S. Wenonah Avenue 16·19·127·007·000 RIR FURNACE TO CODE. R 217/2018 HVAC·L 78092·0 $3,978.00 $115.00 

30 

(Building: PermiCCounty_All) Page 3 0/19 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 124

Report Of BuildinglImprovement Permits Issued By The City Of Berwyn 
Between: 21112018 And 212812018 

Census 
Class Name and Address 

Sarah K. Lash 6955 W. Riverside Drive 

31 

Marco Salerno 3511 S. Maple Avenue 

32 

American Revival Company NF 1336 S. Clarence Avenue 

33 ...••. _ .•. _-_ .•. _ ...... _------_ ....•.... _----"--"-".". 
Juan Leyva Espinosa 6502 W. 28th Place 

34 .......•. _----_ ......... _-----_._-_ .. __ ._ •. __ .......• 
Anna Svehla 6927 W. 29th Place 

35 
Guillermna Sanchez 2115 S. Scoville Avenue 

36 
- •.•.•. ---------.--- --------_._ ---_. 
6334 Elmwood Partnership 6432-34 W. 19th Street 

37 -- ----- .-----
Saul Cabral 2420 S. Oak Park Avenue 

38 
Rebecca Sass 2410 S. Clinton Avenue 

39 
Ahmed Shabana & Lynette Sha 1807 S. Wisconsin Avenue 

40 __________________ _ 

(Building: PermiC County...A.U) 

P.I.N. # 

16-30~ 109-029-000 Install elec gate operator with dog earedstyle R 
wood 6ft fence with Iron posts. Using existing 
post holes with new Iron posts. Julie dig x0300905 

16-31-301-010-000 REINSPECTION HVAC AND BUILDING HAD TO R 
MOVE CONDENSER FOR COMPLETE REHAB 

16-19-210-038-000 REINSPECTION FOR INSULATION MAIN R 

16-30-414-013-000 

16-30-317-025-000 

16-19-429~6-000 

16-19-422-015-000 

16-30-112-051 -000 

FLOOR IATTIC-REMODEL INTERIOR- RIR 
KITCHEN AND 2 BATHROOMS, ALL NEW 
FLOORING, ALL NEW COPPER LINES AND 
VENTING, INSTALL NEW HOT WATER 
HEATER INSTALL NEW LAUNDRY SINK, NEW 
HVAC SYSTEM, INSTALL NEW ELECTRICAL 
SWITCHES AND OU 

Plubming Reinspectlon/lnspection fees: 1) 
plumbing rough, 2) stack test 3) chloroly insp 

ELECTRICAL REINSPECTION - Replace "eelrk: 
meter box, new grounding rod. 

UPGRADE SERVICE 2OOAMP-3 METER 
SOCKETS AND 1 NEW PANEL. ADD 
EMERGENCY LIGHTS IN STAIRS AND 
ADDITIONAL OUTLETS IN BEDROOMS. 
INSTALL GFIS IN GARAGE AND BATHROOMS. 
ADD CLOSET LIGHTS. 

RIR 25 WINDOWS IN THE 6 APARTMENT -
BRING WINDOWS TO EGRESS CODE 

ATF UPGRADING HOT WATER TO ON 
DEMAND SYSTEM, ENCLOSE MIDDLE 
BEDROOM LIGHT BULB. 

R 

R 

R 

R 

R 

16-30-109-017-000 UPGRADE TO 100AMP SERVICE,INSTALL 2 R 
RECEPTACLES IN BEDROOM. RUN 
UNDERGROUND POWER TO GARAGE, 
REPLACE BX IN GARAGE. OWNER WILL DO 
RECEPTACLES AND OUTLETS. 

16-19-310-003-000 R/R HOT WATER HEATER. CALL FOR FINAL 
INSPECTION. 

R 

Permit 
Issued 

2/7/2018 Impr-L 

21812018 Bldg-B 

218/2018 Bldg-B 

218/2018 Impr-L 

218/2018 Elec-L 

2/8/2018 Elec-L 

21812018 Impr-L 

21812018 Impr-L 

21812018 Elec-L 

219/2018 Plum-L 

Friday, March 02, 2018 

Cost Of Cost Of 

Permit # Improvements Permit 

78093-0 $5,100.00 $185.00 

8270-1 $0.00 $130.00 

8831-2 $0.00 $65.00 

76727-1 $0.00 $150.00 

78075-1 $0.00 $50.00 

78094-{) $6,800.00 $175.00 

78095-0 $3,750.00 $120.00 

78096-0 $2,000 .00 $140.00 

78097-0 $2,500 .00 $105.00 

78098-0 $1,500.00 $85.00 

Page 4 0/19 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 125

Report Of Building/Improvement Permits Issued By The City Of Berwyn Friday, March 02, 2018 

Between: 21112018 And 212812018 
Census Permit Cost Of Cost Of 

Name and Address P.I.N.# Class Issued Permit # Improvements Permit 

PMG Berwyn Investmenls. LLC 3200 S. Oak Park Avenue E 99·99·999-000-068 INSTALL A FIRE ALARM SYSTEM FOR BOTH 219/2018 Impr·L 78099·0 $4,900.00 $485.00 
3200 OAK PARK UNIT E AND 6801 STANLY 
UNIT C TO CODE. 

41 .--.-.-...... __ .•.•.•. _--------_._- ._------
Gerald & Carmelita Romanelli 2345 S. Grove Avenue 16-30-112-012-000 Install aaylic liner over existing bath tub, Install R 211212018 Impr-L 78100-0 $4,806.00 $185.00 

acryiic wall and ceiling accessoriess and valve. 

42 
"''''" ............. ,."- ,.,, ... 

Harold Elgazar 6823 W. Stanley Avenue 16-31-114-014-000 INSTALL NEW AWNINGS FOR HOUSE OF R 2/12/2018 Sign-L 78101 -0 $2,800.00 $40.00 
SLOTS. 

Stephen & Alexis Egert 1812 S. Home Avenue 16-19-311-025-000 DUMPSTER ON THE STREET TO REMOVE R 211212018 Dump-L 78102-0 $0.00 $50.00 
UNWANTED ITEMS DUMPSTER MUST HAVE 
FLASHING BARRICADES. 

44 -"."._"_._-_ .. -------------
Yuejiang Wang & Liging Vue 3816 S. Scoville Avenue 16-31-423-093-000 Change water heater 50 gallon R 211212018 Impr-L 78104-0 $750.00 $85.00 

45 --------------
Viwan Chavez 3127 S. Grove Avenue 16-31-107-012-000 REPLACING COIL-4TON A COIL TO FIT AD R 211312018 Elec-L 75452-1 $0.00 $50.00 

CABINET. WIRING TO NC. 

46 
~-----.-----.•. -------.--.. ----
GAF Properties 1547 S. Cuyler Avenue 16-20-124-018-000 2 UNIT WITH A COMMERCIAL SPACE, CIR 2113/2018 Impr-L 78103-0 $56,450.00 $3,810.00 

INSTALL 3 NEW FURNACES WITH 
DUCTWORK, RIR DRYWALL WHERE NEEDED, 
INSTALL EGRESS WHERE NEEDED, 
REMODEL 2 KITCHENS AND 2 BATHROOMS. 
COMMERCIAL SPACE REMODEL 1/2 
BATHROOM, RIR DRYWALL, FRAMING AND 
INSULATE, REINSTALL 2 STOREFRO 

47 
JOCI1846LLC 1846 S. Oak Park Avenue 16-19-315-041-000 (Replace 11 light fixtures, 8 GFCI outlets, Install R 2113/2018 Elec-L 78105-0 $1,855.00 $190.00 

4 emergency lights. Install four emergency lights 
and new wiring on stairway. Install single 
grounded receptacle for garaga door opener. 
GCFI receptacles in kitchen 2nd fl. and kitchen 
1st fl. Laundl)l r 

48 -
JimZourdis 6969 W. Ogden Avenue B 99-99-999-000-061 RlR ROOT TOP UNITS 4 TON. 211312018 HVAC-L 78106-0 $4,500.00 $225.00 

49 

(Building: Permit_County..All) PageS 0/19 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 126

Report Of BuildinglImprovement Permits Issued By The City Of Berwyn 

Name and Address 

Angelica Guardado 

50 

Paul Menichini 

Enanuvie Ewharekuko 

Scentrix, LLC 

53 

Anna Svehla 

54 

Michelle Garcia 

55 

ZaNate Properties 

56 

Be Wise Ho/ding, LLc 

57 

(Building: PermiCCounty_All) 

Between: 2/1/2018 And 2/28/2018 
Census 
Class 

Permit 
Issued 

2343 S. East Avenue 

1332 S. Euclid Avenue 

1521 S. Grove Avenue 

1540 S. Kenilworth Avenue 

6927 W. 29th Place 

1811 S. Grove Avenue 

1845 S. Clarence Avenue 

2726 S. East Avenue 

P.I.N.# 

16-30-212-015-000 COMPLIANCE VIOLATION -- ATF FOR R 2113/2018 Impr-L 
KITCHEN REMODEL. TWO PRONG 
ELECTRICAL OUTLETS AT MAIN LEVEL FIRE 
PLACE TO BE CONVERTED TO A THREE 
PRONG GROUNDED TYPE OUTLETS, 
SEVERAL OUTLETS/RECEPTACLES MISSING 
COVER-PLATES AS NEEDED. DE-CONVERT 
PLUMBING IN BASEMENT REAR 

16-19-208-035-000 CORRECT GARAGE VIOLATIONS - GFI 
OUTLET IN BATHROOM - NEW 100 AMP 
METER, RISER, SUPPLEMENTAL GROUND 
AND GROUND ROD 

16-19-131-011-000 *********************** READ NOTES DATE 
3/1/2018************************** A TF (PREVI DUS 
CONTRACTOR) RIR 3 BOILERS AND 
INSTALLED 2 FURNACES(FURNACES ARE 
BEING USED TO HELP THE MC UNITS) --A 
WAITS 9-0 DOUBLE CHECK VALVE IS 
ACCEPTABLE ON SINGLE FAMILY 

16-19-129-038-000 ROUGH HVAC INSPECTION 

R 2113/2018 Elec-L 

R 2/14/2018 Bldg-B 

R 2114/2018 Irnpr-L 

16-30-317-025-000 ELECTRICAL REINSPECTION - Replace electric R 2114/2018 Elec-L 
meter box, new grounding rod. 

16-19-315-005-000 POD ON THE STREET DUMPSTERSIPODS 
REQUIRE A FLASHING BARRICADE ON THE 
SIDE OF INCOMMING TRAFFIC. 

16-19-411-019-000 INSTALLATION 29 STORM WINDOWS. 

R 2114/2018 PODol 

R 2114/2018 Irnpr-L 

16-30-409-031-000 2ND FLOOR ADDITION AND INTERIOR R 2115/2018 Bldg-B 
REMOLDING. 1ST FLOOR ADD 1/2 
BATHROOM, REMODEL KITCHEN ABO 
EXISTING FULL BATHROOM, LIVING/DING 
ROOM AND LAUNDRY, 2ND FLOOR WILL 
HAVE 3 BEDROOMS AND FULL BATHROOM, 
BASEMENT IS CRAWL SPACE WITH 
MECHANICAL ROOM AND SINK. BOlLE 

Friday, March 02, 2018 

Cost Of Cost Of 

Permit # Improvements Permit 

78107-0 $4,000.00 $270.00 

78108-0 $1,000.00 $125.00 

8941-0 $0.00 $1,295.00 

77457-1 $0.00 $65.00 

78075-2 $0.00 $50.00 

78109-0 $0.00 $50.00 

78110-0 $9,686.00 $160.00 

8942-0 $60,000.00 $3,110.00 

Page 60/19 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 127

Report Of BuildinglImprovement Permits Issued By The City Of Berwyn 
Between: 2/1/2018 And 2/28/2018 

Census 
Class 

Permit 
Issued Name and Address P.l.N. # 

Juan Leyva Espinosa 6502 W. 28th Place 16~30-414-013-000 RR existing heater. Install new replace attic/back R 2/15/2018 Impr-L 
porch rolling with 42" high railing, remove existing 
windows and replace with new windows, remove 
all outlets and install new throughout the house 
bring bathroom door frame up to code replace 
door, instal 

58 

Cibrook Ltd 2416 S. Harvey Avenue 16-29-118-025-000 ELECTRICAL ROUGH REINSPECTION add R 2115/2018 Impr-L 
outlet back of house/smoke change to fan rated 
box 

GRO PRO ENTERPRISES LL 1341 S. Wesley Avenue 16-19-210-019-000 INTERIOR DEMO OF WALL PANELING, R 2/15/2018 Impr-L 
FLOORING AND TILES, CARPETING AND 
UNWANTED ITEMS - NO STRUCTURAL 
DEMO - DUMPSTERS/PODS REQUIRE A 
FLASHING BARRICADE ON THE SIDE OF 
INCOMMING TRAFFIC. 

JOCII846LLC 1846 S. Oak Park Avenue 16-19-315-041-000 RIR BOILER WITH RPZ INSTALL R 2115/2018 Plum-L 

kathleen Morado 1424 S. East Avenue 16-19-219-032-000 INTERIOR DEMO TO THE STUDS WHERE R 2115/2018 Impr-L 
NEEDED - DEMO KITCHENS AND 
BATHROOMS --- NO STRUCTURAL DEMO 
DUMPSTERS/PODS REQUIRE A FLASHING 
BARRICADE ON THE SIDE OF INCOMMING 
TRAFFIC. 

GERARDO & SILVIA MARTIN 3729 S. Elmwood Avenue 16-31-419-118-000 REINSPECTION OF INSULATION --- Building R 2/16/2018 Bldg-B 
family room, bathroom office space on basement. 
Frame water meter room. Frame laundry room 
(existing) create walls. Frame out family room, 
insulate, drywall 12x10, family room area has 
existing heat vent. Office ro 

63 

MG Holdings LLC 3639 S. Euclid Avenue 16-31-401-028-000 ADD BATHROOM IN BASEMENT. R 2116/2018 Bldg-B 

1310 Kenilworth Inc. 1310 S. Kenilworth Avenue 16-19-113-025-000 CONSTRUCT A NEW SINGLE FAMILY HOME, R 2116/2018 Bldg-B 
INSTALL A NEW 1 1/2 WATER SERVICE. 
CONSTRUCTION A NEW SINGLE FAMILY 
HOME. INSTALL A 1 1/2" NEW WATER 
SERVICE. TO INCLUDE 5 BEDROOMS AND 3 
1/2 BATHROOMS, BASEMENT WIL BE 
FINISHED WITH A RECREATIONS ROOM, 
LAUNDRY/MECHANI 

65 
----------------- - - ----------------------

(Building: PermiCCounty_All) 

Friday, March 02, 2018 

Cost OJ Cost OJ 
Permit # Improvements Permit 

76727-2 $0.00 $50.00 

77867-1 $0.00 $50.00 

78111-0 $500.00 $90.00 

78112-0 $5,100.00 $250.00 

78113-0 $200.00 $90.00 

8928-1 $0.00 $65.00 

8930-1 $4,400.00 $285.00 

8939-0 $220,000.00 $7,555.00 

Page 70/19 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 128

Report Of Building/Improvement Permits Issued By The City Of Berwyn Friday, March 02, 2018 

Between: 21112018 And 212812018 
Census Permit Cost Of Cost Of 

Name and Address P.I.N.# Class Issued Permit # Improvements Permit 

1310 Kenilworth Inc. 1308 S, Kenilworth Avenue 16·19·113'()24'()00 CONSTRUCTION A NEW SINGLE FAMILY R 211612018 Bldg·B 8940·0 $220,000.00 $7,555.00 
HOME. INSTALL A 1 112" NEW WATER 
SERVICE. TO INCLUDE 5 BEDROOMS AND 3 
112 BATHROOMS, BASEMENT WIL BE 
FINISHED WITH A RECREATIONS ROOM, 
LAUNDRY/MECHANICAL ROOM, 2 
BEDROOMS AND A BATHROOM. AlC 
CONDENSERS MUST BE LOCATED BE 

66 ...... .... __ ....... _._--_.--.--_ .. _. __ .... 
JAMES A MORRONE 6723 W. Riverside Drive 16·30·200·039·000 INTERIOR REMODEL .. 1ST FLOOR WILL R 2116/2018 Bldg·B 8943·0 $43,000.00 $2,555.00 

REMODEL THE KITCHEN AND FULL 
BATHROOM, LIVING ROOM AND DINING 
ROOM. 2ND FLOOR REMODEL THE FULL 
BATHROOM AND 4 EXISTING BEDROOMS. 
BASEMENT INSTALL A NEW BATHROOM IN 
THE BASEMENT, LAUNDRY ROOM, 
MECHANICAL ROOM AND RECREATI 

67 _.------_.-
Krystof Zadora 1438 S. Kenitworth Avenue 16·19·121·032'()00 NEW SINGLE FAMILY HOME WITH 2 CAR R 211612018 Bldg·B 8944·0 $190,000.00 $6,840.00 

GARAGE. WILL INCLUDE 4 BEDROOMS AND 
3.5 BATHROOMS. WILL INSTALL 1 1/2" 
WATER SERVICE AND WATER METER. AlC 
CONDENSERS MUST BE LOCATED BEHIND 
THE HOUSE 3' FROM PROPERTY LOT LINE 
AND ELECTRICAL METER. MUST HARDWIRE 
SMOKE A 

-~~-
Robert Dziedzic 6412 W. 27th Street 16-30·410-023-000 ELECTRICAL ROUGH REINSPECTION FOR CIR 211612018 Impr·L 75031·1 $0.00 $150.00 

INSTALL A FIRE ALARM SYSTEM TO CODE IN 
THE 3 UNITS. 

69 
CCUT Reaffy LLC 3518 S. Clinton Avenue 16-31·305·002-000 PRELIMINARY PLUMBING, ELECTRIC AND R 211612018 Impr·L 78114·0 $0.00 $165.00 

FRAMING INSPECTION OF ATF WORK· 
KITCHEN REMODEL, BASEMENT REMODEL, 
NEW BASEMENT BATHROOM, 2NO FLOOR 
BATHROOM REMODEL AND RECESSED 
LIGHTING. 

2L ........ _ 
OscarPena 1836 S. Home Avenue 16·19·311-035-000 INSTALL RISER AND EMERGENCY LIGHTING R 2116/2018 Impr·L 78115·0 $1,575.00 $140.00 

IN STAIRWELL, INSTALL EGRESS WINDOW IN 
BASEMENT. CALL FOR FINAL INSPECTION. 

71 
JOSHUA FIZER 2329 S. Scoville Avenue 16-3()'213-01 Q.()OO POD FOR DELIVERY OF ITEMS R 211612018 PODol 78116-0 $0.00 $0.00 

(Bllilding: Permit_County_AU) Page8ofl9 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 129

Report Of Building/Improvement Permits Issued By The City Of Berwyn Friday, March 02, 2018 

Between: 21112018 And 212812018 
Census Permit Cost Of Cost Of 

Name and Address P.I.N. # Closs Issued Permit # Improvements Permit 

Bianca Roldan 3725 S. Home Avenue 16·31·320·011·000 plumbing final reinspection ---INSTALL A R 2/20/2018 Bldg-B 8642-2 $0.00 $50.00 
BATHROOM IN THE BASEMENT, REMOVE 
EXCISING GALVANIZED PIPING AND 
REPLACE WITH COPPER PIPE THROUGH 
OUT THE HOUSE---. ALSO INSTALL NEW 
ELECTRIC IN THE BASEMENT AND ATTIC-
INCLUDING 36 RECESSED LIGHT CANS, 40 
OUTL 

American Revival Company 3806 S. Elmwood Avenue 16-31-424-097-000 PLUMBING UNDERGROUND FEE R 2120/2018 Impr-L 75906-1 $0.00 $50.00 

Efren Lopez & Angelina Carrer 2534 S. Cuyler Avenue 16-29-124-020-000 electrical final reinspection - FINISH THE R 2120/2018 Impr-L 77186-4 $0.00 $50.00 
BASEMENT TO INCLUDE 2 STORAGE 
ROOMS, FURNACE ROOM, LAUNDRY ROOM 
AND RECREATIONAL AREA. EGRESS 
WINDOWS WERE INSTALL ON PERMIT L-
74363-0. INSTALL FRAMING, INSULATION 
AND DRYWALL TO CODE. INSTALL LIGHT 
FIXTURES, GFC 

Joseph & Melissa Allen 6848 W. 26th Street 16-30-305-038-000 PRELIMINARY STRUCTURAL INSPECTION OF R 2120/2018 Impr-L 78117-0 $0.00 $65.00 
BASEMENT FROM CAR IMPACT-
STRUCTURAL BEAM BROKEN. 

Rudy & Rosario Bernal 6534 W. Sinclair Avenue 16-31-227-007-000 REPAIR PLASTER WALLS, REMOVE R 2120/2018 Impr-L 78118-0 $2,000.00 $90.00 
DRYWALL THAT HAS MOLD, REPAIR AND 
REBUILD BASEMENT WINDOW OPENING (FIX 
FRAMING AROUND WINDOWS). CALL FOR 
FINAL INSPECTION. 

77 

Lea Eva Lopez 6402 W. 33rd Street 16-31-226-018-000 R/R EXISTING VINYL FENCE AT CORNER OF R 2120/2018 Fence-L 78119-0 $2,000.00 $50.00 
PROPERTY WITH 6' WOOD/IRON. JULIE DIG # 
X0511114 

78 

6822 Windsor, LLC 6822-36 W. Windsor Avenue 16-31-126-005-000 MINOR INTERIOR DEMO FOR FUTURE CAPRI C 2120/2018 Impr-L 78120-0 $20,000.00 $180.00 
DUE, PAINT AND NEW KITCHEN EQUIPMENT. 
CALL FIRE DEPARTMENT FOR PRELIMINARY 
FIRE DEPARTMENT INSPECTION. 

79 ----.-----_._.-_._.-----
Nicolas Pantoja 1927 S. Cuyler Avenue 16-20-322-010-000 INSTALL EGRESS IN BASEMENT. CALL FOR R 2/20/2018 Impr-L 78121-0 $300.00 $90.00 

FINAL INSPECTION. 

80 ------- .... ---
Alexander Vega 1300 S. Elmwood Avenue 16-19-214-021-000 INSTALL EGRESS WINDOW IN BSMT R 2/20/2018 Impr-L 78122-0 $250.00 $40.00 

81 

(Building: PermiCCounty_All) Page90fl9 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 130

Report Of BuildinglImprovement Permits Issued By The City Of Berwyn Friday, March 02, 2018 

Between: 211/2018 And 212812018 
Census Permit Cost Of Cost Of 

Name and Address P.l .N.# Class Issued Permit # Improvements Permit 

Athi Ani/hongs. 6406 W. Windsor Avenue 16-31·211.()23-0oo TEAR OFF AND REROOF HOUSE ONLY - R 2120/2018 RooR 78123-0 $5.493.00 $140.00 
REPLACE GUTTERS 

82 
- •. -~-- •.•. _-------,---
Elmwood GrouP. LLC 1241 S. Harvey Avenue 16-20-103-023-000 NEW DORMER TO INCLUDE 3 BEDROOMS R 2121 /2018 Bldg-B 8946-0 $0.00 $3,740.00 

AND 2 NEW BATHROOMS. RlR KITCHEN AND 
EXISTING BATHROOM ON 1ST FLOOR, 
PAINT, DRYWALL AS NEEDED, BASEMENT 
TO REMAIN UNFINISHED, BOILERS TO 
FORCED AIR. UPGRADE WATER SERVICE 
AND WATER METER TO 1". INSTALL NEW 
REAR STAIRS. ALL 

Gabriela Olaz & Frank A. Picchi 1324 S. East Avenue 16-19-211-01 0-000 INTERIOR DEMO TO REMOVE ALL DEBRIS, R 2121/2018 Dump-L 78124-0 $500.00 $90.00 
REMOVE DROP CEILING, REMOVE PANELS, 
KITCHEN CABINETS, CARPETING, 
FLOORING, SHELVING AND ANY DEBR IS IN 
GARAGE. CALL FOR FINAL INSPECTION. 
DUMPSTERSIPODS REQUIRE A FLASHING 
BARRICADE ON THE SIDE OF INCOMMING 
TRAFFIC. 

84 -------_ •.. -.~---~---
Ian & Brianne Sprayer 2121 S. Home Avenue 16-19-328-008-000 Upgrade water ground and install ground rod, 200 R 2121 /2018 Elec-L 78125-0 $2,825.00 $125.00 

amp main breaker 40 circuit electric distribution 
panel. Install new circuit breakers, RR existing 
elec meter fitting, riser, and service entrance 
conductors. 

85 

Jaime Antillon 1319 S. Clinton Avenue 16-19-113-007-000 Bmst window must have an egress window R 2/21/2018 Impr-L 78126-0 $1 ,900.00 $190.00 
installed to cocIe for emergency escape. (egress 
signed). Attic bedroom (rear room) must have 
egress. Attic bedroom and family room must 
have controllable permenant heat source 
installed to code. ELIECTRIC BASE BOARD H 

86 
---.~.---.--

Sadanka. & Sarah Kalan 6546 W. 27th Place 16-30-411-002-000 RR 10 windows. no size changes (egress R 212112018 Impr-L 78128'() $7,740.21 $180.00 
signed). Front room, master bedroom, living 
room, front bedroom and play room. 

87 -_ .. _-_._ .. 
Michael T. Mlynarski 1822 S. Wenonah Avenue 16-19-310-031'()00 RR 40 Galloo Water Heater R 2121 /2018 Plum-L 78129-0 $0.00 $85.00 

88 
~.-.-.---.. -.-
Antonio Calles 6725 W. Ogden Avenue 16-31-231-056-000 INSTALL CHANNEL LETTERING FOR AMIGO C 2121/2018 Sign-L 78130-0 $4,000.00 $355.00 

INSURANCE-ELECTRICAL ALREADY EXISTS. 

(Building: Permit_CountJ.flIl) Page 100/19 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 131

Report Of Building/Improvement Permits Issued By The City Of Berwyn Friday, March 02, 2018 

Between: 2/112018 And 2/28/2018 
Census Permit Cost Of Cost Of 

Name and Address P.I.N.# Class Issued Permit # Improvements Permit 

Jose Coronado 3607 S. Harvey Avenue 16·32·311-024-000 CHANGE KITCHEN CABINETS. REPAIR R 212112018 Impr-L 78131-0 $3,000.00 $350.00 
KITCHEN TO CODE, MICROWAVE OUTLET, 
EXHAUST FAN, 3WAY DISHWASHER SWITCH, 
220 ELECTRICAL STORE 7 CIRCUITS, 
ELIMINATE WALL IN KITCHEN TO ENLARGE-
NON LOAD BEARING PER OWNER. 
ELIMINATE EXISTING LIVING ROOM CLOSET 
TO ENCLOSE COMP 

90 .-.--._ .. _-.. __ .•. __ ._-"---------_ .. 
Rosalba Barrios 3843 S. Home Avenue 16-31-328-030-000 North window 2nd fl install casement. Egress R 2121/2018 Impr-L 78132-0 $670.00 $90.00 

signed 

91 
Joaquin & Victor Carrera 1603 S. Clarence Avenue 16-19-403-044-000 TIO AND RESHINGLE HOUSE ROOF, RIR R 2121/2018 Roof-L 78133-0 $7.000.00 $190.00 

GUTTER AND DOWNSPOUTS. 
DOWNSPOUTS MUST DISBURSE ONTO 
PRIVATE PROPERTY. 

92 
Rafael Gtanato 3510 S. Harvey Avenue 16-32-302-029'()00 TlO AND RESHINGLE HOUSE ROOF. CALL R 2121/2018 Roof-L 78134-0 $7,500.00 $205.00 

FOR FINAL INSPECTION. 

93 
JAMES MORRONE 3702 S. Highland Avenue 16-32-317-010-000 DEMO ONLY: 1 bath(lst fl), k~chen cabinets, R 2121/2018 Impr-L 78135-0 $450.00 $0.00 

any trim rotten. All 1st floor damaged wallsnrim. 
to studs. 

94 
Diaz Brothers Remodeling Co 3135 S. Harvey Avenue 16-32-109-001-000 PLUMBING FEES ONLY: PLUMBING R 212212018 Bldg-B 8732-1 $0.00 $150.00 

UBNDERGROUND PVC HEADING INSP. 
PLUMBING UNDERGROUND PVC HEAD TEST. 
GAS PRESSURE TEST. 

95 
Prosperous Connections LLC 6437 W. 26th Street 16-30-230-028-000 BUILD NEW GARAGE 20X20 14' HEIGHT. R 212212018 Gar-B 8947-0 $11,000.00 $330.00 

JULIE DIG A0530988 

96 
Prosperous Connections LLc 3208 S. Clinton Avenue 16-31-112-011-000 BUILD NEW GARAGE 2OX20 14' HEIGHT. R 212212018 Gar-B 8948'() $11,000.00 $330.00 

JULIE DIG A0530994 

97 
Chicago Title Land Trust Camp 3803 S. oak Park Avenue 16-31-420-002-000 REMODEL EXISTING KITCHEN, DINING AND R 212212018 Impr-L 78127'() $48,000.00 $1,405.00 

POWDER ROOM ALL EXISTING, RlR 
CABINETS, COUNTERTOPS, DRYWALL, 
FRAMING, INSULATION, VANITY, SINK AND 
TOILET. UPGRADE TO 200AMP SERVICE. 
BRING ALL PLUMBING AND ELECTRIC TO 
CODE. 

98 

(Building: PermiCCounty..All) Page 11 of 19 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 132

Report Of Building/Improvement Permits Issued By The City Of Berwyn 
Between: 2/112018 And 2/2812018 

Census 
Class 

Permit 
Issued Name and Address 

AA Real Estate Properties LLC 2626 S. Harvey Avenue 

BERWYN3 MANAGEMENT PR 6924 W. Cermak Road 

100 

Guy, Mary Ann Papa • Josephi 6538 W. 26th Street 

Jeanette Nava 3723 S. Home Avenue 

102 . .. . , ... •.• ,---" --, .. - .. _-
VANYA HAJNAS 2416 S. Grove Avenue 

.1 g~ __ ............... ___ .. _ .... ______ _ _ ...... ____ .... . 
Spartan Exchange LLc 3629 S. Oak Park Avenue 

1.Q<I.. . . ..... _ .. _ ........ ____ _ . _____ .......... __ ....... . 
Austin & Kelly Knierim 7027 W. 26th Place 

_1.9_~ ______________ _ __ _ 
335 Circle Partnership 2122 S. Ridgetand Avenue 

lQ§. .... __ ._ .... _. 
109 Property Series LLC 1852 1852 S. Gunderson Avenue 

107 - --_._',------------
Kevin & Susan Gray 3417 S. Maple Avenue 

108. _ ___ _____ _ 

(Building: PermiCCounty_All) 

P.I.N.# 

16-29~302-029-000 Install new roof. TIC and RR, ice and water 
shield, felt, flashing, to code. 

99-99-999-999·03() INSTALL FIRE ALARM FOR BOOST MOBILE. 

R 212212018 Roof-L 

C 212212018 Impr·L 

16-30-404-090-000 RIR WEST SIDE GUTTER AND DOWNSPOUT- R 212212018 Impr-L 
DUE TO ICE DAMAGE. DOWNSPOUTS MUST 
DISBURSE ONTO PRIVATE PROPERTY. 

16-31-320-010-000 ATF PERMIT FOR BATHROOM REMODEL BY R 212212018 Impr-L 
PREVIOUS OWNER, INSTALL NEW ELECTRIC 
IN ATTIC. UPGRADE WATER METER FROM 
518 TO 3/4" CALL WATER DEPARTMENT FOR 
WATER METER UPGRADE - 788-2660 EXT 
6463. 

16-30-111-027-000 replacing meter box R 212212018 Elec-L 

16-31-400-019-000 ALL CLOSET LIGHTS TO BE COMPLETELY R 212212018 Impr-L 
ENCLOSED LAMPS, GFI OUTLETS ALONG 
KITCHEN COUNTER, BATHROOMS, LAUNDRY 
AND GARAGE, REMOVE OUTLET CORD IN 
BASEMENT STORAGE RooM,UPGRADE 
ELECTRICAL SERVICE TO CODE AND 
CHANGE METER SOCKET, DECONVERT 
BASEMENT BATHROOM, REPA 

16-30-301-029-000 GRIND AND TUCKPOINT CHIMNEY R 2123/2018 Impr-L 

16-19-431-017-000 2 UNIT REHAB - REMODEL THE KITCHEN R 212312018 Impr-L 
AND BATHROOM TO CODE. INSTALL WASTE 
AND VENT FOR 1 LAUNDRY SINK IN THE 
BASEMENT, INSTALL COPPER WATER PIPES 
FROM THE METER TO ALL FIXTURES, 
INSTALL 2 WATER HEATERS IN THE 
BASEMENT. 

16-19-413-037-000 UNIT # 9 - REMODEL THE KITCHEN AND 
BATHROOM TO CODE. 

16-31-129-010-000 INSTALL A CLEAN OUT ON PRIVATE 
PROPERTY NEXT TO GARAGE 

R 212312018 Impr-L 

R 2123/2018 Plum-L 

Friday, March 02, 2018 

Cost Of Cost Of 

Permit # Improvements Permit 

78136-0 $2,800.00 $125.00 

78137-0 $3,950.00 $270.00 

78138-0 $1,250.00 $40.00 

78139-0 $1 ,000.00 $675.00 

78140-0 $500.00 $90.00 

78142-0 $1,500.00 $340.00 

78143-0 $1 ,395.00 $40.00 

78144-0 $19,000.00 $722.50 

78145-0 $5,500.00 $200.00 

78146-0 $6,880.00 $165.00 

Page 120/19 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 133

Report Of Building/Improvement Permits Issued By The City Of Berwyn Friday, March 02, 2018 

Between: 2/112018 And 2/2812018 
Census Permit Cost Of Cost Of 

Name and Address P.l.N. # Class Issued Permit # Improvements Permit 

Ann Nowak & Benjamin Frinfro 2332 S. Clinton Avenue 16·30·105·032·000 ADDING A POWER VENT TO EXISTING R 2/23/2018 HVAC·L 78147·0 $2,000.00 $65.00 
FURNACE AND WATER HEATER THROUGH 
SIDE WALL OF EXISTING HOME. 

109 
-------

Mary L. Hahn Trustee 3224 S. Home Avenue 16-31-111-022-000 REMODEL THE KITCHEN - R/R CABINETS, R 2123/2018 Impr-L 78148·0 $18,560.00 $497.50 
COUNTERTOP, APPLIANCES AND INSTALL 
NEW EXHAUST FAN.· DISHWASHER NEEDS 
SEPARATE CIRCUIT. DUMPSTERS/PODS 
REQUIRE A FLASHING BARRICADE ON THE 
SIDE OF INCOMMING TRAFFIC. 

Daniel Ava/os Jr 2544 S. Oak Park Avenue 16-30-117-035-000 NEW 1 1/2 WATER SERVICE INSTALL WITH A R 2/23/2018 Plum-L 78149-0 $12,800.00 $2,205.00 
1" WATER METER. CALL WATER 
DEPARTMENT FOR WATER METER 
UPGRADE· 788·2660 EXT 6463. 

11 

Oscar & Leticia Tapia 2437 S. Wesley Avenue 16-30-218-014-000 REPAIR A SECTION OF MOD BIT ON THE R 2123/2018 Roof-L 78150·0 $400.00 $50.00 
FLAT ROOF SECTION OF THE HOUSE. 

12 

Mathew Zurek 3234 S. Highland Avenue 16-32-112-037-000 TlO AND RESHINGLE HOUSE ROOF, REPAIR R 2123/2018 Roof-L 78151-0 $5,700.00 $140.00 
REAR SOFFIT. CALL FOR FINAL INSPECTION 

113 

Breaking Ground Inc 1510 S. Lombard Avenue 16-20-126-025·000 MITIGATION OF MOLD IN THE BASEMENT R 2123/2018 Impr·L 78152·0 $5,600.00 $165.00 
HEPA VACUUM INSTALL DEHUMIDIFIERS 
AND AIR SCRUBBERS, HAND CLEAN ALL 
WOODEN FRAMING AND WALLS/FLOORS, 
INTERIOR DEMO TO INCLUDE REMOVE 
TILES, CARPET AND FLOORING, ALL 
FIXTURES ALL BASEMENT INT WALLS AND 
FINISHES, REMOVE 2 

Breaking Ground Inc 3833 S. Home Avenue 16·31·328-036-000 MITIGATION OF MOLD IN THE BASEMENT R 2123/2018 Impr-L 78153-0 $6,456.00 $180.00 
HEPA VACUUM INSTALL DEHUMIDIFIERS 
AND AIR SCRUBBERS, HAND CLEAN ALL 
WOODEN FRAMING AND WALLS/FLOORS, 
INTERIOR DEMO TO INCLUDE REMOVE 
TILES, CARPET AND FLOORING, ALL 
FIXTURES ALL BASEMENT INT WALLS AND 
FINISHES, REMOVE 2 

(Building: PermiLCounty_All) Page 13 0/19 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 134

Report Of BuildinglImprovement Permits Issued By The City Of Berwyn 
Between: 2/112018 And 2/2812018 

Census 
Class 

Permit 
Issued Name and Address P.I.N.# 

Estefani Leyva 1834 S. East Avenue 16-19-411-034-000 DECONVERT THE BASEMENT THAT WAS R 2/23/2018 Impr-L 
INSTALLED WITH OUT A PERMIT. ATF FOR 
FURNACE INSTALL. INSTALL EGRESS 
WINDOW IN 2ND FLOOR BEDROOM TO 
CODE, ANY OPEN BULB LIGHTS IN PANTRY, 
STORAGE ROOMS AND BASEMENT CEILING 
MIST BE MADE FULLY ENCLOSED BULB 
FIXTURES. MAIN LE 

Black Square Midwest 2648 S. Harvey Avenue 16-29-302-037-000 INSTALL NEW OVERHEAD DOOR, SERVICE R 2/23/2018 Impr-L 
DOOR, SIDE WINDOWS AND REPAIR SIDING, 
SKIM COAT GARAGE FLOOR AND PAINT, RIR 
GUTIER AND DOWNSPOUTS, PAINT 
EXTERIOR, INSTALL WINDOWS, FINISH 
HARDWOOD FLOORS, INSTALL NEW LIGHT 
FIXTURES, INSTALL TILE ON STAIRS TO 
BASEMENT A 

Sourbis Brothers Management 3838 S. Ridgeland Avenue 16-31-424-124-000 ATF FOR BASEMENT BATHROOM-PLUMBING R 2/26/2018 Bldg-B 
ALREADY PASSED ON PRELIMINARY. 

Kevin & Sabrina Johnson 3108 S. Home Avenue 16-31-103-016-000 REMODEL THE BASEMENT TO INCLUDE A R 2126/2018 Bldg-B 
NEW BATHROOM AND OPEN RECREATIONAL 
SPACE - WITH WINDOWS TO EGRESS CODE, 
INSTALL A SUMP PUMP SYSTEM. WILL 
INSTALL HEAT LAMP. 

119 
ADOLFO MELENDEZ 1308 S. Gunderson Avenue 16-19-213-029-000 ATF PERMIT FOR REMODEL ENTIRE R 2126/2018 Bldg-B 

BASEMENT AND INSTALL A BATHROOM BY 
PREVIOUS OWNER. REMOVE BASEMENT 
PANELING AND INSTALL DRYWALL. INSTALL 
EGRESS WINDOW IN BEDROOMS, INSTALL 
HOT WATER TANK. REPAIR AS NEEDED 
LOOSE FLOOR BOARDS AND TREADS ON 
FRONT PORCH. CLOSE 

120 

Merriment Homes Inc. 2834 S. Harvey Avenue 16-29-318-035-000 1. Update light bulbs to fully enclose. 2. GFCI R 2126/2018 Impr-L 
outlets 3. Install egress windows in each 
bedroom per code (egress signed). 4. install 
handrails 5. install smoke/co2 detectors. 6. 
Upgrade water meter box to code. 8. Patch trip 
hazards in concrete. CALL W 

RutiNo Ahumadar 2447 S. Cuyler Avenue 16-29-117-018-000 JOB STOP --INSTALL A HANDICAP RAMP IN R 2126/2018 Impr-L 
THE FRONT YARD ON PRIVATE PROPERTY 
TO CODE. 

122 

(Building: PermiCCounty_AU) 

Friday, Marcil 02, 2018 

Cost Of Cost Of 

Permit # Improvements Permit 

78154-0 $2.890.00 $385.00 

78155-0 $37,000.00 $382.50 

8949-0 $0.00 $535.00 

8950-0 $22,550.00 $930.00 

8951-0 $1,500.00 $200.00 

78141-0 $8,000.00 $455.00 

78156-0 $1,500.00 $0.00 

Page 140/19 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 135

Report Of BuildinglImprovement Permits Issued By The City Of Berwyn Friday, March 02, 2018 

Between: 21112018 And 212812018 
Census Permit Cost Of Cost Of 

Name and Address P.I.N. # Class Issued Permit # Improvements Permit 

David Bonk 3441 S. Wenonah Avenue 16·31-131-014-000 RIR FURNACE IN THE BASEMENT - USING R 2/26/2018 HVAC-L 78157-0 $6,300.00 $115.00 
EXISTING CHIMNEY LINER. 

123 - -----,._-_._,,-----_._---------
Dennis Potamianos 2424 S. Kenilworth Aveoue 16-3()-11 ()-019-o00 COMPLIANCE VIOLATION - BRING ALL R 212612018 Impr-L 78158-0 $1,500.00 $385.00 

ELECTRICAL CODE VIOLATIONS TO CODE. 
METAL RAILINGS AT STAIRS TO 2ND LEVEL 
TO BE FIRMLY ATTACHED, SECOND FLOOR 
BATHROOM MUST HAVE AN EXHAUST FAN 
SYSTEM INSTALLED. BASEMENT KITCHEN 
MUST BE COMPLETELY DECONVERTED -
ALL PLUMB I 

124 --- ---, .. ------
J0S8 Castaneda & Ssgrario Biu 3614 S. Clarence Avenue 16-31-410-076-000 TID AND RESHINGLE HOUSE AND GARAGE R 212612018 Roaf-L 78159-0 $5,000.00 $150.00 

ROOF. CALL FOR FINAL INSPECTION 

_1.2.5 __ .. ___ . __________ __ . ____ 

Soumis Brothers Management 3838 S. Ridgeland Avenue 16-31-424-124-000 1 ST FLOOR REPAIR SINK DRAIN AND VENTS R 2126/2018 Impr-L 78161l-0 $7,000.00 $360.00 
FOR KITCHEN, INSTALL IN 2ND FLOOR APT 
FURNACE WITH NEW DUCTWORK, REPAIR 
MAIN BUILDING GUTTER (SOUTHSIDE), 
REMOVE GARAGE GUTTERS AND FLASH. 

126 

Hector Garcia 3614 S. Ridgeland Avenue 16-31-414-026-000 ADDITIONAL INSPECTION AND R 2127/2018 Bldg-B 8702-1 $0.00 $370.00 
REINSPECTION FEES 

127 

DBS Development LLC 1433 S. Highland Avenue 16-20-117-014-000 elec rough reinspection fee R 2127/2018 Bldg-B 8876-1 $0.00 $50.00 

128 .' ' ." ' '''''''''''''-'''"- ' ' ' ' ' - - -,------- ,-_._----_ .... _ .. _-
Maricela Guzman 2307 S. Ridgeland Avenue 16-29-108-004-000 Install new central air, new fumance 96% eft. R 2127/2018 Bldg-B 8952-0 $5,500.00 $345.00 

80,000 STUs, new case coli 3 tons, new 
condenser 3 tons. AlC CONDENSERS MUST 
BE LOCATED BEHIND THE HOUSE 3' FROM 
PROPERTY LOT LINE AND ELECTRICAL 
METER. 

129 .-.......•.•.•.•. _--_._-_ .. _-_. 
Maria Rodriguez 6743 W. 31st Street 16-30-415-039-000 Sewer repair in alley. Julie dig #: x0530860 2127/2018 Plum-L 78161-0 $6,500.00 $290.00 

130 ............................................. . ...•....•.• _ .•.•.•.•.•.... 
PMG Berwyn Investments, LLC 3200 S. Oak Park Avenue E 99-99-999-000-068 INSTALL FIR SPRINKLER SYSTEM FOR 300 2127/2018 Impr-L 78162-0 $5,100.00 $500.00 

OAK PARK SUITE E AND 6801 STANLEY UNIT 
C. CALL FOR INSPECTIONS. 

131 

Araceli & JessicaDiaz 3521 S. Grove Avenue 1 &-31-307-006-000 Located broken sewer pipe in front yard dig, R 2127/2018 Plum·L 78163-0 $3,500.00 $120.00 
clean out. Julie dig# x0572208 

132 ...............•....•.•.• _ .•. __ ._---_. __ . --......•. -.-•.. -
2017-1 IH Borrower L.P 1302 S. Elmwood Avenue 16-19-214-022-000 RIR 2 LIVING ROOM WINDOWS R 2/27/2018 Impr-L 78164-0 $653.00 $40.00 

133 -------

(Building: PermieCounty_AU) Page 15 of 19 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 136

Report Of BuildinglImprovement Permits Issued By The City Of Berwyn 
Between: 211/2018 And 212812018 

Census 
Class 

Permit 
Issued Name and Address 

BREAKING GROUND INC 3525 S. Scoville Avenue 

134 

Rubi Rogers 3034 S. East Avenue 

Jean Meko 3637 S. Maple Avenue 

Emily & Michael Plummer 6919 W. 31 st Street 

137 
Richard P Payne Jr $ Ruth Ann 2618 S. Cuyler Avenue 

138 
Patricia Libel 

139 

Emily & Michael Plummer 

140 

2228 S. Harvey Avenue 

6919 W. 31st Street 

Laurie Carlson & Alan Ray Carl 6941 W. 30th Place 

141 

David & Katina Rideaux 3446 S. Elmwood Avenue 

142 
Rafael Frias 6511 W. 28th Street 

143 

(Building: Permit_County_All) 

P.1.N. # 

16~31-405-019-000 elec prelim conslutation to determine what items R 2/27/2018 Impr-L 
need to be brought up to code. 

16-30-418-033-000 REMOVE OLD SIDING - INSTALL NEW TYVEK R 2/27/2018 Impr-L 
AND INSTALL NEW VINYL SIDING - RIR 
GUTIER AND DOWNSPOUTS AND SOFFIT 
AND FASCIA AND R1R FRONT DOOR -- ALUM 
CAP WINDOWS AND DOORS - ALL WORK ON 
THE HOUSE DOWNSPOUTS MUST 
DISBURSE ONTO PRIVATE PROPERTY. 

16-31-309-011-000 TEAR OFF AND RESHINGLE THE HOUSE - R 2127/2018 Roof-L 
R1R GUTIERS. NO POWER VENTS ICE AND 
WATER SHIELD TO CODE 

16-30-325-030-000 111 FT OF INTERIOR DRAIN TILE, SUMP PUMP R 2/27/2018 Impr-L 
SYSTEM, 4' OF 2" MINI DRAIN, SANIDRY 
BASEMENT AIR DEHUMIDIFIER AND 
PURIFICATION SYSTEM, DOUBLE 
RECEPTACLE OUTLET WIDEDICATED 
CIRCUITS 

16-29-300-028-000 136' OF WATER GUARD, SUMP PUMP R 2127/2018 Impr-L 
SYSTEM, 4' OF 4" TRENCH DRAIN, 415 sa FT 
OF WALL LINER, BREAK AND REMOVE 
FLOOR DRAIN IN FRONT HALF OF 
BASEMENT AND INSTALL A NEW PIECE OF 
PIPE TO COMPLETELY REMOVE FLOOR 
DRAIN. 

16-29-102-032-000 sewer repair julie dig # x0581617 

16-30-325-030-000 TID AND RESHINGLE GARAGE ROOF 

16-30-323-022-000 MASTIC VINYL SIDING INSTALL ON WEST 
DORMER 

16-31-406-018-000 ALUMINUM SOFFIT AND FASCIA 
INSTALLATION ON ENTIRE HOUSE 

16-30-411-039-000 replacing existing concrete along East side of 
home, EXPANDING PRIVATE WALKWAY BY I 
FT APPROX. Julie dig attached. 

R 2127/2018 Plum-L 

R 2127/2018 Roof-L 

R 2127/2018 Impr-L 

R 2/27/2018 Impr-L 

R 2/27/2018 Impr-L 

Friday, March 02, 2018 

Cost Of Cost Of 

Permit # Improvements Permit 

78165-0 $0.00 $50.00 

78166-0 $23,960.00 $420.00 

78167-0 $7,550.00 $170.00 

78168-0 $11,765.81 $440.00 

78169-0 $10,114.25 $325.00 

78170-0 $6,329.09 $165.00 

78171-0 $2,350.00 $50.00 

78172-0 $1,600.00 $40.00 

78173-0 $3,850.00 $70.00 

78174-0 $3,000.00 $105.00 

Page 160/19 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 137

Report Of BuiidinglImprovement Permits Issued By The City Of Berwyn Friday, March 02, 2018 

Between: 2/112018 And 212812018 Cost Of Cost Of 

Name and' Address PoloNo# 
Census 
Class 

Permit 

Issued Permit # Improvements Permit 

Pellegrino Pescatore 

144 
~ ._--- -----.. --.--
Walton Contractors LLC 

145 

6224 W. Cermak Road 

2231 S. Grove Avenue 

~~--""' .• '''''''''''''' 
Rosa Claudio 2737 S. Euclid Avenue 

146 
John- P::-o-'ttC"e-r - ----- 2106 S. Grove Avenue 

147 .-...•.. __ .. _--_. __ ........... __ ._----------_ .•. -.-_ .. 
Laddie Vetrovic 2713 S. Ridgeland Avenue 

148 

Fernando Bosque & Chad THe 6445 W. 26th Street 

149 .... _-_ .•. -•........ 
Rebecca Sosa 2410 S. Clinton Avenue 

150 
Anthony Gasparro 1840 S. Euclid Avenue 

151 

Vincent Alejandro & Daisy Gem 3552 S. Clinton Avenue 

152 

A & MSullivan l EileenBarron 3125-31 S. Harlem Avenue 

153 
~~~ ... -.--.-----

(Building: PerrniCCounty..AU> 

99-99-999-000-029 la michoacana los primos fire alarm install C 2/27/2018 Impr·L 78175-0 

16-30-104-017-000 DUMPSTER TO REMOVE DEBRIS ONLY. NO R 2127/2018 Dump-L 78176-0 
WORK TO BE PERFORMED ON THIS PERMIT. 
DUMPSTERS/PODS REQUIRE A FlASHING 
BARRICADE ON THE SIDE OF INCOMMING 
TRAFFIC. 

16-30-407-015-000 1st II and bmst fl gutted to stud in some areas, R 2/27/2018 Impr-L 
insulate where needed. Electric to be rbought to 
code where needed (no cloth wiring). Replace 
missing and damaged drywall 1st fl and bmst 
only. Refinish kitchen cabinets only. 

16-19-330-013-000 TlO AND RESHINGLE GARAGE ROOF 

16-29-308-006-271 REMOVE EXISTING STORE FRONT, SIDING 
AND WINDOW -INSTALL NEW GLASS STORE 
FRONT ON BOTH UNITS - REMOVE EXISTING 
REAR ENTRY DOOR AND ENLARGE 
OPENING TO 40 INCHES - MUST BE 
TEMPERED GLASS 

R 212712018 Roof-L 

2/27/2018 Impr-L 

78177-0 

78178-0 

78179-0 

16-30-230-032-000 REMOVE CARPET IN BSMT AND INSTALL 
NEW FLOORING WITH DUMPSTER 

R 2127/2018 Dump-L 78180-0 

16-30-109-017-000 REMOVE EXISTING BACK WINDOWS
INSTALL SLIDING DOOR -INSTALL 14X 16 
DECK 

16-19-408-037-000 REMOVE AND REPLACE CARPET -INSTALL 
NEW TILE ON FLOORS - PATCH DRYWALL 
WHERE NEEDED - REPLACE DAMAGED 
INTERIOR DOORS - REPLACE BROKEN 
TOILET -INSTALL NEW FLOOR AND DOOR 
TRIM. ALL WORK IN GARDEN APT. 

R 2127/2018 Impr-L 

R 2127/2018 Impr-L 

16-31-304-040-000 REMODEL 1ST FLOOR BATH - NEW SHOWER R 2127/2018 Impr-L 
BASE - REMOVE AND REPLACE TILE 

16-31-100-010-000 REPLACE ROTTED WOOD ON REAR PORCH - C 2127/2018 Impr-L 
INSTALL ENCLOSED LIGHT FIXTURES-
ALUMINUM CAP OVER LIMESTONE - REPAIR 
PLASTER IN APT lW 

78181-0 

78182-0 

78183-0 

78184-0 

$3,413.00 $270.00 

$1 ,500.00 $50.00 

$2,000.00 $290.00 

$2,500.00 $50.00 

$3,750.00 $215.00 

$1 ,200.00 $50.00 

$2,500.00 $250.00 

$1.900.00 $40.00 

$600.00 $50.00 

$500.00 $0.00 

Page 170/19 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 138

Report Of BuildinglImprovement Permits Issued By The City Of Berwyn Friday, March 02, 2018 

Between: 211/2018 And 212812018 
Census Permit Cost OJ Cost OJ 

Name and Address P.I.N.# Class Issued Permit # Improvements Permit 

Luis M. De/gado 6420 W. Fairfield Avenue 16·31·220·035·000 REPLACE GARDEN APT LIVING ROOM R 2/27/2018 Impr·L 78185·0 $1,800.00 $40.00 
WINDOWS· NEW TILES ON FLOORS - PATCH 
DRYWALL WHERE NEEDED -INSTALL 2 
EXTERIOR DOORS (NO SIZE CHANGE) -
REFINISH FLOORS. 

Miriam Gonzalez & Irma Gomez 2522 S. Scoville Avenue 16-30-228-017-000 ADDING 2ND STORY ADDITION TO INCLUDE R 2128/2018 Bldg-B 8953-0 $15,000.00 $985.00 
2NEW BATHROOMS AND 3 BEDROOMS. ALL 
ELECTRIC, PLUMBING AND HVAC TO 
CURRENT CODE. ALL BEDROOMS REQUIRE 
A RETURN. BRING WINDOWS TO EGRESS 
CODE WHERE NEEDED. 

L & MC Investments LLC 2629 S. Wesley Avenue 16-30·402-017-000 PRE -POUR REINSPECT ION 2128/2018 Impr-L 77792-1 $0.00 $65.00 

Heylen Vigil Vasquez 1520 S. Home Avenue 16-19-127-023-000 Enclose bulb fixtures in closets, pantry, storage R 2128/2018 Impr·L 78186·0 $2,000.00 $490.00 
rooms and basement ceilings. RR any waifs and 
ceilings to code and provide finish coat if needed. 
Bedroom #1 must have at least 2 separate and 
remote electrical outlets to code. Any 2 prong 
outlets must be 

Daniel R. Dugo 2406 S. Cuyler Avenue 16-29·116-021-000 REBUILD CHIMNEY WITH NEW SS CHIMNEY R 2128/2018 Impr-L 78187-0 $2,380.00 $230.00 
LINER. CALL FOR FINAL INSPECTIONS. 

Estels Greller 3506 S. Clinton Avenue 16-31-304-024-000 RR 13 WINDOWS (EGRESS SIGNED) NO SIZE R 2128/2018 Impr-L 78188-0 $10,998.82 $225.00 
CHANGES. LIVING ROOM, CLOSET, DINING 
ROOM, AND 1 BEDROOM. 

159 

Julio & Blanca Giron 2413 S. Wesley Avenue 16-30-218·005·000 RR 14 WINDOWS, EGRESS SIGNED, NO SIZE R 2/28/2018 Impr-L 78189-0 $11,312.56 $240.00 
CHANGES. FRONT ROOM, BEDROOM, LIVING 
ROOM, CLOSET, KITCHEN, BACK ROOM, 
WINDOWS TO EGRESS. 

160 

Lucille M. Collins & Cecelia Jez 1217 S. Home Avenue 16-19-104-011-000 DUMPSTER TO CLEAN OUT DEBRIS. R 2128/2018 Dump-L 78190-0 $300.00 $50.00 
DUMPSTERS/PODS REQUIRE A FLASHING 
BARRICADE ON THE SIDE OF INCOMMING 
TRAFFIC. 

Edward Shay Jr. 6508 W. Sinclair Avenue 16-31-227·014·000 INSTALL ACRYLIC TUB LINER OVER R 2128/2018 Plum-L 78191-0 $4,950.00 $185.00 
EXISTING TUB, INSTALL VALVE, ACRYLIC 
WALL AND ACCESSORIES. 

(Building: PermiCCounty_All) Page 180/19 



CITY COUNCIL (FULL PACKET) MARCH 13, 2018 Page 139

Report Of BuildinglImprovement Permits Issued By The City Of Berwyn 
Between: 2/112018 And 212812018 

Census 
Class 

Permit 
Issued Name and Address 

Montsarat Sierra & Daryivett R 3428 S. Wesley Avenue 

163 
,' - ........ _ .•...•.... ".,._----_ .•. __ . __ ._--_ .. __ .•....•.• --,.---. ' .. _-

Raul & Juanita Chacon. 3644 S. Maple Avenue 

164 
--.-----.~---.--.--.-.-.--.-.-.. -.---... -.----.. 
N. Garcia & c. Onofre 1628 S. Harvey Avenue 

165 

P.I.N. # 

16-31·231-036-000 Rooms used for slepping purposes and rec areas R 2/28/2018 Impr-L 
to code (egress ",tlere needed) (egress signed) .• 
current bedroom windows are egress. AJ1 water 
supply hoses for any sinks and toilets must be 
converted to non-plastic metal rigid pipe. Open 
light bulbs to be 

16-31-308-042-000 ATTIC AIR SEALING, INSTALL LED LIGHT R 2/28/2018 Impr-L 
BULB, INSTALL FRIDGE AND UPRIGHT 
FREEZER, WEATHER-STRIP, FRONT DOOR, 
SPRAY FOAM, REPLACE EXISTING FURNACE 
AND INSTALL FOAM INSULATION ON 
EXTERIOR WALLS. 

16-20-302-030-000 AIR FRONT AND REAR ATTIC WINDOWS 6 
TOTAL. ATTIC IS CURRENTLY OPEN 
UNFINISHED. 

R 2/2812018 Impr-L 

Friday, March 02, 2018 

Cost Of Cost Of 

Permit # Improvements Permit 

78192-0 $2,100.00 $205.00 

78193·0 $9,092.94 $290.00 

78194-0 $850.00 $40.00 

_._----- -----.: 
Rebecca Sosa 2410 S. Clinton Avenue 16-30-109-017-000 Dumpster for property clean out. R 212812018 Dump-L 78195-0 $300.00 $50.00 

166 

166 Building and Local Improvement Permits Issued During Period 

(Building: Permi,-County~U) 

DUMPSTERSIPODS REQUIRE A FLASHING 
BARRICADE ON THE SIDE OF INCOMMING 
TRAFFIC. 

Totals . .. . • $1,526,330,68 $69,315.00 

Page 190/19 




